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P/ Cussons is an international consumer
products group.

Our mission Is to be an entrepreneurial

international company, enhancing the

lives of consumers In selected markets

with quality, value and innovation.

We have bullt our success on our:

4 strategic pillars
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R
2000 £771.6m £86.5m

(2009 £23 2m)

Profit before taxation and
Operating profit before exceptional tems  exceptional items

£101.4m £101.8m

Up 11 9% (2009 £90 6m) Up 14 6% (2009 £88 8m)}
Adjusted basic earmings per share Dividend per share
14.89p 5.90p
Up 20 2% (2009 12 39p) Up 12 0% (2008 5 27p)
Group — Strong trading performance delivering 11 9% increase in operating profit to

£101 4 mitlion

— Operating margins improved despite revenue flat after currency mpact

— Strong cash flow from operations benefited from continued reduction of working
capital and resulted in a closing net funds position of £86 5 mullion

— Major capital investment programme now complete with £44 3 miflion expenditure in
the year funded from cash flow

— Total dividend increased 12 0% year on year

Africa — Main market Nigeria politically stable ahead of elections scheduted for Spring 2011
— Operating profit increased despite negative currency impact and a short-term iquidity
squeerze which affected revenue and profitability in the second quarter
— Nutrition joint venture continues to trade profitably with new UHT factory
performing well
— £39 million investment programme in Nigera completed on schedule

Asia — Increase in profitability across Australia, Indonesia and the Middle East
~ Growth achieved through the roll out of both local and group-wide innovation pipeline

Europe — Strong growth in UK profitability delivered through an effective brand renovation
programme and despite an uncertain consumer outlook
— Continued progress in Poland through a particular focus on Personal Wash
— A good start to the year in Greece although trading in the second half became more
difficult due to the deteniorating econcmic environment
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Regional
overview

Our diverse geographical
spread has ensured that the
Group’s successful track
record of profitable growth
continues with our strategy
of ‘local brands for local
markets’ enabling us to
tailor our product offering
appropriately in each
territory to suit local
consumer needs and
economic conditions.

Africa

Africa continues to be our largest market
and opportunities for growth within the

region continue due to our knowledge of
the markets and strength of supply chain

In the Personal and Home Care markets renovation of key brands
has ensured that they remain inleading positions within their
growing categones

The investrment in Nigenan manufactunng capability and supply
chain is complete including the upgrade of personat care
production faciities the construction of a national distnbution
centre and the upgrade of soap manufacturing capabihty

The new state of the art detergent tower 1s currently being
commissioned and this investment has laid the platform for
sustainable long-term growth in Nigena

Home Care Food and Nutrition
Rex Tempo ZIP Jet Nunu
Coast
Personal Care Yot
Venus Robb Joy Premier Olympic

Electrical Goods
Haler-Thermocool
TEC

Revenue and Operating Profit{Em)

-0- Operating Profit before excapticnalitems.




Asia

The Asian markets in which we operate
provide a naturally balanced portfolio
geographically, offering both mature and
emerging markets with excellent opportunity
for growth.

The first class distnbution netwark in emerging markets 1s a key
strength of the business and enables us to deliver our brands

to market effrctently with a speedy response 10 changing
consumer needs

Renovation of our key brands in these markets both during

the year and in the coming months has and will ensure that
these brands maintain thesr leading positions within the
respactive markets Furthermore the roll out of the group-wide
innovation pipeline presents further opportunities for growth

Baby Care Home Care

Cussons Baby Radiant

Cussons First Years Morning Fresh
Trix

Personal Care Duo

Impernal Leather

Pure
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Europe

Our selected markets in Europe range from
personal wash and household in the UK
and Poland; premium bodycare, beauty
products and haircare in the UK, and food
and nutrition in Greece

Product innovation 1s key to maintaining the leading positions
within these markets Durning the year Charles Worthington
launched the Front Row high performance styling range and
the core Results range s about to bere-launched Imperal
Leather has continued 1o add to s range of products the latest
bemg SkinKind shower gel whilst Carex (the UK s number one
antibactenal hand wash} is currently being re-launched with a
new design and formula

This product inrovation from the UK Personal Wash Centre of
Excellence s being shared with Poland This will see Luksja
launch 1ts own Skin Kind' range 1n the near future

The Feod and Nutnition business in Greece 1s making good
progress in the cheese and butter categories following
the acquisitions made last year

Personal Care Harr Care
Onginal Source Impenal Charles Worthington
Leather Carex Luksja

Home Care
Food and Nutntion Morming Fresh E
Minerva
Burnno Beauty and Bodvycare

The Sanctuary

Revenue and Operating Profit (Em)

Revenue and Operating Profit (fm}

~o= Operating Profit before exceptional items

-o— Qperating Profit betore exceptonal items
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Chairman'’s
statement

A clear focus on the strategy of
selected markets, leading brands, a
world class supply chain and a great
team of people has enabled continued
sustainable profitable growth through
a challenging trading environment.

A%

The Board s pleased to
recommend a 12%
dividend increase

In 2010 the Group delivered a strong
performance with profitable growth in all
three regions of Africa Asia and Europe

Cash generation even after £44 3 million
of capital mvestment in the year has been
strong and the closing net funds position
of £86 & million leaves the Group well
placed to pursue growth opportunities

The Board 1s therefore pleased to
recommend a 12% dividend increase
maintaining excellent cover at 2 5 times

It 's with great pleasure that | have taken
up the role from 1 July 2010 of Non-
executive Chairman Thas follows the
retirement on 30 June, of Anthony Green
who has served the Group for 35 years
the last 17 of which in the capacity of
Chairman

Anthony s contribution to the Group over
this tme has been outstanding and as
Chairman he has guided the business and
the Board to achieve profitable growth
year after year During his tenure the
Group has diversified its geographical
reach and expanded its brand portiolio
whilst managing its balance sheet
prudenily which has served the Group
well particularly in recent economic
umes Anthony has epitomised the

Group s culture of an entrepreneurnal spint
underpinned by family values Anthony
retained the famuly values of the founders
whilst allowing the Board to modernise
these into the CANDQ values which

serve the Group so well as we move Into
the future

I would also like to pay tribute to Graham
Calderwho retired on 31 March 2010 after
14 years with the Group joining as Finance
Director and taking up the position of
Deputy Chairrman in 2006 Grahams
energy dnve and passion helped support
the Board through an exciting period

of growth Our thanks and best wishes

0o to them both for a teng and happy
returement

| am dehighted that | have joined a

Group witha culture of drive and
innovation There 1s no doubt that many
of the countries In which we trade face
challenging economic times as they
emerge from recession Attractive

high quality and competitvely priced
products will be essential We look ahead
with cautious optimism and with an
entreprengurial spint despite an uncertain
consumer outlook in a number of markets

I would like to take this apportunity

10 thank alt the Group s staff for ther
continued hard work and dedication

Your skill and commitment will be
essential in mamtaining our progress and
| very much look forward to working with
you In the future

Richard Harvey
Non-executive Chairman
27 July 2010

Al
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Our mission

We are an entrepreneurial, international company,
enhancing the lives of consumers in selected
markets, with qualtty, value and innovation.

Our vision

s We are a profitable, growing business,
working in selected geographies, we are
flexible and dynamic

- We market and distribute leading brands,
across a range of categories, that offer high
value to our customers and consumers

s We have simple, transparent and common
Processes across our company.

s We are trusted and respected everywhere
we operate.

s We live our values to the full

s We work together as a multi-cultural
meritocracy where individual contribution
IS expected, appreciated, and rewarded.
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Report of the Directors

Financial
review

The Directors present their report and the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 May 2010.

This year’s highlights at a glance:

— Operating profit* increased by 11 9% to £101 4 milkon from
£90 6 milion

— Profit before tax and exceptional items increased by 14 6%
to £101 8 milhion from £88 8 million

— Profit before tax after exceptional items increased by 20 6%
to £101 8 million from £84 4 millhion

— Adjusted basic EPS* increased by 20 2% to 14 89p from 12 38p

~ Proposed divtdend increase for the year of 120% to 5 90p
fromb 27p

— Net funds at 31 May 2010 of £86 5 million up from £23 2 million

* Before excepuonal tems

Adjusted basic EPS {pence) Dividend [pence)

-|-20.2°/o +1 2.00/0

Revenue (Em) Operating profit before exceptional items (Em)

(1.3)% +11.9%




£ 38.Om

Financial performance - overview

The Group has delivered a strong
performance in the year despite challenging
trading conditions in some markets

Europe and Asia have performed
particularly well through orgame growth
delivered by consistent execution of brand
renovation strategees tailored for each
local market

In Africa a tughtening of banking controls in
Nigeria led to a temporary lack of hquidity
in the second quarter which affected
sales, parucularly of goods in the higher
value electncal goods category Liquidity
began to return to more normal levels in
the second half of the year The Nara/US$
exchange rate has also been stable during
the year followang a weakening towards
the end of the previous year Despite the
hguidity and currency impact and with
the Nutnvien jomnt venture returning o
profitability operating profits in Africa
increased year on year

Overall exchange rate impact for the

Group In the year resulied in a reduction

n revenue and profitability of circa £18
million and £3 millon respectvely Revenue
year on year was flat due prncipally to the
adverse currency impact and the effect of
the llquidity squeeze in Nigeria

Dunng the year in addition to delivery of
operating profitin absolute terms internal
focus has also been placed on improving
operating margins

Financial position - overview

The Group s balance sheet remains
healthy with a clesing net funds positien
of £86 5 million versus a prior year close
of £23 2 mulion

This has been achieved through continued
focus on reducing working capital levels
across all areas of the business Having
reduced tevels from 26% to 16% of
revenue last year a further reduction

1o 13% of revenue has been achieved

this year

Cash generated from cperations
was significant at £160 8 milhon

The Group's balance sheet
remains healthy with a
closing net funds position of
£86 5 million versus a prior
year close of £23 2 million

(2009 £145 2 million) as a result of strong
profitability and the reduction in working
capital levels This has therefore funded
capital expendiwure of £44 3 milkion in

the final year of the Group s major capital
investment programme whilst stll increasing
the net funds position to £86 5 millien

Key performance indicators

For the Group the key performance
indicators are growth in adjusted bastc
earnings per share as well as the delivery
of growth 1n operating profit and profit
before tax in absolute terms

In terms of performance the Group
targets operating units on delivery of
operating profit in absolute terms and
the ongoing delivery of iImprovements in
operating margins

In terms of cash flow the Group targeis
operating units on delwery of cash flows
in absolute terms as well as Improvements
inworking capiial measures

The Group performance in the year has
delivered improvements in all the above
key performance indicators

Major projects

In Nigena Project Urity whuch 15 the

£39 mulllon investment in manufactunng
and supply chain has been completed on
schedule with the final commissioning of
the new detergent tower being carned gut
aver the next few months

During the last three years 1his project has

— Relocated and upgraded the personat
care produchon facility

— Constructed a world-class national
distribution centre on the lkorodu site

- Upgraded the scap manufacturing
capability at Aba and

— Constructed a new state-of-the-art
detergent production facility at tkarodu

This has therefore laid the platform for
sustainable long-term growth in our Personal
Care and Home Care businesses as well as
upgrading the distnbution capability

The Group's major capital Investment
programme Is now complete with no
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significant further organmic capital projects
currently planned

Taxation
The effective tax rate before excepuonal
items was 28 6% (2009 28 4%)

Dindends

The Board I1s recormmending a final
dividend of 3 97p per share (2009 4 (8bp)
to give a totaldwvidend of 5 S0p per share
{2009 5 27p) a 12% ncrease for the year
As explained in the Intenm Statement

the intenim/final payment ratio for the

year has been rebalanced In line with
normal practice

Pensions

The Group sthree closed UK final salary
schemes had a small deficit posiion

at 31 May 2010 of £7 4 million (2009

£4 3 million} The Group I1s currently
implementing a number of long-term
de-nsking strategies including an enhanced
transfer value programme which wall
commence inthe next financial year

Cutlock

The outlook for the year rematns positive wiath
significant brand renovation pregrammes
planned acrossEurope Asia and Africa With
the major capital nvestment prograrmmes in
the UK and Nigera now complete the Group
1s well placed for efficient manufactunng and
distnbution in these terntones

Whilst the Group s innovation pipeline should
provide the potental for contnued profitable
growth we reman conscious of the
competitive trading envirenment and fragile
consumer confidence particularly in the UK
and Greece

As previously mentioned the Nigena
elecuons scheduled for Spang 2011 may
cause some disruption to trading towards the
end of the financiat year

Continued focus remains on cash generation
through further reductions in working capitat
levels and wath a smaller capital expenditure

programme to fund

The Group s balance sheet remains strong
with a net funds position and the Group

15 well placed 1o pursue further growih
opportunities

Overall performance since the year-end
has been 1n line with management s
expectations Welook ahead wath
cautious optimism and an entrepreneurial
spirit despite anuncertain consumer
outlook In a number of markets

07
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Business
review

The strategy of tailoring brand offerings
to suit local markets has proved
particularly valuable during the recent
difficult trading conditions seen in certain
markets in which we operate. Brand
innovation and the abllity of local teams
to adapt quickly to changing market
conditions has ensured continued
success throughout the regions.
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Africa

Focus on the core categories within row Sablc it the doath of he.
the Personal and Home Care markets ;7 o wreeeon
has ensured that the region has ehared TorBarmg 2011 and et the
delivered another year of profitable medium 1o lng 1erm poltcal ook s
growth. Effective renovation of key fom the eleton process axsts towards

brands and continued focus on these
- Economically astrengthening of
core categories has ensured that they g conos n the second quarter

led 10 a shortterm Liguidity squeeze

have retalned thelr Ieadlng pOSItIOI'lS with disteibutors mainly of higher value
- electncal goods unable to access
durlng the yea r. previous levels of credit for working
capital Atamacro level the Naira/US$
exchange rate has been stable throughout

H H H - the year and foreign exchange reserves
Reglonal hlghllghts. should remann sustainable with the oil
- Nigena politically stable ahead of elections price at currentlevels The outlook for the
health h
scheduled for Spring 2011 S0P ratme oot poste

— Operating profit Increased despite negative ,

During the year the Group's holding inits
currency impact and a short-term ||C|U|d|ty SQUEEZE  sted Nigenan subsidiary was increased
which affected revenue and profitability in the from 64 0% 1066 1% at a cost of £6 8m
second quarter

— Nutntion joint venture continues to trade profitably
with new UHT factory performing well

— £39 million investment programme in Nigera
completed on schedule

Revenue (Em) Operating profit (Em)

Robb

Robb 1s Nigeria s leading brand of
medicated animent with products for
the antire famly Recently it has been
re-launched and three new vanants

were added to the Robb family Robb
Junior specifically developed for children
Robb Super Intense Heat and Robb
Tarzan Herbal
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Building our success

Africa

Selected markets

We have a long standing presence
in the Nigenan Fabric Care market
Tradionally this market had
consisted of laundry bar products

The market has developed over the

past decade and powdered formats are
becoming more widely accepted and used
The market for bulk powders that are sphit
into smaller volumes by distnbutors in the
market place has grown over the past few
years and now maore premium packaged
formats are increasing in populanty as
disposable income increases in ine with
growth in the Nigenan economy The new
powder formats will also allow the Group to
enter into other Afncan markats

Leading brands

In Afnca, we have several leading
Fabric Care brands with offerings
in the economy, mid and
premium segments

Brands are continuously reviewed and
renovated to ensure that the leading
positions are maintained and include ZIP
Jet Canoe Rexand Ushindi ZIP 15 a key
strategic brand for our Nigenan Fabric
Care category offering the consumer
outstanding brightness and whiteness
at an everyday affordable price The
Canoe laundry bar has been re-launched
In Nigeria as a more premium laundry
bar offering In Kenya we have recently
extended Ushindi from a laundry bar into
the laundry powder market highlighting
its mild and gentle propertes
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Great team of people

Agreat team of people I1s vital to
ensure the continued development
of the business

The Fabrnic Care network ensures that
local teams can both contribute 1o and
draw from the Group s knowledge and
experttse in Fabric Care and wilt enable
N:gena to draw upon technological and
innovative advances from other markets
and adapt these for local use

World class supply chain

The £39 milhon investment in Nigena
'Project Unity' 1s now complete and
the benefits of this Investment are
now betng seen

The network of 26 depots s now serviced
by a new world class national dhstribution
centre the first of 1its kind In Nigenia

and the new detergent iower s tn the
process of being commissioned TFhe
new detergent tower will give increased
capacity as well as manufacturing
efficiencies and an increase In the quality
and range of products manufactured with
less impact on the envircnment

ZIP

ZIP is a white specialist detergent
powder the first and presently
only detergent with this distinctive
propasition in the Nigenan market
and ss marketed as ZIP for perfect
whites It has a unique Opti-bleach
system™ that makes white clothes
whiter and bnghter and all this 1s
offered to consumers at an everyday
affordable price

11
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Africa continued

Nunu

Nunu was first mtroduced to the market
in powder and evaporated milk formats
have recenily been launched in ready
to drink UHT formats Nunu 1s being
positioned towards the more premium
end of the mik market as the specialist
children s nutriticnal product geared to
previding opttmum nutritional wellbeing
10 children with offenngs in the dairy and
non-dairy categores

Venus

Venus offers a complete range of haircare
products to suit every need and style for
every 0ccasion

In Personal Care and Home Care focus
on the core categeries of Skin Care

Har Care Baby Care Medicaments and
Fabric Care has ensured another year of
profttable growth In particular effective
renovation of our Personal Care brands
Premiger Joy Venus Robb and Cussons
Baby and our Home Care brands Rex ZIP
Canoe and Jet has reinforced ther leading
positions In these growing categornes

In Electncals the HPZ joint venture with
Haier suffered poor sales in the second
guarter as a result of the iquidity squeeze
previcusty mentioned Since then sales
levels have recovered to pre-squeeze
levels as hquidity has returned to the
market Haser Thermocool continues

to hold the number one market share
position in both refrigerators and freezers
with a premium price position being
mamntained The wider product range of
al-canditioners and brown goods also

continues to be successfully developed
In Harefield the subsidiary incorporated

last year to sell products in adjacent

categores sales of fuel powered |
generators have been sirong and ahead \
of the pnor year ‘
In Nutrition the joint venture with Glanbia

returned to profitabihity in the year

following the losses incurred lasi year

as a result of high milk prices The new

UHT factory was commissioned at the

beginning of the year with encouraging

first year sales of the new Tetra Pak format

praducts sold under the Nunu Bhss and

Yo! brands Further new product launches

such as Bliss Ice Tea are planned

Ghana and Kenya have continued to
perform well with profitability ahead of the
same penod last year




Asia

Continued focus on core brands and
the utilisation of expertise from across
the Group has resulted in strong
revenue and profitability growth
throughout the region.

Regional highlights:

— Increase in profitability across Australia, indonesia
and the Middle East

— Growth achieved through the roll out of both local
and group-wide innovation pipeline

PZ Cussons Plc
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In Australia revenue and profitability were
ahead of the prior year as a result of goed
execution of brand strategy in market
New launches have taken place both in
Dish Care (Morning Fresh) and Fabric Care
(Rachant and Duo) Development of the
Personal Wash category has continued
through new launches under the Cussons
Pure brand whilst Oniginal Source will be
launched into the market for the first tme
in Novermnber

In Indonesia further extension of the
number one position in the Baby Care
category has resulted in revenue and
profitability ahead of last year This has
been driven by new product launches
across both the core Cussons Baby
range and the more premium Cussons
First Years range A major relaunch

of the Cussons Baby range is taking
place shortly io maintain the positive
momentum behind the brand Durning the
year Carex was launched mto the market
to capitalise on heightened awareness of
hand hygiene and initial sales have been
encouraging

Overall sales and profitability of the other
Asan umits Thalland and the Middle
East were ahead of the pnor year

Revenue (Em)

Operating profit {Em)

Morning Fresh — Austraha

Morning Fresh i1s the leading brand

of dishwashing hquid in Australia
Constant mnovation and improvement
of products ensures that this market
posttion 15 retained and the brand also
has a successful range of dishwasher
detergents

13
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Building our success

As

Selected markets

Indonesiahas the fourth largest
population in the world with over

4 2 milkion babies being born annually

There s therefore a huge opportunity for
the Group te further develop the existing
leading position In this large and growing
market We are currently exploring other
opportunities to extend our offenngs in
this market




World class supply chan

Indonesia has a network of 24 depots
spread across the geographically
dispersed country

This network of depots 1s a key strength
of the business and allows the business s
wide product portfolio to be efiectively
and efficiently distributed across
Indonesia i order that it can reach the
traditional and modern markets that

are supphed

Leading brands

Cussons Baby 1s currently the
market leader in indonesia The
Cussons Baby brand 1s currently
bemg re-launched in order o
ensure that the brand retains
and bulds upon its aspirational,
innovative and iconic qualities
Cussons First Years, targeting
children aged 1 to 4 years, s also
conunuing to establish itself

In the market with a prermium
offering. whtch also includes a
range for mothers

The launch will involve a new bottle shape
which 1s more modern and unique than
the onginal design with contemporary
brnight and attractive packaging to
maximise shelf impact This relaunch

wili be supported by an integrated
advertising campaign

Cussons Baby

PZ Cussons Plc
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Great team of people
Each of the 1,600+ members of our
Indonesian team epitomise the spirt
of our CANDO values

There is a strong work ethic and the
team are consistently striving 1@ improve
in all aspects of their work The team
have strong commercial expertise and
as a result lead the Group s Baby Care
network Through this their skits and
experience can be leveraged to help lead
other baby markets in the PZC waorld

Cussons Baby 1s the market leaderin
the Indonesia baby market and offers
a wide range of products ranging from
soaps fotions shampoos talcum

powder and rubs

15
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Europe

Strong performance in our Personal e it o axcalos byand
Care category during the year despite (155700 Cgns Soues craves
the continued competitive pressure Hoomte oG emronmen TomamING

and difﬁcult trading conditionsl This difficult with high levels of promotional

activity inthe retallers and an uncertain

success can be attributed to the consumer autlook
continued focus and innovation in the Impenal Leather the largest brand in

the UK portfolio continues to deliver

core brands_ Innovatve products in bar soap handwash
and shower gel formats The newest
range recently launched impenal Leather
Skin Kind 15 a range of shower gels

ReQional hlghhghtS: developed for sensitive skin but with a
— Strong growth in UK profrtability delivered through  unique formula that allows fragrance to

be added uniike other products in the

an effective brand renovation programme and sensitive skin category A media campaign
despite an uncertain consumer outlook has just started including national TV
advertising
— Continued progress in Poland through a particular

Onginal Source continues to perform well

focus on Personal Wash with a loyal consumer base supported
_ A gOOd start to the \/ear n Greece a|though trad”']g in particutar by sponsorship of high

performance sports events such as

In the second half became more difficutt due to MountainMayhem Carex continues
to be the UKs ieading anttbacterial

the deteriorating economic environment bt ol e coraontly LG
relaunched in an exciting new destgn and
with a new unique formula for faster germ
kill The Charles Werthingten haircare
brand has maintained its number two
position in the competiive professional
haircare category through innovative
product launches such as the Front Row
high performance styling range The core
‘Results range Is also being relaunched in
attractive new packaging

The Sanctuary continues to perform well
with product range extensions mcluding
new premium products and an exciting
new skincare range The spa at Covent
Garden has also continued to perform well
despite the economic conditions with
visitor numbers close to capacity During
the year a high street spa in Richmond
was acquired as part of the City Spa
concept to extend the reach of the brand
to consumers Twao further units were
secured in Cambndge and i Bnistol and
will open as Sanctuary Spas dunng the
next few months

Sanctuary Skincare

The Sanctuary skincare range 1s used

in the spa within The Sanctuary s own
treatments The extensive range provides
spa quality products so women can enjoy
the expernence and results of a spa facial
at home




Carex

The Carex range 1s 1he UK s leading
antibactenal handwash and has been
ngorously tested to ensure that they not

only kill 99 9% of bactena but are also kind

to hands The range has recently been
launched in other markets in the Group
including Poland Indenesia and Thalland

Minerva - Hono

The brand that brings us close to the
velues of the Greek village and trachitional
Greek diet The product range has
recently been extended to Include new
butter vaneties i addition to the olive oll
margarne and cheese offenings

PZ Cussons Plc
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Revenue (fm)

Operating profit (£m)

Alsointhe UK a partnership with Ecolab
1s being developed which has imiually seen
Impenal Leather and Carex supphed into
branded dispensers in Prermser Inn and
Holiday Inn hotel rooms

The Personal Wash Centre of Excellence
at Agecroft has operated well dunng the
vear with Ongiral Source production now
brought in-house following the installation
of a fifth manufactunng ine

Finally in the UK the Group moved into
its new Head Ofhice at Manchester
Busingss Park adjacenttc Manchester

Airport providing a modern and innovative

environment for the future

Profitabiity in Poland 1s ahead of last year
primarily as a result of strong sales of E
{laundry powders and fabnc conditioners)
Luks|a tbar soap and shower gel) also
continues to perform well via utihsation of
the Impenal Leather innovation developed
in the UK with Luksja Skin Kind currently
being launiched nto the market

In Greece profitability was lower than
the previous year due to the detenorating
economic canditions in the second half
Whilst olive ol sales were lower than

the previous year good progress has
been made (n the newer categories of
margarnne, butter and cheese

7



18

PZ Cussons Pic
Annual Report & Accounts 2010

Building our success

Elioe

Selected markets
The Personal Wash market Is the
main focus of our UK operaton

The market 1s developed competitive and
has tigh levels of consumer promotion
and this means that we have to keep
constant focus on the market and its
changing dynamics se that we can react
speedily to these changes and keep

at the forefront of the market This real
local market focus and the ability of the
bustness to proactively change and react
quickly has ensured that we retain our
number one position in this market

Leading brands

We aim to make our brands
extraordinary by ensunng that
each has a clear consumer benefit
and point of difference versus the
competition

Impenal Leather is our brand leader and
innovative changes and renovation of
the brand and its sub categories ensures
that the brand remains in a leading
position The recent launch of Impenal
Leather SkinKind has been Iin response
to an unsatisfied consumer group the
Neutraliser market This consumer
segment (s growing fast and we have
utiised our expertise In personal wash
and fragrance to launch the first mass
market allergen free fragranced range of
shower gels

World class supply chan

The Group's personal wash network
15 led by the UK and serves to

create excellence in all aspects of
the Group's personal wash offering
ensuring that innovation and
technology can be rapidly transferred
across the Group

W:th the Group s new RED and fragrance
iacihty co-located on the same site as the
UK hquids factory the UK personal wash
supply chain has the agility to respond
quickly to consumer-led changes and

to drive inniovation and technological
advances from concept through to
commercial praduction
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Great team of people

The personal wash network ensures
that the best talent from throughout
the Group (both UK and overseas) has
been brought together to work on
personal wash from innovation nght
through to end user supply

This team focus 1s proving extremely
successful not onfy in the UK where the
network 15 led but also in driving the
innovation pipeline throughout the Group

SkinKind

The new SkinKind range by Impenal
Leather 1s a set of bath products and
shower gels specifically designed for
those with sensitive skin They are
avallable in three vaneties — Hydrate
Refresh and Restore — each with its
own distinctive fragrance
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Principal risks and
uncertainties

On behalf of and in consultation with the Board of
Directors, the Group Risk Commiittee is responsible for
identifying, assessing and prioritising all material risks
facing the Group and ensuring, where possible, that
appropriate action is taken to manage and mitigate those
risks. The table below highlights the major risks identified
which may affect the Group'’s ability to deliver its strategy
and the measures taken to address them.

Risks

Descnption of risks

Measures to reduce the risks

Market risks

Political and
economic stability

The Group conducts a substantial
proportion of its operations outside the
UK in emerging markets which have
sigrificant capacity for profitable growth
but which also have an increased risk of
pohucal and economic instability

The Group has a diverse geographic portfelio however in
developing its corporate strategy and in order to help mitigate the
nsk that could arise in any one particular termtory the Board seeks to
maintain an approprate balance both between mature and emerging
markets and within the emerging markets between its operations
in different terntones In addition the Group has extensive and long
established expenience In all key markets and the Board continually
maoniters those markets to ensure that any specific nisks (or
oppertumities) may bedentfied and addressed as they anse

Demand risks

Demand for the Group s products may
be adversely impacted by changes in
censumer preferences

The increasingly competitive environment
and continued growth of discounters
could adversely impact the rate of sales
growth and profit margins

Extensive knowledge of the Groups selected markets is a core
strategic pillar and the Group actively monitors the needs and
aspirations of consumers on a regular and engoing basis and 1s
continuously developing new products to satisfy them The Group
will continue 1o invest in selecied brands and selected markets in
order to drnive profitable sales growth and the Board beleves that
competition I1s healthy as it encourages and motivates the Group s
operations across the world to do ther best to serve the interests
of consumers and our brands

Raw matenais

In comman with other companies within
its sector the Group s profitability is
affected by price and supply fluctuations
in raw materiais used In the manufacture
of its products Key items such as ols
and fats packaging matenals and energy
are subject to fluctuations in price and
avalability

The Group takes measures to protect against the short-term impact
of these fluctuations and shortfalls however failure to recover
higher costs or shortfalls in availability could have a negative Impact
on profis The Group continually moniiors the price and availability
of materals against forecast demand to ensure that there are
adequate resources to continue in production throughout the world
and continues to refine its raw matenal forecasting processes and to
strengthen its procurement capabilites
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Risks Descnption of nsks Measures to reduce the risks

Financial risks

Fareign currency
and treasury nsk

The international nature of the Group s
activities gives rise to both transactional
exchange rate risk {with the main exposure

The Group requires its operating units to hedge their matertal
{ransaction exposures on sales and purchases conducted in
currencies other than their functional currenctes The Group

relating to US Dollar trade balances} and
translation exposure when the results

assets and habiimes of foreign subsidianes

are translated into Sterling

does not actively hedge its translation exposures as these are of
an accounting rather than a cash nature however the international
spread of the Group s operattons 1tself reduces dependence on
indwvidual currencies

The Group mamtains a centralised treasury function which
operates on a non-speculative basis in accordance with policies
and procedures approved by the Board of Directors and reviewed
during the year by the Board and the Audit Commitiee The aim of
this function 1s to mitigate the effects of any adverse movements in
exchange rates and interest rates on the Group s financial resuits

Operational nisks

and recruitment

The Group recogrises that in order to
deliver sustained strong results it requires
the nght calibre of people at all levels

of the business In particular the Group
must compete to recruit and retain
capable individuats within the business
including traiming them in the skills and
competencles which are required to
deliver profitable growth

The Board beheves that there s 1n place an attractive employment
propositien acrass the Group which will continue to attract capable
recruits and that key management and personnel are sufficiently
well recognised incentivised and challenged in order to retain them
as far as possible

Reputation nsks

Should the Group fail 1o meet mgh
product safety social environmental
and ethical standards in all operations
and actvities there s the nisk that its
corporate reputation could be damaged
leading to the rejection of our products
by consumers damage to brands and
diversion of management time nto
rebuilding our reputation

Product safety, social environmental and ethical standards continue
to be the cornerstones on which our business I1s based Theyare
key focus areas for the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

a standing sub-commutiee of the Board which has duning the year
developed and implemented pninciples and policies in respect

of each Should any ssues arise In these areas the Group has
processes In place to enable a quick response
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Corporate social responsibility
report

At PZ Cussons we believe in ‘doing e e a corinued
good business’. We do not believe e 05 Grovmanas |
that there need be any conflict or individuals to all of our stakeholders
Those stakeholders include our
inconsistency between being a e e oo and
successful profitable organisation the curonment W are commited o
and, at the same time, running our e ot oo mtivos
operations in such a way that they s concered We aim o make »

positive Impaci on soctety through the

have a positive impact on society. On producis v wo poduse andse
= [] throu the way tn which our products
the Gontl'ary, we b9|leve that SOCla“y are m?anufactur:d and packagzd and

through the contributions we make to the

responsible conduct is value enhancing  communes inwhichwe operate

for our SharehOIders and a" Of our This report sets out the Group s values
other stakeholders. Covornescon ool

how these have been put into practice |
during theyear CSR descnbes how a |
busness
— recognises the ways in which its actions

affectthose around 1t, and
- regulates those actions so that

consistent with sustainable business

and development they have a positive

impact

We consider the principles of CSR to be

integral 10 how the Group conducts its

operations and key to the results which

the Group has delivered in the past and to

1ts continued success and development

in the future In parucular PZ Cussons

recognises the potential benefits which

may be denved where CSR activities are |
aligned to the concerns and demands of |
our stakeholders and we listen to and take
account of those concerns in shaping our
business strategies and practices We
also recognise that compantes are subject
to increasing regulation particularly in
respect of environmental 1ssues and we
believe that the pursuls of 8 proactive and
positive CSR palicy reduces tha nsk of
adverse regulatory action

One of the Group s core strategic
principles 15 to develop leading brands
which are suited to local needs and tastes




The introduction of everyday good quality
affordable products enhances the quality
of the fives of consumers parucularly in
developing countries and we believe that
our mix of products is consistent with the
principles of good CSR In partcular
- the provision of soaps and cleaning
products m countnes such as
Nigena Kenya Ghana and Indonesia
has significant benefits in terms of
the hygiene and health of the local
population and
- we provide a range of nutritional
milk products in Africa through our
Nutricima joint venture with Glanbta
Plc Nutnoma continues o expand its
range of nuintional products helping
to provide the essential daily nutntional
requirement of the local population
which Is key to the fight against
mortalty rates {particularly amongst
children} within the country

The PZ Cussons Plc Corporate Social
Responsibility Commattee

The Board 1s responsible for overseeing
CSR witkun the Company supported

by a Corporate Social Respansibility
Committee (CSR Commuttee)

The CSR Committee was established to
ensure that the principles of CSR remarn at
the core of the Group s business activibes

Its principal responsibilisies include

- reviewing the Company s corporate
strategy to ensure that CSA 1s and
remains an integral part of the strategy
and imptementing it n practice so that
the Group s scoal environmental and
economuc activities are aligned

— developing policies on all key areas
of CSR including the environment
health and safety product testing and
consumer safety business conduct
and ethics our employees and local
community and chanty

- developing and supporting a Group
programme of CSR activities and focus
for each financial year supported
by approprate targets and key
performance indicators

— In conjunction with management
and other commutiees of the Board
idenufying maternial environmental
soctal and health and safety nsk
areas and Implemenung appropnate
measures to mitgate any such rnsks

- on an ongoing basis evaluating and
developing the content and integrity of
any reporting to external stakeholders
concerning CSR matters mcluding this
CSR report and

— developing effective two-way
communication concerning CSRA 1ssues
within the Group

PZ Cussons Plc
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As a member of the RSPO,
PZ Cussons will make a time
bound commitment to 100%
Cerufied Sustainable Palm O
via RSPO approved supply
chain mechanisms

The CSR Committee members are
Simon Heale{Chairman} Pachard Harvey
Alex Kanellis Chrnis Davis Brandon
Leigh and John Pantelireis Pror to his
retirement from the Board on 30 June
2010 the Committee was also served
by Anthony Green The Chairman of the
CSR Committee reports to the Board on
the Commuttea s proceedings after each
meeung on all matters within the scope
of its duties and responsibilities

The terms of reference of the CSR
Commitiee and further detaills regarding its
members are avallable on the Company s
website [www pzcussons com}

The censtituton of the CSR Commitiee
during the proryear and its activities during
2009/10 are indicative of the increased
focus and commitment which the Board
contnues to bring to CSA across the Group
Details of the mast significant acuvities are
setout In this report Irrespective of the
progress which the Committee has made
during the year, the Board recognises that
the ways In which the Group monitors

and manages the Impact of its activites
continue to evolve and 115 committed to
continuous mproverment of 1ts procedures
in this respect

The CSR Committee and the Board has
reviewed and endorsed this CSR report

‘Doing Good Business’

Durnng the year the CSR Committee has
developed a Statement on Corporate
Social Responsibility called Doing Good
Business which sets out the Group s key
values and principles

Recognising that doing the nght thing in
business can sometimes seem to involve
difficuit decisions the Statementis
intended 1o provide everyone throughout
the Group at alllevels within the business
with guidance on how to conduct their
business actvites and on what good
business locks fike at PZ Cussons It1s
also intended to motivate and support all
our employees to identify and vigorously
pursue opportunities across the Group o
optimise our acivities so far as their social
and environmental impact 1s concerned
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Corporate social responsibility
report continued

Inthe UK, a move to a In doing s it the belef of the Board and
the CSR Committee that we wili make our
new third party IOngthS business strenger more sustamnabte and
suU ppher reduced |Orry as a consequence more prefitable
miles associated with the The Statement has been rolled out across
movement of our products all of the Group s businesses and its
to distnbution centres by policies and principles apply to every
130,000 director manager and employee in ali our

businesses across our global operations

The Statement sets out the BiIg6 the six
principal areas inwhich our oparations
have the greatest potential to impact —
either favourably or adversely —upan our
stakeholders They are

— The environment

— Health and safety

Product testing and consumer safety
Business conduct and ethics

— Ouremployees

Local cammunity and charity

The Statement has 1ts foundation in our
CANDQC values being those core values
which are embedded in our culture

Courage
Accountability
- Networking
Drnve
Oneness

These values can be found across the
Group In every operation and every
terntory and provice the framewaork

for staff and ultirmately for the

Group to develop and succeed The
Statement draws on these values and
the expernences which have made

PZ Cussons the company which 1
today It also sets out our intentions and
asprrations for the future that asthe
Group develops and grows we will reman
true to cur core values and convictions
and continue to be a company which our
shareholders our customers the wider
community and our employees and their
farniies can be proud of

A copy of the full Doing Good Business
Statement on Corporate Social
Responsibility 1s avallable cn the Company s
website fwww pzcussons com)

The restof this report sets out In
respect of each of the Big 6 the values
and principles which are set out in the
Statement and the actions which have
been taken during the year This report
also addresses our future aspirations
including the further development of
CSR reporting and ingiudes a review of
the wader CSR benefits of the Group s
activities

The environment

We are committed to protecting the
environment for the benefit of our
employees and the public 8t large

In all decisions we take due account
of the potential environmental
impact of our operations and we

talke responsibility for the potential
environmental impact of our actions
—wae recognise the obligations which
business has to the envireanment and
we share the growing concerns of our
consumers and other stakeholders in this
respect Across the Group we continue
to mintmise the consumption of energy
and water as well as minimising the
production of trade waste and waste

1o landfill through efficient practices in
our offices factories and warghouses
We are committed to communicating
cur environmental pelicy to our
sharehalders employees contractors
and interested parties in order to establish
an environmentally responsible attitude
within our organisation

Wherever reasonably practicable, we
will use raw materials from sustainable
and environmentally frrendly sources
—1n 2010 the Group applied to become a
member of the Roundtable on Sustainable
Palm Ol (RSPO} A number of the Group s
products contain palm oif or its detvatives
and the CSR Committee and the Board
recognise the growing concerns over

the sourcing of palm o1l and the potential
for damage to the environment The
RSPQ 15 anot-for-profit association

which unites stakeholders from seven
sectors of the palm oil industry palm ail
producers palm ol processors or traders
consumer goods manufacturers retalers
banks and investors environmental




or nature conservation NGOs {(Non-
Governmental Organisations) and social

or developrmental NGCOs Its mission 1s

to advance the production procurement
and use of sustainable patm ol products
through the development mmplementation
and verification of credible global
standards and the engagement of
stakeholders throughout the supply chain
As a member of the RSPQ PZ Cussons
wil| make a ume bound commitment to
100% Certified Susiamnable Palm Ol wia
RSPQ approved supply chain mechanisms
and to promote and communicate
sustainable palm ol production
procurement and consumption to
customers suppliers sub-contractors and
to wider value chatns as approprate

We are comnmutted to reporting and
reducing the Group’s carbon footprint,
mimmisation of waste, efficient use
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of energy, water and other natural
resources n the office, factory and
warehouse environments and the
prevention of pollution — all PZ Cussons
manufacturing facilites have ongoing
energy reductioninitiatives to reduce
carbon dioxide output Examples of
initiatives during the year include
- the successful completton in Nigena of
Project Unity a £39 mullion investment
in manufactunng and supply chan
involving significant investment in
plant and machinery specifically
designad to be more energy efficient
to minimise atmospheric emissions
|to EU standards) and to significanily
reduce otherwastes We continue to
generate our own power for our sites
via gas generators resulung (i an overall
lower environmental impact than if we
were to take power from the Nigenan
grd Going forward we have employed
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Corporate social responsibility

report continued

external consultants 1o conduct a major
energy survey of the entire Nigenan
operation to identify further reductions
In emissions and savings

- changes in soap processing and
reduction in Steam generation and
electricity usage by our business Iin
Kenya resulting in significant savings in
operating costs a substantial reduction
in the carbon footprent of the business
and for the fourth year runming
recognition by the Kenya Association
of Manufacturers for optimisation of
energy use within its manufactunng
processes

— inthe UK amove to a new third party
logistics supplier reducing lofry miles
assoclated with the movement of our
products to distnbution centres by
130 000 over the penod November
2008 to May 2010 and

- in Poland manufactuning warehousing
and distnbution projects which
have reduced fuel consumphon and
greenhouse gas emissions throughout
the supply chan

The carbon footprint of each operation

1s now routinely momitored and reported
using internationally recognised protocols
The Group also conuinues to parucipate in
the Carbon Disclosure Project (the CDP s
an mdependent not-for-profit orgamsation
which holds one of the largest databases
of corporate climate change information
In the world and 1s considered the

gold standard for carbon disctosure
methodology and process)

We challenge our colleagues and

the business to pursue innovative
approaches to reducing the
environmental impact from our
products and processes —we believe that
the identfication effective control and
reduction of the environmental impact of
business actimties are integral elements
of well-managed operations and we are
committed to continuous measurement
and improvement of environmental
performance through appropnate product
design the minimisation of waste
etficient use of resources the prevention
of pollution and the protection of the
environment Examples of initiatives

dunng the year include

~ the elimunation or reduction of
packaging 1n a number of producis
n the UK in¢luding Oniginal Source
Charles Worthington Foamburst and
Morning Fresh and a transition to more
widely recyclable packaging for Impenal
Leather shower and bath products

— the reformulation of personal wash and
home care products by PZ Cussons UK
to significantly reduce surfactants going
into waste from UK homes

- niuiatives at Agecroft in the UK
the Group s Personal Wash Centre
of Excellence and our flagshipin
respect of environmentally sensiive
manufactunng processes resulting
Ina 16% reduction in trade effluent a
22% reduction in matenial to landfill a
13% reduction in energy usage a 36%
reducticn in total waste and a 10%
reduction in carbon and

= InAustrala the involvernent of
all employees in environmental
improvement projects resulting In an
environmental strategy and action plan
focused on reductions in trade waste
the emission of clean storm water and
clean air and on reductions In its use of
water and energy

The Group Risk Committee a standing
committee of the Board (details of which
are provided at page 46} ensures that

any environmental nsks which the Group
may face are properly identified assessed
and prionitised and that appropnate
arrangements are In place to manage and
mitigate those risks effecuvely

Health and Safaty

We provide safe working environments
for all our employees contractors and
vIsitors

We are committed to developing the
highest standards of occupational
health & safety across all parts of our
Group - health and safety 1s an integral
part of the business and 15 given equal
prionty with alt other aspects of business
management The Board has endersed
and established a Group Hezlth and Safety
Policy which sets out detalled guidefines
for all gperations across the Group Its

principles support the PZ Cussons Group
World Class Manufactuning system which
seeks over time to bring all operations
across the Group In ine with OHSAS
18001 Alioperations are audited against
these standards any shortfallis dentified
and assessed and, where appropriate
continuUoUs Improvement actions are
agreed and implemented

it 15 the responsibility of all employees
to mamntain and improve health and
safety We empower and encourage
our employees to report accidents,
ncidents and lapses in best practice
and to participate tn improvement
activities - we have constant dialogue
with cur employees across the Group
In respect of health and safety matters
Qur Group Health and Safety Policy has
established arrangements to ensure
we promote the participation of our
employees in developing promoting
matntaining end Jmproving health and
safety so that they
- acquire the necessary skills and
behaviours
- understand their responsibility to
themselves and their colleagues for
health and safety and
- are empowered and encouraged to
report accidents incidents and lapses
In best practice and to participate in
improvement actvities

We measure and monitor our health
and safety performance and target
continuous improvement — therg (s a
strong focus within the Group on using
key performance indicators and achieving
external hezlth and safety accreditation
The Group employs health and safety
spectahsts in all of our operating units
and health and safety commuttees with
cross functional and cross hierarchical
representation exist at all sites Where
appropnate PZ Cussons provides
on-site medical facilities and health
monitoring programmes for employees
Training 1s provided to all employees to
ensure complance with PZ Cussons
standards and we continue to build on
our tradhttonal programmes which focus
on workplace behaviours coupled with
helping employees understand any




We are committed to

developing the highest
standards of occupational
health and safety across all

parts of our Group
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personal health risks During the year

we have continuved investment in health
and safety with respect to reduction in
manual handiing requirements {Including
the installaton of automatic case packers
within our soap factory in Nigeria)

We conduct nsk assessments to identify
significant health and safety related
nsks which anse from all activities
undertaken including peniodic reviews
to ensure new activities and processes
are covered - at operating unit leve!
Group Healthand Safety Policy 1s
implemented to be consistent with the
business operating conditions and any
specific localiegal requirements Regular
audits are conducted by internal and
specialist external auditers at business
unit and departmental level to ensure
comphance with Group standards and
continuous Improvement In Australia

in particular continuing focus on health
and safety leadership education and
employee engagement has resulted

in significant reduction in lost tme
accidents

The Board regards health and safety as
atundamental business responsibility

and reviews health and safety matters

on aregularbasis Health and safetyis a
standing 1tem iar review by the Group Risk
Committee which ensuras that any related
nsks are properly identified assessed

and priontised and that appropnate action
1s taken to manage and mitigate those
nsks effectively The Chief Executive
Officer has ulbmate responsikility on the
Board for health and safety across the
Group and 1s a member of the Group Risk
Committee

Product testing and consumer safety
The health and safety of our consumers
1S our paramount consideration We will
never compromise it for any reason

We regularly assess products,
formulations, raw matenals, packaging
and labelling to ensure the health and
safety of our consumers, our employees
and all other stakeholders — as an ethical
and responsible suppher of consumer
products 1t 1s imperative for the Group
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Corporate social responsibility
report continued

As employees, we have the
courage to challenge any
business practices, whether
within or cutside the Group,
which we believe to be wrong
or Inconsistent with our
CANDO values

that our products are safe - for use by our
customers for our employees and for
the envirgnment

Product safety and nsk assessments

are conducted by appropnately qualified
external toxicologists and when
cansidered necessary {and with the
appropnate safeguards such as ethical
commuttee approval} human safety testing
1s conducted Human toxicological and
safety aspects of raw materials are taken
into consideration in the design process

In the design of our products by
qualified and experienced chemists
microbiologists and packaging experts
we ensure that the matenals which we
use meet or exceed all applicable legal
requirements {including EU and ASEAN
cosmetics directives and other local
requlatory requirements specified by
bodies such as NAFDAC in Nigena) We
also conform to guidelines and good
practice recommendations from vanous
cosmetic industry trade associations
such as the UK Cosmetics Toletres

and Perfumery Asscctation [CTPA} in
addiion the Group apphes internal and
self-imposed restrictions on the use

of certain materials above and beyond
legislative requirements as an addtional
measure to ensure product safety The

implementauon of Project Lifecycle
Management {PLM) software to manage
product development from initial concept
through product launch in the marketplace
to the end of its ifecycle ensures that

all legal regulatory and environmental
requirements are understood and met as
well as faciltaiing umely completon of
projects and rminirusation of cost

The quality and safety of our products 1s
further ensured through the PZ Cussons
Group World Class Manufactuning system
which ensuzes conformity to international
standards on Good Manufacturing
Practice (eg ISC 22716) and adherence

o strngent product quahty controls

We are also over time aiming to bring

all operations across the Group in ine
with 1SO 8001 in respect of Quality
Management Systems

PZ Cussons monitors the world regulatory
environment to ensure that we 1ake
appropriate action at the correci ime to
maintain product and process compliance
We have assigned considerable resource
to ensuning that we futly comply wath

the requirements of EU regulations

such as REACH (the Registration
Evaluation Authensaton and Restnction
ot Chemicals) which seeks to provide an
improved level of protection of human




health and the environment through

the responsible use of chermicals Al

all European sites we are also actively
implementing the United Nations
Globally Harmonised System (GHS) as
enacted within the European Union as the
Classification Labelling and Packaging {of
Chemucals) Regulations In all other parts
of the Group we continue to momtor how
the GHS will be implemented in local taw
and we are commutted to full compliance

In the highly unlikely event of a quality
problem being identified externally 10 our
supply chan we have established matenal
traceability and Group specified product
recall procedures to ensure that any 1ISsue
can be promptly and safely addressed

We evaluate our supphiers to ensure that
thetr production facilities, procedures
and products are of a conststent and
appropnate quality and meet our Group
standards — using auditors who are trained
to recognised international standards we
conduct extensive audits of our third party
suppliers of products and raw matenals to
ensure that they meet PZ Cussons stnct
product safety and qualty requirements
We also confirm that suppiliers have
suntable emergency procedures in place
10 ensure business continuity

We do not conduct any ammal testing
or commussion others to conduct any
animal testing unless required by law
—the Group does not conduct any animal
testing or commussion others to conduct
any armimal testing We continue to
support the development and acceptance
of alternative methods which reduce or
replace the use of animals in product
safety evaluation and we work with our
supphers to ensure that our values on this
subject are shared and where feasible
that they work to similar standards

Business conduct and ethics

We demonstrate ethical behaviour in our
business actwties and in our dealings
with third parties

As employees, we have the courage
to challenge any business practices,
whether wittun or outside the Group,

which we believe to be wrong or
inconsistent with our CANDO values
—the Group has continued 1o actively
operate the Speak Up policy which

was first implemented dunng 2008
Speak Up has been established to
encourage employees to voice any
concerns which they might haven
respect of business practices throughout
the Group and Is designed (o ensure

that employees may report any such
1Issues confidentially and without fear of
recrimination through a telephone hotline
and onhne facility provided by a third
party expert Speak Up Is particularly
focused on any allegation or concern

of malpractice {including concemns over
breaches of health and safety criminal
activaty or fraud and breaches of local
laws or envirenmental regulations) and
Incorporates procedures which ensure
that any such issues can be brought
promptly 1o the atiention of the Board and
addressed at the earhest opportunity

We strongly condemn and shall have
no involvement whatsoever in forced
laboutr, child slavery or any practice
which 1s exploitative of children or
exposes them to risk of harm We

will hot work with third parties who
are involved In any such practices - as
part of our supplier audit programme we
also ensure that our suppliers of fimshed
product and raw matenals adhere to our
values with respect lo employee labour
practices In particular we ensure that no
suppher s using forced or child labour

The Siatement also records and

reflects the value which we place on

our relationships with our customers
suppliers and other business partners

and makes a commutrment 1o demonstrate
respect and integnty in all our dealings
with them The Statement also sets out
our rejection of corruption in all its forms
including extortuon and bribery and our
commitment as a Group not to enter into
any arrangernent which might restrict

fair competition in our relationships with
customers suppliers and competitors

We expect our suppliers and contractors
to demonstrate similar high ethical
standards and we take due account of this

PZ Cussons Plc
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We continue to develop a
performance-driven culture
which supports motivated
people who are passionate
about our future

when establishing or continuing business
relationships

QOur employees

We treat each other with respect and all
employees have the right to expect that
their dignity will be fully respected in the
workplace

We are committed to creating an
environment in which all employees
have the opportunity to reach ther full
potential - 35 an International group with
a presence in anumbper of developing
countries we focus significant resource
on the employment and development

of local employees both to improve our
operations n those countries and to bnng
benefit to the wider local commurity In
domng so we recognise that the success
of our business i1s dependent upon the
qualty commitment and behaviour of our
employees Accordingly, we provide clear
policies and direction to our managers
and stnive for the highast standards in
management practices delivering traiming
and development programmes and
reward arrangements which are tallored
to meet the needs of our busingss and the
local markets inwhich we operate

We continue to develop a performance-
driven culture which supports motivated
people who are passionate about cur
future We beleve that to achieve our
business objectives we should encourage
our employees to ernbrrace our CANDO
values and reflect those values in
everything which they do We am to
retain and develop our employees and to
help thern to fulfil their career potentiaf
We value diversity In our employees
backgrounds talent nsight educationand
experience and believe this contributes

to our continued success by Increasing
innovation ennching decision making

and improving commumcations with our
stakeholders

During the year the Group continued

1o run graduate development schemes
particularly in developing world
terntones toruntraining programmes in
manufacturing environments to ensure
that we meet international standards
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report continued

throughout our manufactunng processes
in terms of quality environment and
health and safety to offer awide

range of development opportunities to
support the continuous professional and
personal development of our employees
and to establish appropriate incentive
programmes at all levels of the

business from senior management

to factory staff

We do not discriminate i any aspect
of employment on grounds of race,
religton, colour, ethnig or national
background, age, disabiity, political
affilatton, umon membership, gender,
sexual orientation or marital status
—the employment policies of the

Group embody the principles of equal
opportunity and these are fundamental
to the way in which we conduct our
business We operate procedures to
support the Group s policy that disabled
persons shall be fairly considered for
appropnate employment and subsequent
traiming and career development

We encourage and promote a healthy
balance between our employees’
working and personal hves and we
respect the commitments which our
employees have outside of the work
place We respect the rights of all to
rest and leisure including pertodic paid
holidays and the reasonable hmitation
of working hours - we take steps to
ensure full complance with apphcable
national laws and industry standards on
working hours and all cther employment
regulations As part of our commitmeny
to our employees we continued to
expand our work/Aife balance programmes
to encourage people to balance their
work life with their personal hifg through
flexibte hours of working job sharing and
opportuniues to work from home

As part of the ongoing review of staff
welfare and benefits the Group continues
to make available to all UK employees an
Employee Assistance Pregramme (EAP)
The EAP 1s a 24 hour phone helphne which
is avarlable to employees should they

wish to dIscuss any 1Ssues personal or
work related in confidence with a trained

professional The obiective of the EAP 1S
to assist in the identification and resolution
of the vanous problems strains and 1ssues
which everyone faces from tme to time
and which can affect work performance
Surveys are undertaken to measure and
monior employee satisfaction wathin

the Group The results of these surveys
are used to Improve cormmunication
motivation and engagement across

the bustness

We are committed to timely and
effective two-way communication with
our employees ~ the relaunch dunng the
year of a Group-wide intranet {(Wazobia
meaning welcome In Nigerian dialects)
has improved communication across

the Group both up and down through
the orgamsation This ensures that our
emplayees across the world are better
infermed about ongoing iIniiatives and
matters of impaortance to them and also
that they are able to contribute to the
development ot the Group s strategy
The Beard 1s committed to continuing
the development and improvemnent of
communications across the Group In
2010/11 and beyond

Other principles set out in the Statement
include the night to jain {or not join) a
trade union a Group-wide commitment
not to employ any person below the
local legal working age and not, in any
circumstances below the age of 16 and
the guarantee that all of the Group s
businesses will pay wages which at a
mimmum meet all relevant local legal
standards

Local commumty and chanty

We recognmise our responsibilities to
society and in particular to the locat
communities in which we operate We are
committed to enriching the hves of our
local communities Wherever we operate
we ensure that our acuvites do not have
any material adverse environmental or
social impact upon local communities

We encourage, promote and support
involvement by our Group businesses
and employees in local community
and chantable initatives through

the allocation of financial and other
resoLrces

PZ Cussons has operatons in 10
countrigs and employs over 8 000
peaple woddwide We are committed
to establishing and maintaining strong
relationships with communily groups
building goodwill and a reputation as a
good employer

We seek (o support the local communites

in which our employees live and work by

making donations te and working with local

charities and mvesting the tme and skills of

our employees We priontise community

and chantable intiatives which are

- relevant to the local communities in
which we operate

— relevant to our producis or the
businesses which we carry out across
the Group and

- related o the provision of fresh water
sanitaton health and hygiene and
education

Examples of nttiatives across the Group in
2010 are setout below
— throughout our long involvement in
MNigera the Group has always 1aken
very senously 1ts responsibiities as one
of the country s ieading companies and
employers and we have supported a
wide range of initiatives and projects
over the years to assist the country s
development and to improve the quality
of hfe of its ciuzens The PZ Cussons
Nigena Foundation was founded in
2007 tobnng greater focus to those
actvities The Foundation was mandated
to support projects in Nigena in respect
of transport and roads and other
infrastructural iImprovements relating to
the provision of fresh water sanitation
health and education The Foundation
funds and mplements projects which
- focus on people and community
development in locations where the
Group operates
- promote the well being of local
people
— are sustainable and
- produce innovative solutions which
can be easily replicated throughout
the country




Recent projects have included the
introduction of solar equipment to power
a number of the faciities cammissioned
In earlier phases including the recreational
park it Hlupeyu The provision by the
Foundation of well equipped classrooms
and portable drinking water has now

had a positive impact in mere than 13
communities in Nigeria

Durning the year PZ Cussons Nigeria Plc
donated approximately £125 000 1o the
Foundation and PZ Cussons Plc donated a
further £125 000

- Asa Group we are pleased to continue
to work with the Seashell Trust as one
of Its pnincipal partners The Seashall
Trust 1s a registered chanty which
provedes education and residental
care for people with communication
difficulties from across the UK The
complex needs of therr students
may anse from a combination of
multi-sensory impairments and PZ
Cussons has worked with the Seashell
Trust 10 devise a range of smells and
fragrances for intraduction into their
learning programmes and to help with
the development of communication
skills Inaddinon to the work which we
are doing with studenis we are also
working in partnership with the Trust
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We recognise our
responsiblities to society
and, in particular, to the local
communities in which we
operate We are committed
to enriching the lives of our
local communities

to explore ways of commerciahsing the
tools and processes which have been
developed to the benefit of both parttes

- PZ Cussons UK 1s an active member
of Business in the Community
an organisation whach works with
companies which make a commitment
to socialissues and responsible
business practice As part of this the
UK business participates in the Prince s
May Day Network which s the UK s
largest group of businesses committed
to taking acton on chmate change
and during the year 1t has increased
its involvement in local educational
institutions

- PZ Cussons Australia has forged
strong ties wath a local school catering
especially for disadvantaged children
with specal needs Initiatives include
career visits the develepment of
interview skills mentonng and
the sponsorship of state awards
recognising achievements in vocational
studies The Australan business
also partners with a local university
io provide work experience and
apprenticeships

— Qur Kenyanbusiness Is a participant in
the Nairobi Greenhine Initiative a project
launched by the Kenyan Association of
Manufacturers \n partnership with the
Kenya Wildlfe Service to preserve the
Nairobi National Park
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Board of Directors

Executive Directors

Alex Kanellis

Group Chief Executive {age 45)

Mr Kanellis has & Phd in mechanical
engineenng He joined PZ Cussons

1IN 1993 He was appointed Managing
Director of the Group s business in
Thailand in 1988 before becoming
Managing Director of Indonesia in 2001
He was appeinted to the Board in 2003 as
Regional Dsrector of Asia becoming Chief
Executive in June 2006 Mr Kanellis s a
member of the Nomination Group Risk
and CSR Committees

Chnis Davis

Commercial Director {age 48}

After working in senior Sales & Marketing
roles for vanous Consumer Goods
companies Mr Dawis joined PZ Cussons
fram the BTR Nylex Group in 1993

and became Managing Director of the
Group s business in Austraha in 2001

He was appointed to the Board in 2006
as Regional Director of Afnica and became
Group Commercial Cirectorin 2008

Mr Dawvis 1s a mernber of the Group Risk
and CSR Commuttees

Brandaon Leigh

Group Finance Director (age 39)

Mr Lesgh quabified as a chartered
accountant with Delottte & Touche In
1996 He joined PZ Cussons in 1397 and
was appointed to the Board as Group
Finance Director in 2006 Mr Leigh is

a member of the Group Risk and CSR
Committeas

John Pantelireis

Supply Chain Director {age 56)

Mr Pantelireis was appaointed an Executive
Director of PZ Cussons Plg in 2005 and

1s a member of the Group Risk and CSR
Committees He has worked In a vartety
of senior positions for PZ Cussons both in
Nigena and the UK and spent three years
as Supply Chain Development Director
pnor to his appointment o the Board

Independent Non-executive Directors
Richard Harvey (age 60}

Mr Harvey was appointed a Non-executive
Director of PZ Cussons Plc in January
2010 and took up the position of Non-
executve Chairman on 1 July 2010

A Fellow of the Insuute of Actuanes

Mr Harvey became Group Chief Executive
Officer of Norwich Union plc in 1988 and
subsequently Group Chief Executive of
Aviva plc intally branded CGNU after the
merger of Norwich Union with CGU He
has worked extensively overseas in both
mature and emerging markets and was
Charr of the Association of British Insurers
from 2003-2005 Singe retining from Aviva
plcin 2007 Mr Harvey has spent time in
Africa supporting chantable iniatives

and has alsco worked on other projects

to accelerate business development

in Afnca including work for the Afnca
Progress Panel and the World Bank He s
a Non-executive Director of Jardine Lloyd
Thompson Plc Mr Harvey i1s the Chairman
of the Nomination Committee and a
member of the CSR Committee

Derek Lewis {age 65}

Mr Lewis has been a Non-executive
Director of PZ Cussons Plc since June
2004 A reured solicitor and former partner
of Addleshaw Goddard LLP Mr Lewis
specialised throughout s professional
career in advising on corporate and
commercial matiers Mr Lewis s the
Senior Non-executive Director and a
member of the Nominatton Remuneration
and Audit Commitiees

Professor John Arnold [age 66)

John Arngld ts Emeritus Professor of
Accounting and Financial Management

at Manchester Business School and

has been a Non-executive Director of

PZ Cussons Plc since January 2007 A
chartered accountant and Chairman of
Manchester Business School Incubator
Limited his previous expenence includes
spending 12 years as Director and Dean of

Manchester Business School Professer
Arnold s currently Chairman of the
Co-operauve Performance Commitiee

of Co-operatives UK a Director of the
Greater Manchester Chamber Chairman
of Feelgood Theatre Productions and

an academic adviser to Ashndge and 1o
|BS-ISCTE Business School in Lisbon
Professor Amold 1s Chairman of the Audit
Committeeand the Group Risk Commuittee
and a member oi the Nomination and
Remuneration Committees

Simon Heale {age 57)

Mr Heale was appointed a Non-

executive Director of PZ Cussons Plc
in.January 2008 and 1s Chairman of the
CSR Committee and a member of the
Nomination Remuneration and Audit
Committees A chartered accountant

Mr Heale has worked in a vanety of senior
positions for multi-national companies in
Amenca and the Far East and spent five
years as Chief Executive of the London
Metal Exchange Mr Heale1s a Non-
executive Director of The Morgan Crucible
Company Lid Kazakhmys plc Marex
Financial intenm Non-executive Chairman
of Panmure Gordon & Co Ltd and a trustee
of Macmillan Cancer Support

James Steel {age 50)

Mr Steel has heen a Non-executive
Director of PZ Cussons Ple since October
2005 MrSteel 1s currently Managing
Director of Corporate Finance at Arbuthnot
Securitiestid He was previously

a Managing Director of European
investment banking at Citigroup and a
Director in the corporate finance division
of Schroders wheeh he joined in 1986 after
gualifying as a chartered accountant

Mr Steel s Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the
Normination and Audit Commitiees
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Report of the Directors

Prnincipal activities

The principal actvities of the Group are the manufacture and distribution of soaps detergents tolletnes pharmaceuticals electncal
goods edible oiis fats and spreads and nutntional products The subsidiary undertakings and joint ventures principally affecting the
profits liabihues or assets of the Group are hsted in note 31 of the consolidated financial statements

Results and dividends
A summary of the Group s results for the year 15 set out in the Financial Review on pages 6 and 7 of the annual report

The Directors recommend a final dwvidend of 3 97p (2009 4 085p) per Ordinary Share to be paid on 8 October 2070 to ordinary
shareholders on the register at the close of business on 20 August 2010 which together with the intenm dvidend of 1 93p (2009
1185p} paid on 1 Apr! 2010 makes a total of 5 90p for the year (2009 5 27p)

Directors

Executive Directors

Alex Kanellis - Group Chief Executive
Chns Davis - Commercial Director
Brandon Leigh - Group Finance Director
John Pantelirers — Supply Chain Director

Independent Non-executive Directors
Richard Harvey

Derek Lewis

Professor John Arncld

Simon Heale

James Steel

During the year the Board was also served by Anthony Green as Executive Chairman and Graham Calder as Deputy Chairman untl
their retirements on 30 June 2010 and 31 March 2010 respectively

As Non-executive Directors Professor Arnold and Messrs Harvey bewis Heale and Steel do not have service contracts Details of the
letter of engagement relating to each are set gut under the heading Service Contracts within the Report on Directors remuneration

Under the Company's Articles of Association all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and 10 re-election by shareholders at
intervals of no more than three years and any Director who 1s appointed durning the year s required 1o retire and seek re-election at the
next Annual Generali Meeting The Directors retinng by rotation prior to the 2010 Annual General Meeting are Professor Arnold and
Messrs Kanellis and Lewts each of whom being eligible offers htmself for re-election Mr Harvey having been appointad dunng the
year Iis retiring prior to the 2010 Annual General Meeting and being eligible offers himself for election

The evaluation of the Board as reported within the Report on Corparate Governance concluded that each of the Directors oifering
timself for re-etection continues to demonstrate eftectiveness and commitment to his particular role and the re-election of each is
accordingly recommended by the Board

33
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Report of the Directors continued

Directors’ interests
The Directors interests it the share capital of the Company at 31 May 2010 together with their interests at 1 June 2009 are detalled

below

Crdinary shares

2010 2009

Number Number

Beneficial
Mr A J Green 62,403,690 62 403 690
Mr G A Kanellis 262,239 101 767
Prof J A Arnold 13,450 13 450
MrC G Davis 170,761 157 380
Mr R J Harvey 4,535 -
MrS J N Heale 8,000 8000
Mr B H Leigh 62,666 45999
Mr D W Lewis 40,000 40,000
MrJ Panielreis 95,676 77 000
MrJ T J Steel 37,500 37500
Total 63,103,222 62 B84 786
Non-heneficial
Mr A J Green 6,926,080 6 926 080
Total 70,029,302 69 810 866

Notes

1 Thefigures in the tables do not include 1 874 245(2009 1837 727} Ordinary Shares purchased by the Employee Share Option Trust {ESQT) at 31 May 2010
Tha ESQT 15 a discretionary trust ungder which the class of benaficiaries who may benefit compnsas certain employees and former employees of the Company
and 1ts subsihanes including members of such employses and former employees immediate familes Some or all of the shares held in the ESOT may be
the subject ot awards to Executive Directors of the Company under the PZ Cussons Pic Deferred Annual Share Bonus Scheme the PZ Cussons Ple Executive
Share Option Schema and/or the PZ Cussons Plc Performance Share Plan details of each of which are givenin the Report on Directors remuneration
Accordingly these Executive Directors are included i the class of beneficianes and are deemad 10 have a benehicial interest in all the shares acquired by the
ESOT

2 The figures in the tables do not melude aptions granted over ordinary shares under the PZ Cussans Ple Executive Share Option Scheme conditional shares
granted under the PZ Cussons Plc Performance Share Plan or deferred shares granted (but not vet transferred 1o parucipants) under the PZ Cussans Plc
Deterred Annual Share Banus Scheme as at 31 May 2010 Details are shawn in the table of Directors interests in shares under shara incentive arrangements gn
page 41

There have been no changes in the interests of any of the Directors between 31 May 2010 and the date of this report save that

Mr Harvey purchased on 30 June 2010 an additional 3 705 shares pursuant to a share trading plan The register recording the
Directors interests will be open for nspection at the 2010 Annial General Meeting No Director had any beneficial interest during
the year in shares or debentures of any subsidhary company Save for their service contracts or letters of appointment there were no
contracis of significance subsisting during er at the end of the financial year with the Company or any of 1ts subsidianes in which a
Durector of the Company was matenally interested

During the year the Company maintained liability insurance for nns Directors and officers and pension fund trustee lrability insurance
for Mr Green Mr Calder Mr Kanellis Mr Davis Mr Leigh and Mr Pantelireis in their capacity as trustees of certain of the Group s
pension funds

Other substantial interests
The register maintained by the Company under section 808 of the Companies Act 2006 disclosed the fotlowing interests in the shares
of the Company heid at 27 July 2010

Number of
shares %
J B Zochonis 60 619 580 1414
Zochonis Chantable Trust 49 835 040 1162
M&G 42 220 859 o984
Mrs C M Green Settlement 20 328 280 474
J B Zochonis Settlement 19927 130 465

No shares were 1ssued during the year Further information about the Company s share capital 1s given in note 24 of the consolidated
financial statements

Political and chantable contnbutions
Charitable contributions in the United Kingdom during the year amounted to £360 000 (2009 £343000) No political contributions
were made (2009 nil}
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Research and development

The Group maintains in-house facilities for research and development in the United Kingdom Poland Indonesia Waest Africa

and Australia in addition research and development 1s sub-contracted to approved external organisations Currently all such
expenditure 1s charged against profit In the year in which it 1s incurred as it does not meet the criteria for capitalisation under IAS 38
Intangible assets

Payment of suppliers

The Group does not follow any code or statement an payment practice It1s the responsibility of the management of each operating
unit wathin the Group to agree appropriate terms of business with supphers upon entering into binding contracts and to adhere to
these payment terms provided the relevant goods or services have been supplied in accordance with contractual obhigations The
Group creditor days ratio i1s disclosed 1n note 19 of the consolidated financiat statements

Employment of disabled persons

During the year the Group has maintained its pelicy of providing equal opportunities for the appropnate employment training and
development of disabled persons Further information regarding the Company s policies in this respect are set out within the reporg
on page 89

Employee nformation

The Group recogrises the benefits of keeping employees informed of the progress of the business and of invelving them n

their company s performance The methods of achieving such involvement are different in each company and country and have
been developed over the years by local management working with local employees i ways which suit ther particular needs and
environment with the active encouragement of the parent organisation

Auditor

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP has signified its willingness to continue In office as Auditor to the Companyand 0 accordance
with section 485 of the Companies Act 2006 a resolution for its appointment will be proposed at the farthcorming Annual
General Meeting

Enhanced business review
Areview of the functional performance of the Group 1s provided on pages 6 to 19

Principal nsks and uncertainties facing the Group
The Group s business activities financial condition and resulss of operations could be affected by a varnety of nsks or uncertantes
These are summarised in the Principal Risks and Uncertainties section on pages 2010 21

Annual General Meeating

The Company s 2010 Annual General Meeting wilt be held at the Company s Registered Office Manchester Business Park
3500 Avrator Way Mancheaster M22 5TG at 10 30am on 13 September 2610 The resolutions which will be proposed at the 2010
Annual General Meeting are set out In the separate Notice of Annual General Mesting which accompanies this Annual Report
and Financial Statements

Share Capital
As at 31 May 2010 the Company s i1ssued share capital consisted of 428 724 960 Ordinary Shares of 1peach

Rights and Oblhigations attaching to shares

Subject to applicable statutes and other shareholders nghts shares may be issued with such nghts and restrictions as the
Company may by ordinary resolution decide or if there s no such resolution or so far as it does not make spectiic provision as the
Boarg may decrde

Restrictions on Voting
Unless the Board decides otherwise no member shall be entitled to vote at any meeting in respact of any shares held by that
member If any call or other sum which s then payable by that member in respect of that share remains unpad

Powers of Directors
Subject to the Company s Memorandum and Articles of Association, the Companies Act and any directions given by spectal
resolution the business of the Company will be managed by the Board who may exercise all the powers of the Company

Purchase of own shares

Pursuant to shareholder approval given at the 2009 Annual General Meeting the Company 1s authonsed to make market purchases
of its own Ordinary Shares The Directors intend to seek renewal of this authonty at future Annual General Meetings incluging the
2010 Annual General Meeting No shares weare purchased from 1 June 2009 to 27 July 2010(2009 i) (other than the acquisitions
undertaken by the ESOT (see note 25))
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Report of the Directors continued

Restrictions on the transfer of securities

There are no restrictions on the transfer of secunties in the Company except

— That certain restrictions may from tme to tme be imposed by taws and regulations (for example insider trading) and

— Pursuant to the Listing Rutes of the Financial Services Authonty whereby certain employees of the Company reguire the approval
of the Company to deal in the Company § Crdinary Shares

Directors’ Statement as to disclosure of information to the Auditor

In the case of each of the persons who were Directors of the Company at the date when this report was approved

— sofar as each of the Directors 1s aware there is no relevant audit information (as defined by the Companies Act 2006} of which the
Company s Auditor 1S unaware and

- each of the Directors has taken all the steps that he cught to have taken as Director to make himself aware of any relevant audit
informaticn and to establish that the Company s Auditor 1s aware of that information

This informatien i1s given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provision of section 418(2) of Companies Act 2006
By grieyof the Board of Directors

AN~

Mr S P'Plant
Company Secretary
27 July 2070
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Report on Directors’ remuneration

This report en Directors remuneration has been prepared in accordance with the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups
{Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 and sausfies the requirements of the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority
A resolution to approve the report will be proposed at the 2010 Annual General Meeting

The information on pages 41 to 43 relaung to Directors interests in shares under incentive arrangements remuneration dunng the
vear ended 31 May 2010 and Directers pension benefits constitites audited information

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneraticn Committee of the Board { the Committee’) 1s responsible for determiming and agreeing with the Board the
remuneration policy for Executive Directors The Committee Is also responsible for determining wiathin such policy the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors the Chairman and the Company Secretary and for approving the design and operation of
all share-based incantive schemes for the Executive Directors and semor rmanagement The Committee meets at least twice ayear
and met on five occasions during the year ended 31 May 2010 The Comnttee s current Terms of Reference which are reviewed
annually are avatlable on the Company s website (www pzcussons com)

The members of the Committee dunng the year were Mr Steel {Committee Chairman} Professor Arnold Mr Heale and Mr Lewis
Each ts a Non-executive Director of the Company and all are independent of management and have no conflicts of interest or any
day-to-day involvement in running the business The remuneration of the Non-executive Direcilors (with the exception since his
appeintment as Nen-executive Chairman on 1 Juty 2010 of Mr Harvey) 1s determined by the Board of Directors No Directoris
involved 1n any decisions on the level and composition of his own remuneration

The Commuttee was adwvised generally in relaton to Directors remenaration durning the year by Delostte LLP Deloitte LLP has not
provided any other matenal services to the Group during the year

During the year the Committee consulted Mr Green and Mr Harvey (in their respective capacities as Executive Chairman and
Nen-executive Chairman-designate) on issues where therr experience and knowledge have been of benefit to its deliberations and
each attended meetings by invitation The Chief Executive has also been consulted on proposals relaung to the remuneration of
members of the Group s senior management team and he too attends meetings by invitation Nerther MrGreen Mr Harvey nor the
Cheef Executive attend when the matters under consideration concern therr own personal rtemuneration The Company Secretary acts
as Secretary to the Committee and attends Commuttee meetings {save where his own remuneration is under consideration)

Policy on Executive Directors” remuneration

The Group s palicy 1s that the remuneration arrangements for Executive Directors should

— be sufficient to rectuit motivate and retain executives of the cahbre required

— be aligned with the enhancement of sustainable shareholder value

— provide a competitive level of remuneration against companies of similar size and complexity

- be structured such that an appropriate proportion of the remuneration package inks reward to corporate and indwidual
performance over the short medium and long-term and

- recognise the long-term ambitions of the Company

The principal elements of each Executive Diregtor s remuneration package comprise

basic saiary and benefits

pension benefits

participation in an annual bonus scheme and

partcipation in the PZ Cussons Plc Performance Share Plan { the Performance Share Plan }

1

In designing an appropriate incentive structure for the Executive Directors and other senior management the Commitiee seeks
to set challenging performance critena which are aligned with the Group s bustness strategy and the enhancement of sustained
shareholder value The Comrmttee 1s also mindful of the need to avoid inadvertently encouraging risky orurespensible hehaviour
including behaviour which could raise envirocnmental social or governance 155ues

The Committee receives updates on pay and employment conditions applying to other Group employees these are taken into
consideration when setting Executive Directors remuneration consistent with the Group s general aim of seeking 10 reward all
employees fairly according 1o the nature of their role their performance and market forces
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Report on Directors’ remuneration continued

Balance of fixed versus vanable remuneration

The Committee believes that an appropriate proportion of the executive remuneration package should be vanable and performance-
related in order to encourage and reward superior corporate and individual performance The following chart illustrates the balance
between fixed and varniable remuneration for Executive Directors based on the current policy

Balance of fixed versus variable pay

2009/10 review of executive remuneration arrangements
As in previous years the Committea considered and reviewed the effectiveness of executive remuneraiion arrangements
The Committee took adwice from Deloitte LLP and consulted with the Company s majar shareholders in developing proposals

The outcome of the review was a decision to alter the annual bonus arrangements so that subject 10 meeting enhanced share
ownership thresholds Exscutive Direclors may receive and retain the whole of any annual bonus in cash {for 2010/11 and beyond)
rather than in 3 mixture of cash and deferred shares The Commuttee beleves that this willimprove the motivational effect of the
annual bonus arrangements while the simuitaneous enhancement of the Company s shareheolding guidelines combined with the
extension of the previous share investment requirement {described below} will maintain the exisung alignment of Executive Directors
nterests with those of shareholders and preserve an acceptable nsk profile No changes were made to the target and maximum
annual and long-term incentive opportunities open to Exacutive Directors for 2010/11

Basic salary and benefits
Executive Directors salares are normally reviewed annually taking account of various factors including ndividual perforrmance
remuneration levels (n companies of simiiar size and complexity and pay conditions elsewhere in the Group

Executive Directors satanes were raviewed with effect from 1 June 2009 and details wera included within the Report on Drirectors
Remuneration for the year ended 31 May 2009 No further changes were made to salanes or save as set out In relation to annual
bonus arrangements to any other elements of the Executive Directors remuneration packages durnng the year ended 31 May 2010

It s Intended that in future Executive Directors salanes should be reviewed with effect from 1 September each year Details of
the revised salanes In respect of the year ending 31 May 2011 (which will be effective from 1 September 2010 but on a one-time
basis backdated to 1 June 2010 to reflect the change in the date of the review) are set out in the notes 10 the table on Directors
remuneration on page 42

Taxable benefits which are subject to periodic review include hife assurance health insurance and car benefits

Pension benefits

Since 1 June 2008 Executive Directors have participated tn a defined contnbution pension scherme under which the Group pays a
contnbution of 20% of salary into the scheme on their behalf subject to a minimum employee contnbution of 5% of salary Executive
Orrectors whose pension benefils have exceeded or are forecast to exceed the hife time allowance are eigible at the discretion of the
Committee to recerve a cash payment of 20% of salary in heu of emplayer pension contributions

Upto 31 May 2008 Executive Directors participated in a defined benefit pension scheme which provided benefits of up to two thirds
ot final salary subject to a scheme-specific earnings cap With effect from 1 June 2008 no further benefiis accrue under the defined
benefit scheme although the benefits payable will remain inked to salary untit 31 May 2013 tin ing with arrangements pertaning to

all members of the scheme when it was closed to future accrual Further detail on Executive Directors benefits under the defined
benefit pension scherme are set out in the table on page 43
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Annual Bonus Scheme

Executive Directors and key senior executives are generally eligible to parucipate in an annual bonus scheme In respect of the year
ended 31 May 2010 Executive Directors (other than Mr Green the Executive Chairman ang in view af his planned retirement Mr
Calder) participated in the Deferred Annual Share Bonus Scheme pursuant to which they were eligible to earn an annual bonus linked
to petformance targets established by the Commitiee For the year ended 31 May 2010 Executive Directors could receive a bonus

of up to 80%" of basic salary {with 60%* of salary payable at target] dependant upon the achievement of profit before taxation net
working capital and operating contribution targets and pavable as to 50% in cash and 50% i deferred shares based on the share
price on 1June 2009 These targets and bonus levels were established at the beginning of the year no changes were made during
the year

In view of his ptanned retirement Mr Calder was subject 1o separate arrangements providing for a maximum bonus of 70% of annual
basic salary calculated on a pro rata basis up to the date of s retirement and payable in cash against theachievement of simitar
targets to other Executive Directors

Deferred shares awarded under the Deferred Annual Share Banus Scheme are normally received by parucipants following and
conditional only upan three years of continuing employment from the date of the grant of the award Dunng the deferral period and
subject to conunued employment indmvduals who have been awarded deferred shares under the schemerecerve cash payments
equal to the dividends which would have been payable on such shares at the same time as shareholders inthe Company recewve
dividends Sufficient shares to satisfy such deferred awards are generally purchased in the market and retaned i an employee
benefit trust pending therr transter to participants Further details regarding the employee benefit trust are given in note 25 of the
consoldated financial statements

Bonuses awarded in respect of the achieverment of targets for the year ended 31 May 2010 are included in the table on Directors
remuneration on page 42

The ehgibility of the Executive Directors to earn an annual bonus in respect of the year ended 31 May 2011 has been set at similar

percentages of salary to those in the year ended 31 May 2010 and 1s dependent upen the achievemant of certain profit before

taxation net working capital and operating contribution margin targets for the Group As discussed above any bonus for the year

ended 31 May 201115 payabte wholly in cash ‘

* These percentages may be exceeded in exceptional cases at the discretion of the Comrmttes but were not exceeded during the vear ended 31 May 2010 \

Performance Share Plan
Executive Directors and certain key senior executives are also generally eligible for participauon in the Company s Performance Share |
Plan which provides for the grant of condittenat nghts to recewve shares subject to continued employment over a three year vesting

peniod and the satisfacuon of certain performance criteria established by the Committee

Annual awards to any participant are imited to nghts over shares with a market value at the time of grantequal to 100% of basic |
satary” Duning the year ended 31 May 2010 awards were made to the Executive Directors over shares witha value equal to 100%

of basic salary (save that no award was made either to Mr Green the Executive Chairman or in view of his planned retrement to ‘
Mr Calder) These awards are subject 1o adjusted earrings per share growth targets measured over the single three year performance

period commencing on 1 June 2009 The Committee considers adjusted earnings per share to be an imporant indicator of the ‘
Company s underlying financial performance providing a clear line of sight for executives between their performance and potential

reward Further details of these performance conditions are set out in the notes to the table setting out Cirectors interests in shares

under incentive arrangements on page 41

It1s the Committee s intention to make further awards to Executive Directors on the same basis duning the year ending 31 May 2011
Such awards are expected to be subject to similar performance targets measured over a three year performance period commencing
on 1June 20710

* This percentage may ba increased t 150% in exceptional cases at the discretion of the Commuties

Executive Share Option Scheme

Prior te the adoption by the Company of the Performance Share Plan in 2008 Executive Directors {other than the Executive Chairman)
and certain other semor executives were generally eligible for the grant of options under the PZ Cussens Plc Executive Share Option
Scheme There have been no grants of options under the Executive Share Option Scherne duning the yearended 31 May 2010 and 1t
15 not expected that any further awards will be made under this scheme any future share-based incentive awards are expected to be
made instead under the Performance Share Pian

The adjusted earnings per share performance conditions have been met i respect of option awards made in 2007 and such awards
are expected to vestin full on 6 August 2010 (being the third annwversary of the award date)

All other options made under the Executive Share Opuon Scheme have now either vested {and are capable of exercise) or have
lapsed
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Report on Directors’ remuneration continued

Limits on shares 1ssued to satisfy share incentive plans

The Company's share incentive plans may operate over new issued Ordinary Shares treasury shares or Ordinary Shares purchased in
the market In relation to all the Company s share incentive plans, the Company may not 1n any ten year period issue (or grant rights
10 1ssue) more than 10% of the issued Ordinary Share capital of the Company to satisfy awards to parucipants nor more than 5% of
the 1ssued Ordinary Share capital for executive share plans

Sharehoiding gurdelines for Directors

As discussed above under 2009/10 review of executive remuneration arrangements atthe same tme as reverting to an annual bonus

delivered wholly in cash the Committee has also

— ncreased ihe shareholding requirements in the Company s Share Ownership Guidelines which now require Executive Directors to
build up holdings of shares (and deferred shares net of tax) worth 150% of salary from ume to time (previously shares worth 100%
of salary) and

— extended the previous share investment requirement such that untl these guidelines are met Executtve Directors will be required
to snvest 50% of their after-tax bonus from 201011 onwards into the Company s shares They are already required to retain 50% of
any vested after-tax skares ansing from the Performance Share Plan and 50% of any shares anising after tax from the exercise of
options under the Executve Share Optian Scheme until the share ownership thresheld s met

Mr Harvey Non-executive Chairman 1s also required under hus letter of appointment to invest 20% of his fees each year In the
purchase of shares in the Company and to retain such shares dunng the term of his appointment

Non-executive Directors

Mr Harvey was appointed a Non-executive Director with effect from 1 January 2010 and became Non-executive Chairmanon 1 July
2010 Detalls of his annual fees are set out In the notes to the table on Directors remuneration on page43 No changes were made to
the fees payable to other Non-executive Directors dunng the year ended 31 May 2010

Non-executive Directors fees are generally revtewed every two years on 1 July and the last such review having been undertaken
with effect from 1 July 2008 the annual fees in respect of Mir Lewis Professer Arnold Mr Steel and Mr Heale have been revised with
effect from 1July 2010 Details of the revised annual fees are set out In the notes to the table on Drrectors remuneratien on page 43
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Director’s interests in shares under incentive arrangements
Details of awards at 1 June 2008 and 31 May 2010 to Executive Directors are as follows

Kumber of

aptians/ Number of Option Market
awiards Granteaf Excrersea/ optons/ esereise  pneeat date Earkest vesung!
art1 une aflocated vested Lapsod awards at Eprce of awacd dawo! Transfer
Duactor Date of awary 2009 N ygar 0 ycar invosr 31 May 2010 ([a] [ta] £xereae Expiry data dato
G AKanelhs 12 Jun 2003 {1) 214010 - 214010 - - 0747 - - - -
22 Sep 2004 (1) 99 789 - 89 189 - - 1304 - - - -
85ep 2005(1) 184 900 - - - 184 900 1298 - B Sep 2008 85ep 2015 -
31 Aug 2006 (1) 213210 - - - 213210 1407 - 31 Aug 2009 31 Aug 2018 -
6 Aug 2007 (1) 197 309 - - - 187 309 16728 - 6 Aug 2010 6 Aug 2017 -
1 Oct 200842 225750 - - - 225750 - 17275 - - 30 Sep 2011
28 Jul 200942} - 192 170 - - 162170 - 22315 - - 27 Jul 2012
1 5ep 2006(3) 44 460 - 44 460 - - - 150 - - -
20 Aug 2007 (3} a1 370 - - - 41370 - 1685 - - 20 Aug 2010
21 Aug 2008(3) 38 480 - - - 38 480 - 1725 - - 21 Aug 2011
14 Aug 2009 {3) - 60840 - - 60840 - 2229 - - 14 Aug 2012
AG Calder 12 Jun 2003 (1) 321010 - 321010 - - 0747 - - - -
22 Sep 2004 (1) 136 550 - 136 850 - - 1304 - - - -
8S5ep 2005{1} 215720 - 215720 - - 1298 - - - -
31 Aug 2006 (1) 211 080 - 211080 - - 1407 - - - -
1 Sep 2006 (3 51860 - 61860 - - - 150 - - -
20 Aug 2007 (3) 43 520 - 43520 - - - 1685 - - -
21 Aug 2008(3) 75030 - 75030 - - - 1725 - - -
14 Aug 200931 - 41720 41 720 - - - 2222 - - -
C G Dawis 12 Jun 2003 11) 76 900 - 76900 - - 0747 - - - -
22 Sep 20041} 31170 - 31170 - - 1104 - - - -
85ep 20051(1) 62 900 - 62 900 - - 1298 - - - -
31 Aug 2006 (1} 142 140 - 71070 - 71070 1407 - 31 Aug 2009 31 Aug 2016 -
6 Aug 2007 {1) 131 539 - - - 131839 16725 - 6 Aug 210 6 Aug 2007 -
1 Oct 2008 (2} 141 820 - - - 141 B20 - 17275 - - 30 Sep 2011
28 Jul 2005 12) - 127900 - - 122 600 - 27375 - - 27 Jul 2012
1 Sep 2006 (3) 22680 - 22 680 - - - 150 - - -
20 Aug 2007 {3} 20630 - - - 20690 - 1885 - - 20 Aug 2010
23 Aug 200843} 13880 - - - 19 6830 - 1725 - - 21 Aug 2011
14 Aug 2002 (3} - 38 220 - - 38220 - 2229 - - 14 Aug 2012
B H Leigh 12 Jun 2003 (1) 57 500 - 57 500 - - 0747 - - - -
22 Sep 2004 (1) 23960 - - - 23960 1104 - 22 Sep 2007 22 Sep 2014 -
85ep20051(1) 58 740 - - - 58740 17288 - 8 Sep 2008 8 Sep 2015 -
371 Aug 2006 (1} 127930 - - - 127930 1407 - 31 Aug 2008 31 Aug 2016 -
6 Aug 2007 (1} 119581 - - - 118581 16725 - B Aug 20i0 6 Aug 2017 -
10¢ 2008 (2) §38920 - - - 128920 ~ 17275 - - 30 Sep 2011
268 Jul 2009 2} - 120670 - - 12G 670 - 22375 - - 27 Jul 2012
1 Sep 2006 (3) 28250 - 28 250 - - - 150 - - -
20 Aug 2007 (1 24820 - - - 24820 - 1685 - - 20 Aug 2010
21 Apg 2008 (3) 23310 - - - 23320 - 1725 - - 21 Aug 2011
14 Aug 2009 (3} - 37 440 - - 37 440 - 2229 - - 14 Aug 2012
J Pantelireis 8 5ep 2005{1) 138670 - - - 138 670 1298 - £ Sep 2008 8 Sep 2015 -
31 Aug 2008 (1) 132180 - - - 132190 1407 - 31 Aug 2003 31 Aug 2016 -
6 Aug 2007 1) 177189 - - -~ 17189 16725 - 6 Aug 2010 6 Aug 2017 -
1Oct 2008 {2} 127 350 - - - 127 350 - 17275 - - 30 Sep 2011
28 Jul 2009 (2} - 105 020 - - 105 020 - 22375 - - 27 Jul 2012
1 Sep 2006 (3} 33 350 - 33380 - - - 150 - - -
20 Aug 2007 (3} 25 650 - - - 25 650 - 1685 - - 20 Aug 2010
21 Aug 2008 (3) 22 850 - -~ - 22 B50 - 1725 - - 2% Aug 2011
14 Aug 2008 (3} - 34 320 - - 34 320 - 2229 - - 14 Aug 2012

Notes

(1} Awarded under tha PZ Cussons Executive Share Option Scheme Awards made in 2003 2004 2005 and 2006 have vested and are capable of exercise in
respect of the number of shares shown in the table above The adjusted earmings per share performance conditons have bean met in raspect of awards made
n 2007 and such awards are expected to vest n full on 6 August 2010 {being the third anniversary of the award date)

Awarded under the PZ Cussons Performance Share Plan The vesting of awards 1s dependent upon the extent 1o which adjusted earnings per shara growth
targets are achieved aver a single three year performance peniod No proportion of such awards may vest unless the Company s adjusted earmngs per share
grows on average by at least RPI + 4% per annum compounded over the performance penod 25% of 1he award will vest where adjusted earnings per share
giows on average by RPI + 4% per annum nising on a straig ht ine pro rata basis 1o 100% vesting where adjusted earnings per share grows on average by RPI
+ 10% per annum ar better compounded over the performanca pertod Where awards vest participants will also receive a paymeant (in ¢ash and/or shares as
deterrmined by the Remuneration Cemmittee) on or shorily following vestng of an amount equivalent to the dwvidends which would have been paid on those
shares between the ime when the awards were granted and the tima whan they vest

Awarded under the Deferred Annual Share Bonus Scheme following the attainment of pre-detarminad fmancal targats Awards of deferred shares in respect
of the attainment of the f:nancial targets for the year ended 31 May 2010 have been approvec by the Remuneration Commitieeand will be grantec at the
earliest practicable opportunity permitied by the rules of the Scheme Deferred shares will normally be receved by partcipants following and conditional only
upon three years of continuing employment from the date of the grant of the award

2

{3]

The aggregate gross gans made by the Directors on the exercise of share options duning the year were £2 247 019 The gans are
calcutated based on the market price at the date of exercise for share options although the shares may have been retained and no
gain realised
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Report on Directors’ remuneration continued

The market value of the Company s shares at 31 May 2010 was £2 892 per share The range during the year was £172 to £2 97

Performance graph

The graph below illustrates the performance of PZ Cussons Plc measured by Total Shareholder Return (TSR) aver the five year penod
to 31 May 2010 against the TSR of a holding of shares in the FTSE 250 index over the same period based on an initial investment of
£100 The FTSE 250 index has been chosen as PZ Cussons Plc 1s a constituant of that ndex

PZ Cussons Plc vs the FTSE 250 Index TSR

Remuneration during the year ended 31 May 2010
The foltowing table shows remunerauon of individual Directors for the year ended 31 May 2010

Pension Taxable 2010 2009
Salary/Fees Bonus Contnbutions? benefits Total Total
E £ £ £ £ £

Executive Directors*

A JGreen 340 000 - 000 35282 443,282 431 076
G A Kanellis 430 000 392,500 86 000 37199 945,699 724 930
A G Calder® 143 750 85000 28750 16835 274,395 529 491
C G Davis 275 000 251 000 56000 21962 602,952 464 480
B HLeigh 270 000 246 500 54 000 19007 589,507 439 401
J Pantelirets 235 000 214 500 47 000 20949 517,449 408 643
Non-executive Directors®
R J Harvey’ 104167 - - - 104,167 -
J A Arnold 45 000 - - - 45,000 44 167
S J N Heate 40 000 - - - 40,000 391867
DW Lews 45 000 - - - 45,000 43750
JTJ Steel 45 000 - - - 45,000 43 750
1972917 1189500 338 750 151284 3652451 3168865

{1} Bonus awards made under the Deferred Annual Share Bonus Scheme in respect of the year ended 31 May 2010 ara payable as to 50% in cash and 50% in

2

3

(4

deterred shares (based on tha Company s share price at the beginning of the financial year) The amounts included 1n this column include both the cash and
deferred sharas slement the value of the latter being based on the market value of the Company s shares at 31 May 2010 of £2 892 per share At the start of
the penad the Committee estachished the following bonus levels and performance targets {I) a bonus of 36% of salary accrued on achieving target adjusted
proin before tax {Target PBT}of which 3 6% of salary accrued on achieving 30% of Target PBT nising pro rata to 36% of salary for achieving 100% of Target
PBT}nsing to 2 maximum bonus of 56% of salary accrued on achieving 110% of Target PBT (i) subjact to achieving Target PBT a bonus of 15% of salary for
achieving a monthly average net working capital 1© salas ratio target and (i} subject again to achieving Target PBT a bonus of 3% of salary for achieving an
cperating contibution to sales ratio targat Each Executive Diractor participant qualfted for a total bonus (payable in cash and defetred shares) equivalent

10 67 8% of salary comprising amounits aof 43 8% 15 0% and 9 0% (each of satary) in respect of the PBT nat working capital and aperating contributicn
percentage targats respectively

Until his retirement from the Board an 31 March 2010 Mr Calder participated in separate arrangements based on similar financial targets under which he
qualified fara totat cash bonus of 58 3% of his salary

Mr Green did not participate in the Deferred Annual Share Bonus Scheme or any alternative bonus arrangement

With effect from 1 June 2008 Messrs Green Kanelhis Dawvis and Leigh became mambers of the Company s new defined cantnbution pension arrangement
Contributions 1o the defined contribunion pension arrangement paid by the Company {but not those paid by the Directors thermselvas) are included in the
amounts shown above As Messts Calder Pantelirets and with effect from 1 November 2009 and 31 December 2009 respectively Messts Leigh and Grean
chose not to parucipate in the defined coninbution pension arrangement they each received a salary supplement equivalent to 20% of base salary inliew of
pension provision and these amounts are also rneluded in the column headed Pension Contributions

[n addition to the above Executive Directors receved the following cash payments duning the year in lieu of divdends on past awards of deferred shares
awarded under the Deferred Annual Share Bonus Scheme which have not yat vested MrKanellis £7793 i Calder £10054 MrDavis £4 104 Mr Lesgh
£4772 and Mr Pantelireis £4 942

As reported on page 38 above the annual satarnies of the Executive Directors have been reviewed and will be revised inrespect of the year ending 31 May
2011 following adwvice from Delostie LLP The following annual satanies will apply #r Kanellis €451 500 Mr Daves £288 750 MrLergh £283 500 and

Mr Pantelireis £248 750
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15} The fees payable to Mr Calder reflact his retrement from the Board part way through the year on 31 March 2010 and his retremenst as an emptayee on
7 Apnl 2010

{8} Asreported on page 40 the annual fees of the Non executive Directors {other than Mr Harvey) were reviewed with effect from 1 July 2010 and the fallowing
annual fees apply with effect from that date Professor Arnold {£52 5000 Mr Heale(£52 500) Mr Lews {E52 500) and Mr Steel (£52 500}

(7) Thafees payable 10 Mr Harvey reflact his appointment 10 the Board part way through the year on 1 January 2010 Mr Harvey receivas annual fees of £250 000
subject to a requirement to remvest 20% of such fees each year in the purchase of shares in the Company and to retain such shares duning the tarm of his
appointmant

Directors” pension benefits

The following Executive Directors were members of the defined benefit pension arrangements provided by the Company All of these
defined benefit plans were closed to future accrual on 31 May 2008 and replaced by defined contribution pension arrangements
Benefits built up in the defined benefit ptans will continue to receive a salary link until 31 May 2013 or the date that each Director
leaves employment with the Company If sooner The pension entitlements and corresponding transfer values below relate sclely to
the defined benefit pension arrangements

Gross Increase n Value of net Value ot Value of Total ¢hange

ingrease 1n agcrued Total accrusd ncrease in accrued accrued in value

accrued pension nat pension at DENSION Gver pension at pension at during

pensian of inflation (a} 31 May 2010 parnad {b) 31 May 2009 31 May 2010 penod (¢)

£ pa fpa £pa E £ £ £

A JGreen 6125 Nil 208250 Nil 4256 000 4797 000 501 000
AG Calder 19973 9613 224088 236 000 4995 000 5508 000 514 000
G A Kanells 25 8667 12 966 275917 166 000 2843 000 3528 000 €86 000
CGDavis 2417 1415 22 153 21000 261 000 327 000 66 000
B H Leigh 10 750 6385 96 750 66 000 777 Q00 999 000 222 000
J Pantelress 8020 2074 125169 41 000 2141 000 2531 000 360000

Notes

(1} Accrued pensions shown are the amounts which would be paid annually an retrement based on service to the plan closure date (31 May 2008} and
pensionable salares at 31 May 2010

Transter values relaung to benefits accrued in the Directors and Expatniate pension plans have been calculated in accordance with the methed and basis
determined by the Trustea of each plan on the adwice of their Actuary to be consistent with current legislation and the rules of the plans Transfer values
relating to unfunded pension benefits{see note 7) have been calculatad using a method and basis consistent with those used for the funded plans

The value of net increase (b) represents the inctemeantal value 1o the Director of his increase in pension over the year caiculated on the assumption that he left
employmant with the Company at the year end Itis based on the accrued pension increase (a}

The change m the transfer value (cl includes the eftect of fluctuations in the transfer value due to factors beyend the control of the Company and Drectors
such as gilt yield movaments

{8} Mr Calder retired as an employee cn 7 April 2010 The above figures are based on the change to Mr Calder s accrued benefits between 31 May 2009 and

7 Apnl 2010 bui are valued using his age at 31 May 2010 On retirement Mr Calder receved an annual pension of £134 200pa and a ¢cash lump surn of

£450 000

The total accrued pensions as at 31 May 2010 and the value of accrued pensicns at 31 May 2009 and 31 May 2010 shown for Mr Catder and Mr Leugh include
benefits resulting from transfers inte the Directars plan

{7) The Company provides unfunded unapproved pension benehts for Messrs Calder Leigh and Dawis as ther benefits would have been subject to the Inland
Revenue earnings cap intraduced by the Finance Act 1989 had the earmings cap not been abolished by the Fmance Act 2004 The funded benelits payable to
these Directors remain subject to a schema specific earmings cap which increases each year and 1s calculated m a simitar manner to the abehished statutory
earnings cap The above figures include both the funded and unfunded pension benefits

Messrs Pantelirers and Xanelhis are former members of the expatnate pension schemne operated by tha Company and addiwonal benefits are pravided through
that scheme as thair benetits would have baen subject to the Inland Revenue earnings cap introduced by the Fmance Act 1989 had the earnings cap not been
abolshed by the Finance Act 2004 The above figures are inclusive of the expatnate pension scheme benefits

Voluntary contnbutions paid by Directors ard resulting benefits are not shown

2

3

(4]

6

@8

9

Service contracts

Executve Directors have one year rolling service contracts No Executive Director including those proposed for re-election has
a service contract with a notice period 1n excess of one year or containing any prowision for pre-determinaed compensation on
termination exceeding one year s salary and benefits i kind

Non-executive Directors do not have service contracts but are appointed for initial penods of three years normally renewable on a
similar basis The present letters of appointment for Mr Lewis Mr Steel Professor Arnold Mr Heale and Mr Harvey will expire on
31 May 2013 30 September 2011 31 December 2012 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2012 respectively

By order of the Board of Directors
James Steel

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
27 July 2000

43
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Corporate governance

The Board I1s committed to meeting the standards ¢of good Corporate Governance set cut in the Combined Code on Cerporate
Governance { the Code ) published by the Financial Reporting Council in June 2008 (this being the edition of the Code which presently
apples to the Company) The Code 1s publicly avallable on the Financial Reporting Council s welbsite www fre org uk) This report
together with the Report on Directors Remuneration in respect of remuneration matters describes how the Board applied the Code
dunng the year under review

Board composition and independence

As at the date of this report the Board of Directors has nine members compnsing the Non-executive Chairman the Chief Executive
three other Executive Directors and four Non-executive Directors The names of the Directors together with thewr brographical details
are set out on page 32 The size of the Board allows individuals to communicate openly and to make a personal contribution through
the exercise of thewr individual skills and expenence

Durning the year the Board was also served by Mr Green as Executive Chairman and Mr Calder as Deputy Chasrman untl therr
retirements on 30 June 2070 and 31 March 2010 respectively Following the retirernent of Mr Green and 1n accordance with the
Board s previously announced succession planning Mr Harvey was appotnted as Non-executive Charman

The Non-executive Directors have been appointed for their specific expenence and expertise and are all considered to be independent
of managernent and free from any business or other relatonship which could matenally interfere with the exercise of their
independent judgement Mr Harvey 1s a Non-executive Director of Jardine Uloyd Thompsan Plc which acts as insurance broker to the
Company Mr Lew:s I1s a former partner of Addleshaw Goddard which acts as legal adwvisor to the Company Mr Heale s presently the
intenm Non-executive Charrman of Panmure Gordon which acts as joint broker 1o the Company None of them participate in any way
In the provision of services by the relevant supplier to the Company In addition i order that hus independence 1s not compromised i
at any urme the Board or a Committee of the Board Is considenng any matter concerning one of the suppliers 1t has been agreed that
the relevant individual will wathdraw from that meeting untl such matters have been dealt with

Mr Lewis 15 the Senior Independent Non-exacutive Director and in this capacity he is available to shareholders if they have concerns
which contact through the normal channels of Chairman Chief Executive or Group Finance Director has falled 1o resolve or for which
such contactis napproprate

Non-executive Directors may serve on the boards of other companies provided that this does not invoive a conflict of interest and

that the appointment does not restrict their ability to discharge their duties to the Company in any way In line with the Code and

the Company s Articles of Association all Directors are reguired to submit themselves for election at the Annual General Meeting
tollowing their appomtment and thereafter by rotation The Executive Directors service contracts and the letters setting out the terms
of appointment of the Non-executive Directors are avalable for inspection at the Company s registered office during normal business
hours and at the Annual General Meeting

Operation of the Board
The Board 15 responsible for the Group s strategic development momitoring i1ts business objectives and maintatning a system of
effective corporate governance

Five formal meetings of the Board were scheduled durng the year and the Directors met on a number of further occasions as
necessary to consider specific matters ansing and to review and develop the Company s corporate stralegy

The differnng roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive are acknowledged and set out in terms of referance which have been adopted
by the Board The Chairman is primarnly responsible for the running of the Board and ensuring that itis supphied n a imely manner
with sufficient information to enable 1t to discharge its duties The Chief Executive 1s responsible for coordinating the running of the
business and /mplementing Group Strategy

Ali Directors communicate with each other on a regular basis and have regular and ready access to members of the Group s
management team Senior executives are invited to attend Board meetings to make presentations on specific matters or projects
Board papers are prepared and sssu:ed to all Birectors in good time prior to each Board meeting to enable Directors 1o give due
consideration to all matters in advance of the meeting The Board has adepted formai procedures for Directors to iake independent
professional advice where necessary at the Company s expense and each Director has full access 1o the services of the Company
Secretary who is also responsible for ensuning that Board procedures and all apphcable rules and regulations are followed

The Board has an approved and documented schedule of matters reserved for its decision (ncluding approval of the Group s strategy
annual budgets matenal agreements and major capital expenditure and acquisitions the approval of inancial arrangements, and the
monitoring of performance health satety and environmental matters and nsk management procedures

The Board has also adopted a formal induction process for Directors including wisits to principal sites and meetings with operating
management Directors may take additional training where necessary as part of their continuing development at the expense of the
Company

Commuittees of the Board

The Board has established a number of standing committees to which various matters are delegated according 1o defined terms of
reference The terms of reference of the commuttees are available on the Company s website (www pzcussons com} and will also be
available at the Annual General Meeting Details of the principal standing commuttees of the Board are set out as follows
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Nomination Committee

The Nomunatuon Committee 1s responsible for regularly reviewing the structure size and compaosrion of the Board and identifying and
recommending appropriate candidates for membership of the Board when vacancies anse The Commitiee comprises Mr Harvey
[Committee Chairman) Mr Kanellis and the four independent Non-executive Directors Prof Arnold Mr Heale Mr Lewis and Mr Steel
During the year the Commitiee was also served by Mr Green untit his retirement on 30 June 2070 Mr Harvey was appointed to the
Commuttee on 1 January 2010 and assumed the charmanship of the Commuttee on 1 July 2010 The Company Secretary Is secretary
to the Committee

In considering an appaintment the Nomination Comrutiee evaluates the balance of skills knowledge and experience of the Board
and prepares a description of the role and capabilities required for a particular appointment External search agenctes or open
adverusing will be used where this (s approprate Short-listed candidates will then be invited to interview with members of the
Committee and 1f recommended by the Committee will be invited to meet other Board members before any decision s taken
relating to an appointment

During the year foflowing the engagement of an external search agency and an appropriate Interview and sefection process the
Committee nominated Mr Harvey for appointment to the Board initially as independent Non-executive Director and with effect
from 1 July as Non-executive Chairman In making 1ts nomination the Commuttee considered the expenence knowledge and
qualfications of Mr Harvey fus fitwath the business and his potential contrnibution 1o the Board and the Company

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Commuttee 1s responsible for reviewing and recommending the framework and policy for remuneration of the
Executive Drrectors and sentor executives which the Board as a whole 1s responsible for approving The Comrmittee members are
Mr Steel (Committee Chatrman) Professor Arnold Mr Heale and Mr Lewis The Company Secretary 1s secretary to the Commuitee

The Remuneration Committee Is responsible for evaluating the performance and determining spectfic remuneration packages for
each Executive Director the Chairman and the Company Secretary With the exception of the Non-executive Chairman the fees of
the Non-executive Directors are determined by the Executive Directors

Further detaits of the Commuttee s responsibiiies and activities during the year are set out In the Report cn Directors Remuneration
on pages 37 to 43

Audit Committee

The Audit Commuttee 1s responsible for reviewing on behalf of the Board the Group s accounting and financial poficies and its
disclosure practices internat controls 1nternal audit and nsk management [t also responsible for overseeing all mattars associated
with the appointment terms remuneration and performance of the external auditor and for reviewing the scope and results of the
audit and 1ts cost effectiveness These responsibilities are discharged at the Audit Committee meetings and through regular reports
from the internal audit function The Audit Committee comprises Professor Arnold {(Committee Chairman) Mr Heale Mr Lewss and
Mr Steel and meets regularly with the external auditor Professor Amold a qualified chartered acceuntant bnings recent and relevant
financial expenence to the Audit Committee The Company Secretary 15 secretary 1o the Commuttee

As indicated above one of the duties of the Audit Commitiee ts to make recommendations to the Board inrelation to the
appointment of the external auditor Vanous factors are taken into account by the commuttee in assessing whether to recommend
the auditor for reappomntment These include the guality of the reports provided to the Audit Committiee and the Board and the
level of understanding demonstrated of the Group s business PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP have been the Company s auditors
for three years and were appointed after an independent tender process The Committee s sausfied with their effectiveness and
independence

The Group has a policy governing the conduct of non-audit work by the auditor The auditor is permitted 10 provide non-audit services
which are not and are not perceived to be In conflict with auditor iIndependence provicing it has the skill competence and integnty
to carry out the work and 15 considered to be the most appropnate to undertake such work in the best interests of the Group

Activities that may be percetved to be in conftict with the role of the external auditor must be submitted 1o the Committee for approval
prior to engagement regardless of the amounts involved All assignments are monitored by the Committee Details of the amounts
paid to the external auditor during the year for audit and other services are set out iy note 4 10 the financial staterments
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Attendance at meetings

The number of scheduled meetings of the Board texcluding such ad hoc meetings as were necessary dunng the year to address
specific matters ansing} and of each of the Audit Remuneration and Nomination Committees durning the year ended 31 May 2010
together with a record of the attendance of the current Directors who are therr respective members 1s detailed in the table below

Board Audit Committee Remuneraticn Commitree Nemination Committee
Number of Nurnber of Numbar of Number of

meenungs Number ot meetings Number o! meetings Number af meetngs Number of

ehgible meglngs elgible meeungs eligible mee Ings elgble to meelngs

to attend attended 16 attend attended te attend a randed attend attended

Mr A ) Green 5 5 nfa n/a nfa n/a 3 3

Mr R J Harvey* 2 2 nfa nfa nfa nfa 1 1

Mt A G Catder** 3 2 nfa nfa n/a nfa nfa nfa

Mr G A Kanellis 5 5 nfa nfa nfa nfa 3 3

Mr C G Davis 5 5 n/a n/a nfa nja n/a n/a

MrB H Leigh 5 5 nfa n/a nfa nfa nfa nfa

Mr J Pantelirels 5 5 n/a nfa n/a nfa nfa nfa

MrD W Lewis 5 5 4 4 5 5 3 3

Prof J A Arnold 5 5 4 4 5 5 3 3

Mr S J N Heale 5 4 4 4 5 4 3 3

MrJ TJ Steel 5 5 4 4 5 5 3 3
Notes

nfa indicates that the Drrector s not 8 member of the Committae
*  Mr Harvey cid not attend the meetings held prior 1o his appontment 1o the Beard on 1 January 2030
** Mr Calder retred from tha Board on 31 March 2010

No Director participates in meetings when matiers relating to him are being discussed

Group Risk Committee

The Group Risk Commuttee 1s responsible for identifying assessing and prionitising al matenal nisks facing the Group and ensuring
where possible thal appropnate action 1s taken to manage and miugate those nsks The nsk areas which the Committee reviews
include general business nisk including nsk ansing out of the external financial environment product safety nisk physical asset risk
including factory health and safety and environmental nsks IT and infrastructure nsks At least once ayear the Board as a whole
reviews any maternal nsks facing the Group and the output of this review forms the basis of the work undertaken by the Committee
dunng the year

The Commuttee 1s responsible for developing and supporung the actmties necessary to convert an approved framework of nsk imits
and nsk appette polrcigs into an effective plan for implementation across the Group This 1s achieved by ongoing review 10 develop
and implement plans to eliminate reduce or transfer risk where practicable The Committee is also responsible for reviewing the nsk
management and control process within the Group and encouraging and supporting two-way communications in respect of nsks
within the business and with externat stakeholders including shareholders suppliers and customers

The Group Risk Committee compnses Professor Arnold independent Non-executive Director and Committee Chairman) Mr Kanellis
Mr Davis Mr Leigh and Mr Pantelireis The Company Secretary is secretary to the Committee The Committee has been in place
throughout the year and conunues in operation as at the date of 1his report It reports formally to the Board after each meeting It has
authonty to obtain external advice as considered appropnate and the Board has resolved that it should be provided with sutficient
resources to undertake fully ts responsibiities

The Board undertakes annually a format review of the nsk management process and the performance of the Greup Risk Cemmittee

Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR} Committee

The CSR Committee 1s responsible for reviewing and developing the Company s corporate strategy to ensure that CSR1s anintegral
part of the strategy and that the Group s social environmental and economic activites are aigned The CSR Committee 1s also
responsible for the development of policies on all key areas of CSRincluding the environment healthand safety product testing and
consumer safety business conduct and ethics employees and local community and chanty Further details of the Committee s terms
of reference and activities during the year are set out in the Corporate Social Responsibility report on pages 22 to 31

The CSR Committee comprises Mr Heale independent Non-executive Director and Cormmittee Chairman} Mr Harvey Mr Kanelhs
Mr Davis Mr Leigh and Mr Pantelirers The Company Secretary 1s secretary to the CSR Committee The Commuttee reporis formally
to the Board after each meeting Duning the year the Committee was also served by Mr Green untl his retirement on 30 June 2010
Mr Harvey was appointed to the Committee on 1 January 2010 It has authority to cbtain external advice as considered appropriate
and the Board has resolved that it should be prowvided with sufficient resources to undertake fully sis responsibiities

Performance evaluation
Reviews of the Board and Board committee performance are camed out annually with the assistance of external advisers where
considered appropriate and the review results are discussed and any appropriate actions taken
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The performance of the Non-executive Directors i1s evaluated by the Executive Directors The Remuneration Commitiee reviews
Executive Directors performance with guidance from the Chief Executive (other than in respect of his ewn position)

The review process in 2010 concluded that all Directors continue to contribute effectively and with proper cornmitment devoting
adequate time to carry out their duties

Remuneration
Details of Directors remuneration are set cut in the Repart on Direclors remuneration

Going concern

The Group s business actwities together with the factors hkely to affect its future development performance and posiion are set
out in the Business Revtew The financial position of the Group and hquidity position are descnbed within the Financial Review In
addition nate 18 to the Financial Statements includes policies in relation (o the Group s financial instruments and risk management
and pelicies for managing credit nsk hquidity market nsk foreign exchange nsk pnce risk and interest rate risk

After making enquines the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate resources to
continue 1n operational existence for the foreseeable future Accordingly they continue to adopt the going concern basts in preparnng
the Annual Report and Financial Statements

Internal control

The Board 1s responsible for the Group s system of interral control and for reviewing its effectiveness Such a system 1s designed
to manage rather than eliminate the nisk of failure 10 achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material missiatement or loss

The Board 1s of the view that there is an ongoing process for iIdentifying evaluating and managing the Group s significant nisks that it

has been in place for the year ended 31 May 2010 and up to the date of the Annual Report and Financial Statements that it 1s regularly

reviewed by the Board and that it accords with the Turnbull guidance for Directors on the Combmed Code The process inciudes

- frequent communication between the Board and the Group Risk Committee and subsidiary management on all critical business
155UeS

— regular visits to operating units by the Board head office management and internal audrt

- adetaled system of budgeting reporting and forecasting

— regular review by the Board and Group Risk Committee of nsk throughout the Group and of the risk management processes
place and

- taking necessary action to remedy any significant weaknesses found as part of the review of the effectiveness of the internal
control system

Throughout the year the Board has carried out assessments of internal control by considerng documentation from the Executrve
Directors Audit Committee and internal audit function as well as taking inte consideration events since the year end The internal
cantrols extend to the financial reporting process and the preparation of consolidated accounts The basis for the preparatian of
consolidated accounts I1s as set outin aote 1 to the financial statements

The Group continues to take steps to embed internal cantrol and risk management further into the operations of the business and to
deal with areas of improvement which come to the attention of management and the Board The Group has ethical guidelines and a
defined fraud reporting process which are 1ssued with the Group Internal Control Manual to all employees within the Group

Relations with shareholders
Inits financial reporting to shareholders the Board aims to present a balanced and understandable assessment of the Group s
financial position and prospects

The Company maintains a corporate website www pzcussons com containing a wide range of inforrnatien of interest to institutional
and private investors and a subscription e-mail service 1S avallable which enables access to Company notifications and news releases

The Company has periodic discussions with institutional shareholders on a range of Issues affecting the Group s performance
The Board 1s also kept informed of mvestors views through regular discussion of analysts and brokers bnefings and investor
opinion feedback

All shareholders including private investors have an opportunity to present questions to the Board at the Annual General Meeting
and the Directors make themselves available to meet informally with shareholders after the meeting

Share capital
Further information on the Group s share capital structure i1s provided in the Report of the Directors
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Corporate governance continued

General meetings of shareholders

The business to be conducted at the Annual General Meeting of the Company 1s set out in the separate Notice of Anrual General
Meeting which accompanies the Annual Report and Financial Statements Resolutions put before shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting will usually Include resolutions for the appointment of Directors approval of the Report on Directors remuneration
declaration of the final dvidend and authenisation for the Board 10 altot and repurchase shares Voting at the Annual General Meeting
1s on a show of hands and after each show of hands details of all proxy votes lodged for and against each resolution and the number
of abstentions are disclosed

At each Annual General Meeting there is an update on the progress of the business over the last year and also on current trading
conditions

Comphance statement

The Directors consider that the Company complied with the provisions of section 1 of the Code with the following exceptions

—~ Code Provision A 3 2 The Board recognises that the Code specifies that at least half of the members of the Board {excluding the
Chairman} shoutd be independent Non-executive Directors The Company did not comply with this provision between 1 June 2009
and 31 December 2009 during which period the Board comprised the Charman  a total of five Executive Directors and four
Non-executive Directors Duning the peniod from 1 January 2010 to 31 May 2010 the Company did comply with this provision as
the Board compnsed the Chairman a total of five Executive Directors (reducing on 31 March to four upeon the retirement of Mr
Calder) and Five Non-executive Directors In any event however each of the Non-executive Dhirectors 1s determined by the Board
t0 be iIndependent and their respective backgrounds clearly indicate that they are of sufficient calibre and number for their views to
carry significant and suffrcient weight in the Board s decisions

— CodeProvisicn D 11 the Code specifies that the Senior Independent Director should attend suificient meeungs with a range
of major shareholders to develop a balanced understanding of the 1ssues and concerns of major shareholders The Senior
independent Director met only a small number of sharehalders dunng the yvear but shareholders are afforded the opportunity to
meet or consult with him at thesr discreton in the event that they have any questions commenis orconcerns and he Is avallable to
speak 1o all sharehotders at the Company s Annusal General Meetng
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report the Report on Directors remuneration and the Group and Parent
Company financiat statements in accordance with applicable law and reguiations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the Directors have elected
to prepare the Group financial statements 1n accordance with International Financial Reporting Stanctards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union and the Parent Company financial statements in accordance with Uruted Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practce {United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law) In preparing the Group financial statements the Diurectors have
also elected to comply with IFRSs 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board {IASB} Under company law the Directors
must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and the Company and of the proht or loss of the Group and Company for that period

In preparing these financial statements the Directors are reguired to

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently

- make judgements and accounting estimates which are reasonable and prudent

- state whether IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and IFRSs issued by 1ASB and apphicable UK Accounting Standards have
been followed subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the Group and Parent Company financial statements
respectively and

- prepare the fimancial statements on the going concern basis untess 1t 1S inapproprate to presume that the Company will contnue
In business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any tme the financial position of the Company and the Group and enable them
to ensure that the financial statements and the Report on Directors remuneration cornply with the Companies Act 2006 and as
regards the Group financial statements Aructe 4 of the tAS Regulation They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulanues

The Diwectors ara responsible far the mamntenance and integnty of the Company s website www pzcussons com Legsslation in the
United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other junsdictions

Each of the Directors whose names and functions are listed on page 33 confirm that to the best of therr knowledge

— the Group hinancial statements which have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU give a true and {ar
view of the assets habiities financial posiion and profit of the Group and

- the Report of the Directors includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the
Group together with a description of the principal nsks and uncertainues which it faces

By order of the
Mr S P Plant

Company Secreta
27 July 2010

a9
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of PZ Cussons Plc

We have audited the group financial statements of PZ Cussons Plc for the year ended 31 May 20310 which compnise the Consolidated
Income Statement the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income the Consolidated Balance Shest the Consclidated
Statemment of Changes in Equity the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the related notes The financial reporung framework
that has been applied in their preparation 1s applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union

Respective responsibilittes of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors Responsibilities set out on page 48 the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the group financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our responsibility 1s to audit
the group finangial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board s Ethical Standards for Audntors

This report including the opintons  has been prepared for and only for the company s members as a body In accordance with Chapter
3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not In giving these opinions accept or assume responsibility
for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this reportis shown of Into whose hands it may corme save where expressly
agreed by our prior consent in writing

Scope of the aud:it of the financial statements

An audit nvolves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements suftictent to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement whether caused by fraud or error This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate o the group s circumstances and have been consistently apphed and
adequately disclosed the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors and the overall presentation of
the financial statements

Opinion an financial statements

In our oprmion the group financial statements

- gwvea true and fair view of the state of the group s affairs as at 31 May 2010 and of its profit and cash flows for the year
then ended

~ have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and Aruicle 4of the [AS Regulation

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opiion

- the informanion given in the Report of the Directars for the financial year for which the group financial statements are preparedis
consistent with the group financial statements and

- the information given in the Corporate Governance Statement set out on page 47 with respect o internat control and nisk
management systems and about share capital structures 15 consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you it in our opinton

— certain disclosures of directors remuneration specified by law are not made or

— we have not received all the Information and explanations we require for cur audit or
- & corporate governance statement has not been prepared by the parent company

Under the Listing Rules we are required 1o review

- the directors statement set out on page 47 n relation 1o going concern and

— the part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the company s comphance with the nine provisions of the June 2008
Combined Code specified for our review

Other matter
We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of PZ Cussons Plc for the year ended 31 May 2010 and on
the information in the Report on Directors remuneration that 1s described as having been audited

Nicholas Boden

Semor Statutory Auditor

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Manchester

27 July 2010
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exceptonal Exceptional Taral
Total #ems Hems 2009
2010 (restated) (no*e 3} {restatad}
Notes £Em £m £m £m

Continuing operations
Revenue 2 7716 7818 - 7818
Cost of sales {480 1) {486 7} (33} (480 0)
Gross profit 3115 2951 (33} 2918
Selling and distnbution costs {123 9} (1233} - (1233)
Admenistrative expenses {87 8} 771 (11} {782)
Share of results of joint venture 12 16 41 - 41)
Operating profit 2 1014 906 (4 4} 862
Finance income 29 a7 - 37
Finance cost {25} (55) - (55)
Net finance ncomeflcost) 5] 04 (18) - {18)
Profit before taxation 1018 888 (4 4) B4 4
Taxation 7 (29 1) 252) 12 (24 0}
Profit for the year 4 727 636 (32) 60 4
Attnibutable to
Eguity holders of the parent 2] 637 528 32) 496
Non controlling interest a0 108 - 108

727 636 (32) 60 4
Basic EPS (p) 2] 14 89 1164
Diluted EPS (p) 9 1472 1156
Adusted basic EPS (p) 9 14 89 12 39
Adjusted diluted EPS (p} g 1472 12 31

The results shown above for both 2010 and 2009 relate to continuing operations
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
Year ended 31 May 2010

2010 2009
Notes £m Em
Profit for the year 727 604
Other comprehensive income
Actuanal (lossesl/gains on defined benefit pension schemes 23 (83) 191
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 395 38)
Cash flow hedges - fair value {lossk/gain in year 23) 06
Taxation on Items taken directly to equity 7 44 (5 6)
Other comprehensive income for the year net of taxation 333 103
Total comprehensive income for the year 106 0 707
Attnbutable to
Equity holders of the parent 9208 611
152 96

Non controlhng interests
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31 May
31 May 2009
2010 {rastated)
Notes £m £m
Assets
Non-current assets
Goodwill and other intangible assets 10 1630 1576
Property plant and egquipment n 2420 2008
Other investmenis 13 07 06
Net investment in joint venture 12 249 180
Receivables 15 o8 16
Retirement benefit surplus 23 320 206
463 4 400 2
Current assets
Inventories 14 1421 1546
Trade recevables and prepayments 15 124 6 1nM37
investments 16 03 03
Cash and cash equivalents 17 1319 842
Current taxation receivable 48 08
403 7 353 6
Total assets 867 1 753 8
Equity
Ordinary share capital 24 43 43
Capnial redemption reserve 07 Q7
Hedging reserve [13) 03
Currency translation reserve 538 204
Retained earnings 3973 364 2
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company 454 8 3899
Non cantrolling interest 67 3 599
Total equity 522 1 4498
Liabihities
Non-current habilities
Borrowings 18 300 44 9
Other habilities 20 04 10
Deferred taxation hiabilities il 488 472
Retuement benefit obligations 23 46 7 296
1259 1227
Current habilities
Borrowings 8 157 164
Trade and other payables 19 1724 14G8
Current taxation payable 279 203
Provisions 22 31 38
2191 1813
Total habilities 3450 3040
Net equity and habilities 867 1 7538

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue

N

They were signed on its behalf by

R .J Harvey s
27 July 2010

A~
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Year ended 31 May 2010

Attributable 19 ownars of the Company

Cutrency Capital Nan
Share translation redemption Retaned Hedging controlling
capital reserve resefve earnings reserve nierests Total
£m £m £m Em £m £m fm
At 1 June 2008 43 230 07 3207 - 572 405 8
Profit for the year - — - 49 6 - 108 604
Actuanal gains on defined benefit pension
schemes - - - 191 - - 191
Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations - (2 6) - - - (12} (38)
Cash flow hedges - fair value gains in year - - - - 06 - 06
Cash flow hedges — tax on farr value gains - - - - (03) - {03}
Deferred tax on share based payments - - - 06 - - 06
Tax on actuanal gains on defined benefit
pension schemes - - - {59 - - {59}
Total comprehensive incomefexpense) for
the year - (2 B) - 63 4 03 96 707
Transactions with owners
Crdinary dividends - - - {20 5) - - {20 5}
Acquisiton of shares for ESOT - - - 07 - - 07
Share based payments charge - - - 13 - - 13
Acquisition of non contrelling interest - - - - - 37} 37
Non controlling interest dividend paid - - - - - 132} 32)
At 31 May 2009 43 204 07 364 2 03 599 4498
At 1.June 2009 43 204 07 364 2 03 599 4498
Profit for the year - - - 637 - 20 727
Actuanal losses on defined benefit pension
schemes - - - 83) - - (83)
Exchange differences on transtation of fereign
operations - 334 - - o1 62 398
Cash flow hedges — fair value losses in year - - - - i23) - [23)
Cash flow hedges —tax on fair value losses - - - - 08 - 08
Deferred tax on share based payments - - - 16 - - 16
Tax on actuarial losses on defined benefit
pension schemes - - - 20 - - 20
Total comprehensive Incomef(expense) for
the year - 334 - 590 {16) 152 106 0
Transactions with owners
Ordinary dividends - - - 257} - - {(257)
Acquisition of shares for ESOT - - - i30) - - (30)
Share based payments charge - - - 28 - - 28
Acquisition of non controlling interest - - - - - {33} (33)
Non controlling interest dividend paid - - - - - (45} {4 5)
At 31 May 2010 43 538 07 397 3 {13) 67 3 5221
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Consolidated cash flow statement
Year ended 31 May 2010

2010 2009
Notes £m £m

Operating activities
Cash generated from operations 26 1608 1452
Taxation {22 1) {167)
Net cash generated from operating activities 1387 1285
Cash flows from investing activities
Investment income recelved 29 37
Purchase of property plant and equipment (44 3) (46 0}
Proceeds from sale of property plant and eguipment o6 41
Proceeds from sale of intangible assets - 43
Purchase of intangible assets 10 [03) (36}
Acquisition of non controlling interest 9 {68) (52}
Acquisiion of subsidiary 29 {08) -
Loans granted io |oint venture {22) {0 5}
Net cash used in investing activities (50 9) (43 2}
Financing activities
Interest paid {2 5) {66}
Dividends paid to non controlling interests 41 {23}
Purchase of shares for ESOT 25 {30} {07}
Dividends paid to Company shareholders 8 257 (20 5}
Net decrease in borrowings 18 {15 0) {10 5)
Net cash used in financing activities {50 3) {395}
Net wncrease In cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts 375 458
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at the beginming of the year 17 8238 381
Effect of foreign exchange rates 109 {11}

Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at the end of the year 17 1312 828




56 PZ Cussons Plc
Annual Report & Accounts 2010

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

General information
PZ Cussens Plc 1s a company incorperated in the United Kingdom under the Companes Act 2006 The address of the registered
office 1s given on page 89

These financial statements are presented in Pounds Sterling because that is the currency of the pnmary econormic environment in
which the Group operates Foreign operations are included in accordance with the policies set outinnote 1

1 Accounting polictes

The tinancial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as adopted for
use In the Eurcpean Union (EU) including International Accounting Standards (IAS) and iterpretations issued by the International
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) Further standards may be issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board ({|1ASB) and standards currently in 1ssue and endorsed by the EU may be subject to interpretations 1ssued by the IFRIC

The preparation of financial staternents 1n confarmity with generally accepted accounting prninciples under IFRS requires management
t¢ make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and labilites at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period Although these estimaites are based on management s
best knowledge of the amount event or actions actual results ultmately may differ from those estimatas

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basss except for the revaluation of certain financial assets and
financial habilities (iIncluding denvative Instruments) at fair value through the income statement

The financial statements have been prepared using consistent accounting pehoes except as stated below

Standards and mterpretations

The following new standards amendments to standards and interpretations have been adopted for the financial year ending

31 May 2010

- IFRS 8 Operating segments effective for annual penods beginning on or after 1 January 2008 iFRS 8 replacas |AS 14 and ahgns
segment reporting with the requirements of the US standard SFAS 131 Disclosures about segments of an enterprise and related
information The new standard requires a management approach under which segment information 1s presented on the same
basis as that used for internal reporting purpeses The Group has assessed the regurements of [FRS 8 and conctuded that no
change in segment mformation I1s required

- 1AS 1 (revised) Presentation of financial statements effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009 The Group
has applied IAS 1 (amended) from 1 June 2008

- IFRIC 14 1AS 19 -The limit on a defined benefit asset minimum funding requirements and theirinteracton The interpretation
clanfies the imitations on recognising defined benefit pension surpluses {and the related deferred tax habiliues) in the balance
sheet and may also requira recognition of an additional hability for any commutted future contnbutions The Group has apphed
IFRIC 14 from 1 June 2039 with noimpact on the Group

— 1AS 23 {amendment} Borrowing costs 1AS 32 {amendment) Financial instruments presentation and conseguential amendments
to IAS 1 Presentation of financiat statements {FRS 2 [amendment) Share-based payment transactions and IFRIC 13 Customer
loyalty programmes also came mto effect and were edopted by the Group for the year ending 31 May 2010 but had no :mpact on
the Group financial statements

The following new standards amendments to standards and interpretations have beenissued but are not effective for the fimancial

year ending 31 May 2010 and have not been early adopted

- IFRS 3 lamendment) Business combimations and conseguential amendments to |1AS 27 Consolidated and separate financial

statements |AS 28 Investments i associates and IAS 31 Imterests in joint ventures 1s effective prospectively to business

combinations for which the acquisition date 1s on or after the beginning of the first annual reportung penod beginning on or after

1 July 2009 This 1s applicable to the Group from 1 June 2010 Managerment 1s assessing the impact of the new requirements

regarding acquisition accounting consolidation and joint ventures on the Group

IFRS 9 Financial instruments classification and measurement 1s effective for accounting periods beginning after 1 January 2013

Management Is assessing the impact of the new requirements on the Group

— |AS 39 (amendments) Ehgible hedged tems IFRIC 16 Hedgas of net investment in a foreign operation and IFRIC 17 Distributions
of non cash assets to owner are effective far annual periods beginming on or after 1 July 2009 These standards and interpretation
changes are either not currently applicabie to the Group or will have no matera! effect

— Amendment to IFRS 2 Share-based payments — Group cash-settled share-based payment transactions 1s etffective for
accounting perneds beginning 1 January 2010 Management 1s assessing the impact of the new requirements for the Group

- IFRIC 18 Transfer of assets from custemers 15 effective for accounting periods beginning 1 July 2009 (EU endorsed 31 Qctober
2009) This standard 1s not expected to have a matenal impact on the Group

Basis of consohdation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of PZ Cussons Plc and entites controlled by PZ Cussons
Plc (its substdiaries) made up to 31 May each year Control i1s achieved where the Company has the ability to govern the financial and
operating policies of an investee entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities
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1 Accounting policies contnued

On acquisition the assets and habiives and contingent hiabilities of a subsidiary are measured at their farr values at the date of
acquisition Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the identfiable net assets acquired is recogrused as goadwill
Any deficiency of the cost of acquisition below the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired | @ discount on acquisition} s
credited to the iIncome statement in the penod of acquesition

The total profits or losses of subsidiaries are included in the consohdated incorme statement and the mterest of nen controlling
nterests (s stated at the non controling Interest s proportion of the farr values of the assets and habilities recognised Subsequently
losses appiicable to the non controlling interest in excess of the non controling interest s interest In the subsidiary s equity are
allocated against the interests of the Group except to the extent that the non controlling interest has a binding obligation and 1s

able to make an additlonal investment to cover the losses

The results of subsidianes acquired cor disposed of during the year are included in the consclidated income statement frem the
effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal as approprate

Where necessary the accounts of the overseas subsidianes are adjusted to conform to the Group s accounting policies
Al intra-group transactions balances income and expenses are eliminated on conselidation

Operating profit
Qperating profit 1s the profit of the Group before finance iIncome finance costs and taxation

Exceptional iterns

The Group adopts a columnar income statement format to highlight significant items wathin the Group results for the period Such
items are considered by the Directors to be exceptional in nature rather than being representative of the underlying trading of the
Group and may include such items as restructuning costs matenal impairments of non-current assets matenal profits and losses on
disposal of property plant and equipment profit or loss on disposal or termination of operations and matenal pension curtaiiments
The Directors apply judgementin assessing the particular tems which by virtue of their scale and nature should be disclosed ina
separate column of the Income statement and notes to the financial statements as Exceptonal terms The Directors believe that the
separate disclosure of these items s relevant to an understanding of the Group s financial performance

Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidianies 1s accountied for using the purchase method The cost of the acquisitton 1s measured at the aggregate
of the fair values at the date of exchange of assets given hiabilkities incurred or assumed, and equity Instruments issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree plus any costs directly atinbutable to the business combination The acquiree s identifiabte
assets habilites and contingent habiities that meet the conditions for recognition under IFRS 3 Business combinations are
recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date except for non-current assets (or disposal groups} that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations which are recognised and measured at
the lower of the assels previous carrying value and fair value less costs to sell

Interests In joint ventures

A joint venture Is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group and other parties undertake an economic activity that 1s subject to
joint control that 1s when the strategic financial and operating policy decisions relating to the activities require the unanimous consent
of the parues sharning control Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a separate entity in which each venturer
has an interest are referred to as jointly controlled entiies The Group reports its interests i jointly controlled entities using the equity
method of accounting rather than proportional consolidation Under IAS 28 Investments in associates and IAS 31 Interests in joint
ventures a single figure for post-tax results 1s presented as a separate item on the face of the ncome statement as part of profit
betore tax within operating profit Long-term loans which are considered 1o be permanent as equity are combined with the Group s
share of net assetsfkabtlities and shown on a single line within non-current assets

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwilt anising on the acquisition of a subsidiary or a jointly contrelled entity represents the excess of the cost of acquisition

over the Group s Interest In the net fair value of the tdentfiable assets habiliies and conungent habilities of the subsidiary or

jointly controlled entity recogrised at the date of acquisttion If after reassessment the Group s interestin the net farr value of

the acquiree s idenufiable assets habilities and contingent habilities exceeds the cost of the business combination the excess Is
recogmsed immediately in the iIncome statement The interest of ron controlling mterests in the acquiree s imually measured at the
nenr controlling interest s proportion of the net fair value of the asseis labiliies and contingent babihities recogmised Where non
controlling interests are acquirad the excess of cost over the value of the non controlling interest acquired 1s debited to goodwili

Goodwill also includes amounts io reftect deferred tax habilities established in relation to acquisiions m accordance with IFRS 3
Business Combinauons Goodwill s imtially recognised as an asset and 15 subsequently measured at costless any accumulated
impairment losses Goodwill 1s reviewed for impairment at least annually

For the purpose of iImpairment testing goodwiliis allocated to each of the Group s cash-generating unis expected to beneht from the
synergies of the combination Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for mpairment annually or more
frequently when there s an indication that the unit may be impaired If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unitis less than
the carrying amount of the unit the impairment loss 1s allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset inthe unit An impairment

87
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

1 Accounting policies continued
loss recognised for goodwaill 1s not reversed i a subsequent period On disposal of a subsidiary or a jontiy controlled entity the
attnbutable amount of goodwill 1s included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal

Geodwill ansing on acquisiticns before the date of transition to IFRS has been retained at the previous UK GAAFP amounis Goodwill
written off to reserves under UK GAAP prier to 1998 has not been reinstated and 1s not included in deterrmuning any subsequent profit
or loss on disposal

Other intangible assets

An acquired brand 1s only recegnised on the balance sheet where 1t1s supported by a registered trademark where brand earnings
are separately identifiable and the brand could be sold separately from the rest of the business Brands acguired as part of a business
combination are recorded 1n the balance sheet at fair value at the date of acquisition Trademarks patents and purchased brands are
recorded at purchase cost Brands currently held are not amortised as the Directors bekeve they haveindefinite ives In accordance
with JAS 36 Impairment of assets the brands are tested for imparrment annually and whenever thereis an indication that the asset
may be impaired Any impairment is recognised rmmediately in the ncome statement

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses the carrying amount of the asset 1s increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount but so that the increased carrying amount dees not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impatrment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years A reversal of an impaiment loss 1s recognised
immedately as income Profit or losses on disposal of brands are mcluded within operating profit

Revenue recognition

Revenue 1s measured at the farr value of the consideration recerved or recevable and represents amounts recevable for goods and
services provided in the normal course of business net of discounts rebates and sales related taxes but including interest recewvable
on sales on extended credit and income from the provision of techmical services and agreements Sales of goods are recognised
when ttle has passed and the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred

Dividend income from investments 1s recognised when the shareholders nghts to receive payment have been established

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee All other leases are classified as operating leases

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the ncome statement on a straight-ine basis over the term of the relevant lease
Benefits receved and recervable as an incentive to enter into an cperating lease are also spread on a straight-ine basis over the lease term

Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each Group entity are presented 1n the currency of the pnmary economic environment in
which the entrty operates (its functional currency) For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements the results and financial
position of each entity are expressed in Sterling which s the functional currency of the Campany and the presentation currency for
the consalidated financial statements

in preparing the financial statements of the individual entities transactions in currencies other than the entity s functional currency are
recorded at the actual rate of exchange prevailling on the dates of the transactions At each balance shest date monetary assets and
liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the balance sheet date

Foreign exchange gains and losses ansing from the settlement of foreign currency transactions and from the translation of monetary
assets and habihities dencrminated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement

I arder to hedge its exposure to certain foreign exchange risks the Group enters into farward contracts

On consohdation the assets and habilites of the Group s overseas cperations are translated at exchange rates prevaling on the
halance sheet date Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the penod unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly Cumulatve foresgn currency translation differences arising on the translation and conselidation of foreign
operations Income statements and balance sheets denominated in foreign currencies are recorded as a separate component of
equity Applying the exemption under IFRS 1 First tme adoption of Internatcnal Financial Reporting Standards  the Group has set

the currency reserve to zero at 1 June 2004 the date of transition te IFRS and measured and recorded separately in that currency
reserve all cumutative foreign currency translation differences ansing after that date On disposal of a foreign operation the cumulative
translation differences will be transferred to the income statement in the period of the disposal as part of the gain or loss on disposal

Finance ncome and expense
Finance ncame and expense are recognised in the income statement 1n the penod in which they areincurred

Government grants

Government grants related to property plant and equipment are reflected in the balance sheet as deferred income and credited to the
income staternent cver the useful hves of the assets concerned Government grants relating to incomeare reflected in the balance
sheet as deferred income and credited to the income statement over the period to which the grant relates
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1 Accounting policies continued

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit obligations

The Group operates retirement benefit schemes in the United Kingdom and for most overseas countries in which 1t carries on
business Those in the United Kingdom are defined benefit schemes and defined contnbution schemes overseas schemes vary in
cdetail depending on local practice The UK defined benefit schemes were closed to future accrual on 31 May 2008

in respect of the defined benefit schemes the cost of providing benehits 1s determined using the projected unit credit method with
full actuanial valuations being carned out every three years aor more frequently should a matenal change occur in any of the schemes
Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in fullim the period in which they occur They are recognised outside the iIncome statement
and presented In the statemeant of comprehensive Income

Past service cost s recognised immediately 1o the extent that the benefits have already vested, and otherwise amortised on a
straight-line basis over the average perrad until the benefits become vested The retirement benefit obligatien recognised in the
balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised past service cost and as
reduced by the fair value of scheme assets Any asset resulting from this calculation 1s imited to past service cost plus the present
value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the plan All components of the pensian cost are mcluded within
operating profit

Paymants to defined contnbution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due

Share-based payments
The Greup cperates a Deferred Annual Share Bonus Scheme a Performance Share Plan and an Executive Share Option Scheme for
senior executives all of which involve equity-settled share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payments under the Executive Share Option Scherme are measured at faw value (excluding the effect of
non-market based vesting conditions) at the date of grant The fair value determined at the grant date 1s expensed on a straight-line
basrs over the vesting perntod Fair value 1s measured using the Biack-Scholes pricing model The expected life used in the medel has
been adjusted based on management s best estimate for the effects of non-transferability exercise restricttons and behavioural
considerations

The awards under the Performanice Share Plan are measured at the fair value at the date of grant and are expensed over the period
to which the performance relates and are based on the expected ouicome of the vesting conditions

The awards under the Deferred Annual Share Bonus Scheme are measured at farr value at the date of grantand are expensed over
the penod to which the performance relates

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax

The 1ax currently payable 15 based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income
statement because it excludes items of iIncome of expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible The Group s hability for current tax 1s calculated using tax rates that have been enacted

or substantively enacted at the balance shest date

Deferred tax 1s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
inthe financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and s accounted for using

the balance shest llability method Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent thatit1s probable that taxable profits will be avallable against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
imitial recogmition (other than in a business combination) of ather assets and habilities in a transacton that affects neither the tax profit
nor the accounting profit

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences ansing on investments in subsidianes and interests in joint
ventures except where the Group 1s able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and 1t 1s probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future

The carrying amount of deferred 1ax assets s reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered Deferred tax 1s calculated at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the peried when the hability 1s settled or the asset s realised Deferred tax s charged or
credited to the income statement except when 1t relates to items charged or credited to equity in which case the deferred tax 1s also
dealt with in equity

Deferred tax assets and habilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable nght to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilites and when they relate to Income taxes levied by the same taxation authonty and the Group intends 1o settle its current tax
liabilities on a net basis
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

1 Accounting policies continued

Property, plant and equipment

Land and bulldings held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administration purposes are stated in the
balance sheet at deemed cost at the date of iransition to IFRS tess accumulated depreciation and any accumulated imparrment
losses All other assets are stated at histoncal cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses

Deprectation is charged s0 as to write off the cost or valuation of assets other than land over therr esumated useful lives using the
straight-line method on the following basis

Freehold builldings at rates not less than 2%
Leasehald bulldings at rates which will reduce the book value to nil on or before the termination of the

leases with a minimum of 2%
Plant and machinery not less than 8%
Fixtures fittings and vehicles not less than 20%

In the case of major projects depreciation ts provided from the date the project in guestion 1s brought into use

The gain or loss ansing on the disposal or retirement of an asset 1s determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and 1s recogrused in the incorme statement for the period

The assets residual values and useful ives are reviewed and adjusted If appropriate at each balance sheet date

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and estmated net reahsabte value Cost comprises direct matenals and where applicable
direct Iabour ¢costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bringtng the inventories to thetr present tocation and conditien
Costis catculated using the FIFQ method Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of
completion and costs ta be incurred in marketing selling and distribution

Trade receivables

Trade recevables are recognised mitially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cosi using the effective interest rate
method, less prowvision tor impairment A provision for impairment of trade receivables i1s established when there is objective ewrdence
that the Group will not be able to collect all ameounis due according to the onginal terms of the recesvables

Research and development
Research and development expenditure 1s charged agatnst profits in the yearinwhich it is incurred unless it meets the critenia for
capitalisation set out in IAS 38 Intangible assets

Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts

Cash cash equivalents and bank overdrafts incledes ¢ash at bank and in hand plus short-term depositsiess overdrafts Short-term
deposits have a matunty of less than three months from the date of acquisitton Bank overdrafts are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group s cash management

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial habilities are recognised on the Group s balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument

Derivative financial instruments

The Group s activives expose It primanily to the financial nsks of changes in foreign exchange rates and to fluctuations in interest

rates The Group uses dervauve financial nstruments (primanly foreign currency forward contracts) to hedge its risks associated with
foreign currency fluctuations refating to certain firm commitments and forecasted transactions  The Group uses denvative financial
instruments (pnmarily interest rate swaps) to hedge a proportion of the exposure to floating interest rate fluctuations

The occastonal use of financial derivatives s governed by the Group s policies approved by the Board of Directors which provide
written princigles in the use of financial denvatives consistent with the Group s nsk management strategy The Group does not use
denvative financial instruments for speculative purposes

Dervative financial instruments are inually measured at fair value at the contract date and are remeasured to fair value at subsequent
reporuing dates Changes in the fair value of denivative financial iInstruments that are designated and effective as hedges of future
cash flows are recognised directly in equity and any ineffective portion 1s recognised immediately in the Income statement

Borrowings

Interest-bearnng bank toans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds received net of direct 1ssuecosts Finance charges
including premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct 1ssue costs are accounted for on an accruals basis through the
income statement using the effective interest method and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent they are
not settied In the penod in which they arise
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1 Accounting policies continued
Trade payables
Trade payables are not interest beaning and are stated at ther nominal value

Financial habilitries and equity
Financial habities and equity snstruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
An eguily strument 1s any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducung all of its iabilives

Investments

Investments [other than interests In joint ventures) are recognised and derecegnised on a trade date whena purchase or sale of
an investment 1s under a contract whose terms require delivery of the investment within the timeframe established by the market
concerned and are intally measured at cest including transaction ¢osts

Investrments are classified as either held-to-maturity held-for-trading loans and recevables or available-for-sale Held-to-maturity
invesiments and loans and receivables are measured at amortsed cost Held-for-trading and available-for sale investments are
measured at subsequent reporting dates at faw value Where secunties are held-for-trading purposes gains and losses ansing from
changes In farr value are included in the income statement for the pened For avallable-for-sale investments gains and losses arsing
from changes in fair value are recognised directly In equity until the security 1s disposed of or 1s determined to be impared at which
ume the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised In equity 18 included in the income statement for the period

Provisions

Pravisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event and 11 1s prebable that the Group will
be required to settle that cbhigation Prowvisions are measured at the Directors best esumate of the expendiure required to settle the
obligation at the balance sheet date Prowvistons for restructunng costs are recognised when the Group has a detailed formal plan for
the restructuring that has been commun:cated to affected parties

Dividend distnbution
Dividend distribution to the Company s sharehelders 1s recognised as a hability in the Group s financial statements in the penod in
which the dividends are approved by the Company s shareholders In respect of mtenm dividends these are recognised once paid

Crnitical accounting pelicies and key sources of estimation uncertainty
Estimates and accounting judgements are continually evatuated and are based on histonical experience and other factors including
expectattons of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances

The preparation of financial statements under IFRS requires management to make assumptions and estimates about future events
The resulling accounting estimates wiil by definition differ from the actual results The assumptions and esumates that have a
significant nsk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabiliies within the next financial year are

as follows

Accounting for intangible assets

The Group records all Intang:ble assets acquired as part of a business combination at fair value Intangible assets are deemed to have
indefimte hves and as such are not amorused but are subject at a mmimum to annual tests forimparrment Determining whether
intangible assets are impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which the intangible asset has
been allocated The vatue In use calcutation requires management to esumate the future cash flows expected to anse from the cash-
generating umit and a suitable discount rate in order 1o calculate present value Detals of key estimates are discussed in note 10

Retirement benefits

The Group has three main defined benefit schemes which are based and adrministered 1n the UK and are independent of the Group s
fimances These schemes were closed to future accrual on 31 May 2008 Actuanal valuations are carried out as determined by the
trustees at intervals of not more than three years The retrement benefit cost under IAS 1915 assessed inaccordance with the adwvice
of a firm of actuaries based on the latest actuanal valuation and assumptions advised by the actuary The assumptions are based

on information supplied to the actuary by the Company supplemented by discussions beiween the actuary and management The
assumptions are disclosed In note 23 Operating resuits are affected by the actuanal assumptions used These assumptions include
discount rates mortality rates inflation rates and expected long-term rates of return on assets and may differ from actual results due
to changng market and economic conditions and fonger or shorter lives of participants

Revenue recognitian

The Group recognises revenue generally at the time of delivery which represents the point at which the significant nisks and rewards
of ownership are transferred to the customer and when collection of the resutting consideration for those goods Is reasonably
assured Should management consider that the critena for recognition are not met revenue 1s deferred unul such ime as the
consideration has been fully earned Revenue 1s measured at the far value of the consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts recevable net of discounts rebates and sales-related taxes but including interest receivable on sales on extended credit and
mcome from the provision of technical services and agreements Dividend income from investments is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established




62 PZ Cussons Plc

Annual Report & Accounts 2010

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

1 Accounting policies continued

Prior year adjustment

During the year ended 31 May 2010 the accounting treatment for the revenue arising from the sale of the Nutricima joint venture
products through anather Group subsidiary has been changed |n prior penods the sales (and corresponding cost of sales) relating to
Nutrgima Ltd (the oparating enuty within the Group's nutntional foods joint venture) products distnibuted through PZ Cussons Nigena
Plc (a subsidiary of the Group) have been recognised as revenue (and cost of sales} in the Group s income statement Following a
review of the distribution agreement condiions and the respective nisks/rewards assumed by the two entites PZ Cussons Nigena Plc
1s deemed to be acting as an agent rather than a principal (in accerdance with IAS 18) Conseguently the Group should only recogrise
the distribution fee iIncome {received from Nutricoma Ltd) and the related distnbution costs in the conselidated income statement
rather than the gross sales and cost of sales values for the product being distributed Furthermore inventory relating to Nutricima
products held for sale by PZ Cussons Nigena Pl that had previously been consolidated in the Group s balance sheet1s now
accounted for as inventory within the joint venture There ts no impact on the historic or future profitability or net assets of the Group

The effect of this change in the year 10 31 May 200815 to reduce revenue and cost of sales by £60 1 millon increase revenue and
selling and distnbution costs by £3 8 million reduce inventones by £3 7 milhen reduce amounts owed to joint ventures by £1 3 million
and increase the amount owed from joint ventures by £2 4 milhien For both the current and the prior year periods there s no change
In the net asset posttion of the Group A restated balance sheet as at 31 May 2008 has not been presented as the revision affecting
this period s not considered matenal

2 Segmental analysis

The Group has implemented IFRS 8 Operating segments with effect from 1 June 2009 IFRS B requres a management approach
under which segment information 1s presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting purposes The Group has
assessed the requirements of IFRS 8 and have concluded that no change in segment information is required

The chiaf operating decision-maker has been identified as the Executive Board The Executive Board reviews the Group s internal
reporting in order to assess performance and allocate resources Management has determined the operating segments based en
these reports

The Executive Board considers the business from a geographic perspective with Afnca Europe and Asiabeing the reporting segments
The Executive Board assesses the performance based on operating profit before any exceptional items Interest income and cost are
not included in the results for each operating segment that 1s reviewed by the Executive Board Other nformation provided except as
noted below to the Executive Board 1s measured in a manner consistent with that of the financial statements

Total segment assets exclude tax related assets These are included as in the reconciliation 1o the lotal batance sheet assets

Busmess segments

Africa Asia Europs Elimunations Total

2010 £m £m £m Em £m
Total gross segment revenue 3252 192 3 4461 {192 6} 7716
Inter segment revenue - - {26 7} {165 3} 192.0 -
Revenue 3252 165 6 2808 - 77116
Segmental operating profit before exceptional tems and share

of results of joint venture 406 130 46 2 - 998
Share of results of joint venture 16 - - - 16
Segmental operating profit 42 2 130 46 2 - 1014
Finance income 29
Finance cost 2 5)
Profit before taxation 1018

Africa Asgia Europe  Ehrunations Toral

2009 (restated) £m £m tm £m £m
Total gross segment revenue 3587 1739 5006 {251 4) 7818
Inter segment revenue - 38 9) (212 5) 2514 -
Revenue 358 7 1350 2881 - 7818
Segmental aperaung profit before excepuonal tems and share of

results of jont venture 436 102 409 - 94 7
Share of results of joint venture (4 1} - - - 4 1)
Segmental operating profit before exceptional items 385 102 409 - 206
Exceptional items (note 3) - - (4 4} - 4 4)
Segmeantal operating profit 385 102 365 - 86 2
Finance income 37
Finance cost (5 5)

Profit hefore taxation 844
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2 Segmental analysis continued

Africa Asra Europe Tax Total
2010 Em Em Em Em Em
Segment assets before investment in joint venture 1976 1590 4808 48 8422
Long-term loans receivabie from joint venture 259 - - - 259
Investment in joint venture — share of net liabilties {10) - - - (10)
Segment assets 2225 159 0 4808 48 867 1
Africa Asa Europe Tax Total
2009 irestated) £m £m tm Em £fm
Segment assets bejore investment in joint venture 2210 1008 4122 08 7348
Long-term loans receivable from joint venture 237 - - - 237
Investment in Joint venture — share of net Labihtes {47} -~ - - {47)
Segment assets 2400 1008 4122 08 7538
3 Exceptional items
Year ended 31 May 2010
There were no exceptional items in the year ended 31 May 2010
Year ended 31 May 2009
Excaptional Exceptional
item before item after
taxation Taxation taxanen
Exceptional [tams included within operating profit Em £m Em
Restructuring of UK operations {44) 12 {32)

Restructuring of UK operations
This item relates to a significant restructunng of the UK business associated with the relocation of manufacturing from twoe sites to
one site made up of redundancy and other asseciated costs

4 Profit for the year - analysis by nature
Profit for the year has been armved at after charging/credittng)

2010 2008
fm £m
Net foreign exchange (gains)/losses (28) 44
Research and development costs 38 26
Amortisation of government grants omn o7
Depreciation of property plant and equipment 188 175
Loss on disposal of property plant and equipment 12 10
Raw and packaging matenals and goods purchased for resale 3987 482 8
Cperating lease rentals a7z 24
Employee costs (note 5) 1089 989
Auditors remuneration {See below} 08 10
A more detalled analysis of auditors remuneration on a worldwide bas:s I1s provided below
2019 2009
£m Em
Fees payabie to the Company s auditors for the audit of the Company s annual accounts - -
Fees payable to the Company s auditors and their associates for other services to the Group
—-The audit of the Company s subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 06 05
Total audit fees 06 05
Other services pursuant to legislation
- Tax services 02 04
- Qther services - 01
Total fees 08 10

Fees payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP and its associates for non-audit services to the Company are not required to be
disclosed because the consoiidated financial statements are required to disclose such fees on a consolidatad basis

Included In the amounts above {ees were paid to the Group s auditors in respect of their audit of the Group s UK retirement benefit
schemaes totalling £16 850 {2009 £16 700)
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5 Directors and employses

Employee costs
The average number of employees {(including Executive Directors} was as follows

2010 2009
Number Number
Production 4,548 4635
Selling and distribution 2,671 2762
Administration 1,093 1199
8,312 8596
The costs incurred in respect of the above were as follows
2010 2009
£m £m
Wages and salares 9138 857
Social security and other costs 21 72
Post-emptoyment benefits 62 47
Share-based payments {note 28) 28 13
1089 989
The post-employment benefits cost consists of
2010 2009
fm £m
Defined benefit schemes {note 23) 11t 01
Defired contnbution schemes {note 23) 28 27
QOverseas minor defined benefit schemes and Nigenan gratuity scheme (note 23) 23 19
62 47
Directors’ remuneration
The costs incurred In respect of the Directors who are regarded as the key management personnel were as follows
2010 2009
£m £
Fees ta Non-executive Directors 03 02
Wages and salanes 17 17
Bonus - cash bonus 05 04
Bonus — Deferred Annual Share Bonus 04 o4
Benefits 02 01
Social security and other costs a4 04
Post-employment benefits 03 03
Share-based payments 07 02
Total 45 37
& Net finance income/(cost)
2010 2009
fm £m
Current asset investment income
Net investment gains 04 0a
Interest receivabie from associated companies 01 03
Interest and dividends receivable 24 16
Gains on financial instruments - 14
29 37
Interest payable on bank loans and overdrafts [25) (b6
Net finance income/(cost) 04 {18)
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7 Taxation
2010 2008
Em £m
Current tax
UK corporation tax charge for the year 77 45
Adjustments in respect of prior peniods {15} (21)
62 24
Overseas corporation tax charge for the year 174 189
Adjustments in respect of prior periods 10 01
184 190
Total current 1ax charge 246 214
Deferred tax
Temporary differences ongination and reversal 39 23
Adjustments in respect of prior perods 06 03
Total deferred tax charge (note 217) 45 26
Total tax charge 291 240

UK corporation tax Is calculated at 28% (2009 28%) of the estumated assessable profit for the year Taxation for other jurisdictions 1s
calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions

Taxation on items taken directly 10 equity was a credit of £4 4 million (2008 debit of £5 6 million) and relates to the movement in
deferred tax an actuanal losses deferred tax on share option schemes and deferred tax on financial denvatives recognised in the
hedging reserve

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the consolidated income statement as follows

2010 2009
£m £fm
Profit before tax 1018 84 4
Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 28% (2008 28%) 285 2386
Tax effect of revenue/expenses that are not deductible 01 -
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries in overseas junisdictions 08 10
Tax effect of share of results of joint ventures {0 4) 11
Prior period adjustment 01 (17
Tax charge for the year 291 240

A number of changes 1o the UK corporaton tax system were announced in the June 2010 Budgst Statement The Finance (No 2)
Act 2010 15 expected to include legislation to reduce the main rate of corporation tax from 28% to 27% from 1 April 2011 Further
reductions to the main rate are proposed to reduce the rate by 1% per annum to 24% by 1 Apnl 2014 The changes had not been
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date and therefore are not included in these financiat statements

The effect of the changes to be enacted in the Finance (No 2} Act 2010 would be to reduce the deferred tax lability prowded at
31 May 2010 by £1 4 million This £1 4 million decrease in the deferred tax hability would increase profit for the year by £1 2 millton
and increase other comprehensive iIncome by £0 2 millon This decrease in the deferred tax hability 1s due to the reduction in the
corporation tax rate from 28% to 27% with effect from 1 Apnl 2011

The proposed reductions of the main rate of corporation tax by 1% per year to 24% by 1 Aprit 2014 are expected 1o be enacted
separately each year The overall effect of the further changes from 27% to 24% f these apphed to the deferred tax balance at
31 May 2010 would be to reduce the deferred tax hability by £4 0 milion {being £1 4 milon recognised in 2012 £1 3 milhien
recogmsed in 2013 and £1 3 mithon recognised 1n 2014)
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8 Dividends
2010 2009
£m £m
Amounts recogmised as distributions to ordinary shareholders in the year comprise
Final dividend for the year ended 31 May 2009 of 4 085p (2008 3 625p) per ordinary share 176 155
Intenim dividend for the year ended 31 May 2010 of 1 930p (2009 1185p) per ardinary share B2 50
257 205
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 May 2010 of 3 970p (2009 4 085p) per share 171 175

The proposed final dwidends for the years ended 31 May 2009 and 31 May 2010 were subject to approval by shareholders at
the Annual General Meeting and hence have not been included as llabihties in the financial statements at 31 May 2009 and
31 May 2010 respectively

AL31 May 2010 the Employee Share Option Trust held 1 874 245 ordinary shares {2009 1837 727 ordinary shares) The trust waived
any entitlement to the dividends on these shares

9 Earmings per share

2010 2009
Profit attnbutable to ordinary equity sharehotders (€ million} 637 498
Basic earmings per share 14 89p 11 64p
Diluted earmings per share 14 72p 11 66p

Basic earnings per share and ciluted earnings per share are calculaied by dividing profit for the perniod attnbutable to equity holders by
the weighted average number of shares in issue

2010 2009
Numbaer Number

000 0co

Basic weighted average 427,232 426 212
Diluted weighted average 432,31 429 064

The difference between the basic and diluted weighted average number of shares represents the dilutwe effect of the Deferred
Annual Share Bonus Scheme the Executive Share Option Scheme and 1he Performance Share Plan The weighted average number of
shares can be reconciled to the weighted average number of shares including dilutive shares as follows

2010 2009

Number Number

000 000

Basic weighted average ordinary shares in Issue dunng the year 427,232 426 212

Dilutive effect of share incentive plans 5,159 2862

Diluted weighted average 432,391 420064
Adjusted earnings per share

2010 2009

Basic earmings per share 14 89p 11 64p

Exceptional items (note 3} - 075p

Adjusted basic earnings per share 14 89p 12 38p

Diluted earmings per share 1472p 11 56p

Exceptional items (note 3) - 075p

Adjusted diluted earnings per share 14 72p 12 31p
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Adjusted basic and diuted earnings per share figures are calculated by dividing adjusted profit for the year by the weighted average

number of shares inssue (as above) The ad|usted profit for the year s as follows

2010 2009
Em £m
Profit attributable to crdinary equity shareholders 637 496
Exceptional items {net of taxatton effect) {note 3} - 32
Adyusted profit after tax 637 528
10 Goodwill and other intangible assets
Other
mntangible
Goodwilf asasts Total
Em £m £m
Cost
At 1 June 2008 293 1229 1522
Acquired duning the year {note 29} 15 36 51
Currency retranslation - 03 03
At 31 May 2009 308 126 8 1576
Acquired durning the year (note 29) 34 - 39
Additicns - a3 a3
Currency retranslation - 12 12
At 31 May 2010 347 128 3 163 0

Other intangible assets include the Group s acquired brands Charles Worthington Onginal Source The Sanctuary Trix and Burrino
and are deemed to have indefinite lives Dunng the year the Group acquired additional share capital of PZ Cussons Nigeria Plc
Increasing Its stake from 64 0% 10 66 1% This generated goodwill of £3 5 milllon In addition the Group acquired the entire share

caprital of Body Expenence Ltd generating goodwidl of £C 4 million

Goodwill and other intangtble assets which all have indefinite useful ives are subject to annual imparrment testing or mare frequent
testing If there are indications of impairment The recoverable amounis of the cash-generating units {CGUs) are determined from
value-In-use calculations that use amounts from approved budgets and plans over a period of five years (2009 five years) and cash
flows projected forward assuming a perpetual growth rate of 3% The discount rate applied 1o the cash flow projections was between
7 3% 10 8 4% on a pre-tax basis (2009 8 0% 109 0%} The average per-annum growih rate appled to the initial period ranges from

5 5% to 10 0% (2009 77% to 10 0%) and was based on industry growth rates

Intangible assets and goodwill are allocated to the appropnate CGU identified which 15 directly driven by the brand of product

The net book value of goodwill and intangible assets by these CGUs was as follows

Other Other

intangible intangible

Goodwill Geodwill nasets assats

2010 2009 2010 2008

Em ™ Em ]

QOriginal Source - - 98 98
Charles Worthington 83 83 298 298
The Sanctuary 210 210 753 753
Trix - - 86 74
Other 54 15 48 45
Total 347 308 1283 1268

There were no impairments of goodwill or intangible assets identified dunng the year or the prior year
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11 Property, plant and equipment

Fixtures Assets in
Land and Plantand  fittings and course of
buildi ¥ buct construction Total
£m Em £fm £m Em

Cost
At 1 June 2008 973 1778 346 338 3435
Currency retranslation an 28 03) 08 06
Addiuons 101 37 51 246 435
Disposals 05) 46 3) 62) - {53 O}
Reclassifications 148 192 12 {35 2) -
At 31 May 2008 1206 1572 a4 224 3346
Currency retranstation 90 140 30 19 279
Acquisitions 05 - — - 05
Additions 18 23 49 371 461
Disposals - (73) (26) - 99
Reclassifications 89 184 08 (281) -
At 31 May 2010 1408 184 6 405 333 3992
Depreciation and amounts wntten off
At 1 June 2008 93 1279 263 - 1635
Currency retranslation 02} 20 05} - 13
Charge for the year 30 94 51 - 175
Disposals 02} (42 5} (58} - {48 5)
At 31 May 2009 119 96 8 251 - 1338
Currency retranslation 13 88 26 - 127
Charge fer the year 32 1086 50 - 188
Disposals — (57) 24} — 81)
At 31 May 2010 164 1105 03 - 157 2
Net book values
At 31 May 2010 124 4 741 102 333 2420
At 31 May 2009 1087 60 4 93 224 2008

AL 31 May 2010 the Group had entered into commitments for the acquistuon of property plant and equipment amountng to

£4 5 milbon (2003 £8 6 mithon} At 31 May 2070 the Group had entered into capital commitments of ml {2009 £2 0 milhon)in relation
to Its mterests in joint ventures and the Group s share in the capital commitments of the joint venture was il {2009 £1 0 million}

12 Investments in joint ventures

Em
Cost
At 1 June 2008 (0 4}
Exchange diiferences on translaton of overseas net assets recognised in equity 02
Share of result for the year taken to the income statement (4 1)
At 31 May 2009 47)
Exchange differences on translation of overseas net assets recognised in equity 21
Share of result for the year taken to the income statement 16
At 31 May 2010 {10}
2010 2009
£fm £m
Aggregated amounts relating to joint ventures
Tolat assets 575 523
Totat habilihes (59 4) (61 6)
Net liabilities (19} (83}
Revenues 539 602
Profit/loss) 32 82)

The Group accounts for joint ventures using the equity method A list of the investments in oint ventures
of incorporation and proporuon of ownership interest 1s given 1n note 31

inctuding the name country
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12 Investments in joint ventures continued
The presentation of this on the balance sheet s as follows

2016 2009

Net investment in joint venture Em £m
Investment in joint veniure — share of net habilives (10} (4 7)
Long-term loans receivable from joint venture 259 237
249 190

The long-term loans receivable from the joint venture are considered to be part of the Group s net iInvestment in the joint venture

13 QOther investments

Non-current asset investments compnse a 31% investment in Norpalm Ghana Limited 2 palm o#l plantation in Ghana (note 31)

The Group does not exercise significant influence over the affairs of this Company as it does not have ths sbility to participate in the
financral and operating pelicies of the entity and 1t 1s therefore not treated as an associated Company The Directors consider the
historical cost of the investment to be representative of its fair value at both 31 May 2010 and 31 May 2009

14 Inventories

2009

2010 {restated)

Em fm

Raw materials and consumables 557 728
Work in progress 109 B5
Finished goods and goods for resale 755 733
1421 154 6

During the year ended 31 May 2010 £3 6 milhon {2008 £1 6 million) was charged to the ncome staterment for damaged obsolete
and tost inventories The cost of the inventaries recognised as an expense and included in cost of sales amounts te £398 7 mullion
(2009 £462 8 million)

15 Trade receivables and prepayments
Receivables due within one year

2009
2010 {restaved)
£m Em
Trade receivables 1112 953
Less provision forimpairment of trads recevables {8 5) (7 8)
Net trade receivables 1027 875
Amounts owed by joint ventures 35 60
Qther receivables 122 86
Prepayments and accrued income 62 69
Currency derivative instruments (note 18) - 47
124 6 1137
Receivables due after more than one year
2010 2009
Em £m
Prepayments and accrued income 05 15
Other receivables 03 01
Total 08 186
Mavements in the Group provision forimpairment of trade recevables are as follows
2010 2009
£m Em
At 1 June (7 8) {59)
Prowision for receivables impairment (15) (28)
Receivables wntten off duning the year 13 03
Urused amounts reversed 02 -
Currency translation 07) 06
At 31 May {8 5) (78)

Provisions are estirnated by management based on past default expenence and therr assessment of the current economic
envirgnment
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15 Receivables and prepayments continued

Trade receivables consist of a broad cross section of our international customer base for whom thereis no significant bustory of
default The credit nsk of customers 15 assessed at a subsidiary and Group level, taking into account their financial positions past
experiences and other relevant factors Indmvdual customer credit imits are imposed based on these factors

The credit penod taken on sales ranges from 24 to 97 days (2008 16 to 103 days) due to the differing nature of trade recevables in the
Group s geographical segmenis

The carrying amount of the Group s trace receivables are denominated in the following currencies

2010 2009

£m £m

Sterling 191 179
US Dollas 50 42
Nigenan Naira 361 235
Euro 180 205
Polish Zloty 40 46
Indonesian Rupiah 85 69
Ghana Cedi 44 19
Other minor cuirencies 76 80
1027 875

The following table shows the age of trade receivables at the reperting date for which no allewance forimpairment of trade
recewables has been raised

2000 2009
£m £m
MNot past due B6 6 677
Past due 0-90 days 153 183
Past due 90-180 days (1] 10
Past due >180 days - 05
1027 875
16 Current asset investmants
2010 2009
£m Em
Unlisted 03 03
17 Cash and cash equivalents
2010 2009
fm Em
Cash at bank and in hand 573 388
Short-term deposits 746 453
Cash and cash equivalents 1319 842
Less bank overdrafts (included m borrowings note 18) 07) {1 4)
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts 1312 828
The effective Interest rate on cash and cash equivalents during the year ended 31 May 2010 was 16%(2009 2 7%}
18 Borrowings
2010 2009
£fm £m
Cverdrafts due within ane year 07 14
Bank loans due within one year 150 150
Bank loans due after one year 300 44 9

457 613
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18 Borrowings continued
The borrowings are repayable as follows

2010 2009

Em Em

Within one year 157 164
Between one to two years 150 150
Between two to three years 150 150
Between three to four years - 149
45 7 613

Bank overdrafts are repayable on demand The weighted average rate of interest on bank overdrafts was 12 7% (2008 14 8%)
Bank overdrafts are at floating rates of interest and hence expose the Group to cash flow interest rate nsk All covenants attached to
borrowings have been complied wath throughout the year

The split between fixed and floating rate borrowing and applicable weighted average interest rates are as lollows

2010 2009

Interast Inzerest

2010 rats 2009 rate

Em (%) £m (%)

Floating rate borrowing 457 10 613 16

At 31 May 2010 the Group had undrawn faciities of £101 3 milion (2009 £99 5 mithon) avallable to 1t The Group s barrowings were
denominated in the following currencies

2010
Sterling Naira Euro Total
£m fm £fm Em
Anatysis of borrowings by currency
Bank overdrafts - 01 06 07
Bank loans 450 - - 450
450 01 06 457
2009
Sterling Naira O1her Total
£m fm Em £m
Analysis of borrowings by currency
Bank overdrafts - 13 01 14
Bank loans 599 - - 59 9
539 13 01 613

An interest rate swap contract was entered into to hedge the cash flow interest rate risk inherent in hiabilives with a notional value
of £22 5 million (2008 £30 0 mdhon} This swap ensures an average effective fixed rate payable of 5 11% until June 2011 At 31 May
2010 the fair value of the interest rate swap was a hability of £0 9 million {2008 £1 8 mullon)

The functional currency of the majonty of Group entities 1s local currency Debt raised in currencies other than Sterling 1s in most
cases raised in the functional currency of the entity raising the debt

Financial instruments and risk management

The Group s operations expose It to a vanety of financial nsks that mclude the effects of changes in foreign exchange rates credit
nsks liquidity and interest rates The primary nsk faced by the Group 1s exchange rate nisk The Board has reviewed and agreed
pokcies for management of this nsk and has also approved all of the classes of financial instruments that may be used by the Group
The Group s treasury function reports to the Board at least annually with reference 1o the application of the Group treasury policy The
palicy addresses 1ssues of igudity funding and investment as well as interest rate currency and commodity risks

The Group s nsk management policies are designed to identfy and analyse these nsks 1o set approprate nsk limits and controls and
1o monttor the nsks and limits centinually by mearns of reliable and up-io-date systems The Group modifies and enhances its nisk
managemant policies and systems to reflect changes in markets and products The Group Risk Committee under authornty delegated
by the Board formulates the high level Group risk management policy monitors nsk and receives reports that allow it to review the
effectiveness of the Group s nsk management policies
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18 Borrowings continued

Credit nsk management

Credit nsk 1s the nsk that financial loss arses from the failure of a customer or counterparty to meet its obhigations under a contract
it anises principally from lending trade finance treasury and leasing activities The Group has dedtcated standards policies and
procedures 1o control and monitor all such nsks Although the Group 1s potentiaily exposed to credn loss in the event of non-
performance by counterparties such credit risk Is contralled through credit rating and eguity price reviews of the counterparties and
by imiting the total ameunt of exposure to any one party The Group does not believe 1t 1s exposed to any matenal concentrations of
credit nsk

Liquidity management

Liquidity risk 1s the nsk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligattans as they fall due The Group maintains a strong
liquigity position and manages the hquidity profile of its assets habilities and commitments so that cash flows are approprately
balanced and all funding obligations are met when due

The Group has credit facilines with ligh-quality international banks Al of these faciliies have similar or equivalent terms and
conditions The Group has negotiated faciities with its bankers that provide sutfizient headroom to ensure hquedity and continuity of
funding

Market risk management

Market nsk 15 the nsk that movements in market rates including foreign exchange rates interest rates equity and commodity pnces
will reduce the Group s income The management of market nsk 1s undertaken using risk imits appreved by the operating unit finance
directors under delegated authority

Foreign exchange risk

The Group s actavities expose It to the financial nisks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates Subsidiary undertakings must
ensure that all transactional exposures ansing from commitments n a currency other than thesr funcuenal currency are identified and
monitored The Group uses foreign currency forward contracts to manage 1hese exposures

Sensitivity analysis
A 10% weakening of the Pound Sterling against the following currencies at 31 May would have increased equity and profit by the
following amaounts shown delow This analysis assumes that all other vanables 1n particular interest rates remain constant

2010 2009
Income Income
Equity statsment Equity statement
£rn Em £m £m
Nigerian Naira 138 27 12 30
Euro 47 03 48 05
Indonesian Rupizh 49 03 38 01
Austrahan Dollar 42 07 41 05
Polish Zloty 27 03 39 02

A 10% strengthering of the Pound Sterling against the above currencies woutd have had the equal and opposite effect on equity and
profit by the amounts shown above on the basis that all other vaniables remain constant

Price nsk

The Group i1s not exposed to equity securittes price sk Due to the nature of the business the Group 15 exposed to commodily prce
nsk The Group does take measures to protect agamnst short-term impacts of these fluctuations however fallure to recover higher
costs could have a negative impact en profits

Cash flow and interest rate nsk
The Group s vanable rate borrowings are exposed to a risk of change in cash flows due 1o changes ininterest rates The Group has
reduced 1ts exposure to this by entening into interest rate swaps

Fair values
Financial nstruments utihsed by the Group during the years ended 31 May 2010 and 31 May 2009 1ogether with information
regarding the methods and assumptions used to calculate fair values can be summansed as follows

Current and non-current investments
In accordance with 1AS 3% Financial instruments Recogmition and Measurement unlisted investments are held in the Group's
balance sheet at cost because their farr value cannot be measured reliably due to the lack of quoted market prices

Current assets and habilities
Financial instruments included within current assets and habihties (excluding cash and borrowings) are generally short-term in nature
and accardingly their fair vatues approximate to thew book values
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Borrowings and cash

The carrying values of cash and short-term borrowings approximate io their fair values because of the shortterm matunty of these
Instruments

The financial instruments held by the Group do not, aither individually or as & class create a potenually significant exposure to market
credit hquidity or cash flow interest rate nisk

Fair values of financial assets and financial habihities
Set out below ts a companson by category of the carrying values and farr values of all the Group s financial assets and financial
habihties as at 31 May 2010 and 31 May 2009 None of the financial assets and habilities have been reclassified during the year

2009
2010 {restatad)
Carrying Carrying
smountand  amogunt and
fair value tair value
£m £m

Loans and receivables
Cash and short-term deposits 1319 842
Trade and other receivables 1184 106 8

Financial habilities

Trade and other payables {172 4) {140 B)
Bank overdrafts 07 (14)
Bank Ioans {45 0) {58 9

An analysis of the international long-term credit ratings of counterparties where cash and short-term deposits are held 1s as follows

2010 2009

£m £m

AA 424 369

A 417 283

B 478 1890

Total 1319 B4 2
Denvative financial instruments

2010 2009

Assets Lishilities Assets Liabilities

fm £m £Em Em

Interest rates swaps — cash flow hedges - 09} - (18}

Forward fareign exchange contracts — cash flow hedges - {09} 47 {0 4)

Total - {18} 47 {22}

Trading dervatives are classified as a current asset or hability The full fair value of a hedging denrvative 1s classified as & non-current
asset or hability if the remaining maturity of the hedged item 1s more than 12 months and as a current asset or hability if the maturity
of the hedged item (s less than 12 months

{a) Forward foreign exchange contracts
The net notonal principal ameunts of the outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts at 31 May 2010were £14 6 mullion
{2009 £203 milion}

The hedged highly probable forecast transactions dentominated in foreign currency are expected to occur a1 vanous dates during
the next 12 months Gains and losses recognised in the hedging reserve in equity on forward foreign exchange contracts as of

31 May 2010 are recogrised In the Income statement n the perod or periods durng which the hedged forecast transaction atfects
the Income statement

This 1s generally within 12 months from the balance sheet date unless the gain or loss is included 1n the mitial amount recognised for
the purchase of fixed assets m which case recognition is aver the hfetme of the asset

(b} Interest rate swaps
The notional pnincipal amounts of the outstanding Interest rate swap contracts at 31 May 2010 were £22 5 milhion
{2009 £30 0 million}

At 31 May 2010 the fixed interest rate 1s 5 11% {2009 511%) and the main floating rate1s LIBOR Gansand losses recogmised in the
hedging reserve In equity on Interest rate swap contracts as of 31 May 2010 will be continuously released to the iIncome statement
over the period of the hedge
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19 Trade and other payables

2009

2070 {restated}

£m fm

‘Trade payables 1005 790
Amounts owed 10 [0int ventures 14 -
Other taxation and social secunty 77 53
Other payables 168 141
Financial derwvative habilities (note 18) 18 22
Accruals and deferred income 442 402
1724 140 8

Trade and other payables comprise amounts cutstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs The average credit penod taken for
trade purchases 1s BO days (2009 5% days) The Directors constder the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates
their fair value

20 Other non-current habihties

2010 2008

£m fm

Other payables 03 08

Accruals and deferred income 01 a2

04 10

21 Deferred tax
Revaluation
Praperty Retirement of property
plant and benefit plantand  Other iming Busimess  Share based

eguipment obligaaons equipment differences combinations payments Total

£m £m Fm £m £m £m £m

At 1 June 2008 {112} 85 1i50) 61 (29 3) 0z {407}
Charge to income 25 {0 3} - (556) - 07 (26)
Charge to equity - {5 9} - {0 3) - 06 {56)

Currency translation 02 - 15 - - - 17
At 31 May 2009 (B5) 23 {13 5) 03 (29 3) 15 47 2)
Charge to income (34} {04) - (10 - 03 {45)

Charge to equity - 20 - 08 - 16 44
Currency translation 09 o1 {07} - - - {(15)
At 31 May 2010 {12 8) 40 {14 2) 01 {29 3) 34 {48 8)

Certain deferred tax assets and habilities have been offset in accordance with IAS 12 Income taxes’ The following is the analysis of
the deferred tax balances {after offset) for financial reporting purposes

2010 2009

£m £m

Deferred 1ax assets mn2 73
Deferred tax habilities {60 0} (54 5}

(48 8) (47 2}

At the balance sheet date the Group has unused tax losses of £0 4 million (2009 £0 4 milhon} availatle for offset against future
profits None of the £0 4 mithion (2009 £0 4 million) 1s expected to expire Temporary differences ansing tn connection with interests
In associates and joint ventures are not sigmificant
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22 Provisions

Other

Provisions

£m

At 1 June 2008 17
Currency retranslation o1
Income statement 33
Unlised tn the year (1)
At 31 May 2009 38
Currency retranslation 01
Income statement G3
Utihsed in the year {11}
At 31 May 2010 31

Qther provisicns at 31 May 2010 retate to UK dilapidation costs redundancy costs and warranty costs With the exception of the
warranty costs that are expected to be utiised over a three year period other provisions are expected te beutilised in the next
12 menths

23 Retirement benefits

The Group operaites retirement benefit schemes for most of its United Kingdom and overseas subsidianes These oblhgations have
been measured in accordance with 1AS 19 and are as follows

2010 2009
Surplus Deficit Totel Surplus Detfieit Total
£m Em £m £m £m £m
Expatriate plan 320 - 320 206 - 206
Directors plan - 81) 81 - (61) 161)
Main staff plan - {3t3) {313) - (18 8} (18 8)
Other overseas units - 73) 73) - a7 (47)
320 {46 7) {147) 2086 (29 6) {9 0}
The movernents in the year are as follows
Ovarseas UK
retrement retrement
kenefits benehts
and similar and similar
obligatians abligations Totat
fm Em £m
At 1 June 2008 (38) {26 4) (30 2)
Currency retranslation 01 - 01
Income statement (18 0N (20)
Contnbutions paid - 27 27
Utlised in the year 13 - 13
Actuartal movement 04) 195 191
At 31 May 2009 47 (4 3) 20
Currency retranslation 08 - (08)
Income statement 23 11 (34)
Contrnibutions paid - 52 52
Utilised Iin the year 16 - 16
Actuanal movement 1) (7 2) 83)
At 31 May 2010 {2 3} {7 4) (14 7)

Overseas retirement benefits and sirmilar obligations

Included within Qverseas retirement benefits and simiar obligations are unfunded retirement benefit obligations relaung to certain
of the Group s overseas subsidianes and other employee related provisions for iong service and sick leave These cbligations have
been measured in accordance with IAS 19

The most significant overseas scheme as at 31 May 201011s the Indenesian post retrement benefit scheme The obligations have
been measured In accordance with IAS 19 and a discount rate of 9 0% (2009 11 b%) and salary inflation rate of 8 0% {2009 8 0%)
have been used The scheme s unfunded and provisten for future obligations (ngluded in the above table s £3 5 milion

{2009 £15 mulkon}

75
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23 Retirement benefits continued

UK retirement benefits and similar obhgations

Overview

The following three defined berefit schemes are the Group s main schemes which are based and admnistered i the UK
- Main staff plan —for all eligible UX based staff excluding PZ Cussons Plc Executive Directors

~ Birectors plan — for PZ Cussons Plc Executive Directors

— Expatnate plan - for all ehgible expatriate staff based outside the UK

0On 31 May 2008 the three defined benefit schemes in the United Kingdom were closed to future accrual

Employees within these schemes are provided with defined benefits based on service and final salary The assets of the schemes are
admimistered by trustees and are held in trust funds independent of the Group

The Group also operates an unfunded unapproved retirement benefit scheme The cost of the unfunded unapproved retirement
beneht scheme 1s included in the total pension cost on a basis consistent with IAS 18 Employee benefits and the assumptions
set out below In accordance with these unfunded arrangements the Group made payments dunng the year to former directors of
£33 055142009 £13 997)

The last tnennial actuaral valuations of the schemes administered in the UK were performed by independent professicnal actuanes at
1 June 2009 using the projected unit method of valuaton

Far the year to 31 May 2010 the total defined benefit pension cost ansing from the three schemes amounted te €11 mullion |
{2009 £0 1 rmulhon)

The major financial assumptions used by the actuary were as follows

2010 2009
Rate of increase \n salanes 4 30% 4 50% |
Rate of increase in retirement benefits in payment 330% 3560% |
Discount rate 560% 7 00% |
Inflation assumption 330% 3 50% ‘
The mortality assumptions used were as follows
2010 2009
years years
Longewvity at age 65 for current pensioners
- men 220 215
—women 238 232
Longevity at age 65 for future pensioners
- men 245 232
—women 263 247
The assets in the schemes and the expected rates of return were
2010 2008 2008
Em £m fm
Equities 7 75% 1145 800% 962 7 00% 1226
Bonds 5 90% 1138 675% 860 510% 03
Cash and other 050% 81 050% 98 5 00% 120
Total fair value of scheme assets 2364 918 2249
Present value of schema labiites {243 8) (196 1} {201 3)
Deficit in the schemes {7 4} 43 (26 4)
Related deferred tax asset 20 12 74
Net retirement benefit deficit (5 4) (31 (19 0)

To develop the expected long-term rate of return on assets assumptions the Group considered the level of expected returns on risk-
free investments the istoncal tevel of the nsk premium associated with the other asset class in which the portfolio 1s invested and
the expectations for future returns of each class of asset The expected return for each class of asset was then weighted based on
the actual asset allocation to develop the expected long-term return on assets assumption for the portfolto The actual gain on plan
assets was £49 1 milhon (2009 loss £28 0 miihon)
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23 Retirement benefits continued
The net retirement benefit expense befare taxation recognised in the income statement in raspect of the defined benefit schemes 1s
summarised as follows

2010 2009
Em fm
Expected return on scheme assets 123 140
Interast cost {13 4) {14 1}
Net retirement benefit expense before taxation {11} G 1}
All above amounts are recognised in the Group s income statement before armving at operating profit
The reconciliation of the opening and ciosing balance sheet position 1s as follows
2010 2009
£m £m
Deficit at beginning of year (43) (26 4)
Expense recognised in the consolidated income statement {11) {01}
Contributions paid 52 27
Actuanal {less)/gain [72) 195
Net deficit at end of year 74) a3)
Analysed between
Retirement benefit surplus 320 20686
Reurermnment benefit obligation (39 4} (24 9)

Actuanal gains and losses are recognised directly in the statement of comprehensive iIncome At 31 May 2010 a cumulative pre-tax
loss of £24 6 milhon (2009 £17 4 million} was recorded directly In the statement of comprehansive income

Movements in the fair value of plan assets were as follows

Assats Assets

2010 2009

£m £m

1June 1818 2249
Expected return on assets 123 1440
Actuarial gainsf{losses) 368 {42 O)
Employer contribution 52 27
Benefits paid {97) {7 8)
31 May 236 4 1918

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obhigauons were as follows
Obligations Obhgations

- 2010 2009

£m £fm

1June (196 1) {251 3)
Interest cost (134} (14 7}
Actuarial {losses)igains {44 0) B15
Benefits paid 97 78
31 May {243 8) {196 1)
Plans that are wholly or partly funded (239 4) (193 0)
Plans that are wholly unfunded {44) 31

{243 8) (196 1)

The history of the plan for the current and prior years 1s as follows

2018 2009 2008 2007 2008
Difference between expected and actual return on scheme assets
Amount ([Em) 368 {42 Q) (169 55 186
Percentage of scheme assets 16% {22%) (8%) 2% 5%
Experience gains and losses on scheme liabilities
Amount (£m) {0 B) 44 15 (18) 35
Percentage of scheme llabilities 0% 2% 1% [1%) 2%
Total amount recogmsed n statement of comprehensive ncome
Amount (Em) 72 195 214) (82) (37)

Percentage of scheme liabiliues {3%) 10% (9%) (3%) (2%)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

23 Reurement benefits conunued

During the year ending 31 May 2010 the Group expects to make cash contnbutions of £6 5 million (2009 £2 7 mithion) to funded
defined benefit plans This includes mandatory and discretionary payments In addition a further £3 0 mitlion (2009 £2 8 milion)
15 expected to be contributed to defined contrnbution plans

The amount recognised as an expense in the consolidated income statement in relation to defined contnbution schemes Is
£2 8 million (2009 £2 7 million}

24 Share capital

2010 2009
Number Amount Number Amount
000 £m 000 £m
Authonsed
Qrdinary shares of 1p each 570,000 57 570 000 57
Total authansed share capital 570,000 57 570 000 57
Allotted, called up and fully paid
QOrdinary shares of 1p each 428,725 43 428 725 43
Total called up share capital 428,725 43 428 725 43

25 Employee Share Option Trust
Included within retained earnings 1s the Employee Share Option Trust (ESOT)

The ESOT purchases shares to fund the Deferred Annual Share Banus Scheme the Executive Share Option Scheme and the
Performance Share Plan detalls of which are provided in the Report on Directors Remuneration At 31 May 2010 the trust held
1874 245 (2009 1837 727) ordinary shares with a book value of £4 0 million (2009 £2 1 milllon} The market value of these shares
as at 31 May 2010 was £5 4 million {2009 £3 1 milion} During the year the ESOT purchased 2 554 964 shares of the Company
(2009 419139} The trust has waived any entitlement to dividends in respect of all the shares it holds

26 Reconcihation of profit before tax to cash generated from operations

2010 2009
£m £m
Profit before tax 1018 844
Adjustment for net finance {income)/costs {0 4} 18
Operating profit 1014 862
Depreciation 188 175
Loss on sale of tangible fixed assets 12 10
Difference between pension charge and cash contributions 41) (26)
Share of results from joint venture (16) 41
Share-based payment chargas 28 13
Operating cash flows pefare movemaents in working capital 1185 107 5
Movements in working capital
Inventones 248 70
Recevables {5 4} (20}
Payables 240 307
Provisions (11) 20
Cash generated from operations 160 8 1452

27 Operating lease commitments
At the balance sheet date the Group had outstanding commitments for future mimimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases over certain of 1ts office properties which fall due as follows

2010 2003

£m £m

Within one year 12 13
In the second to fifth years inclusive 46 42
Qver five years 49 46

The Group leases a number of premises These are subject to review dates ranging from 2010 to 2023
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28 Share-based payments

The Company makes share-based payments to senior executives under three schemes These are the Performance Share Plan
Deferred Annual Share Bonus Scherme and the Executive Share Option Scheme The total charge in the peniod relating to the three
schemes was £2 8 milhon {2009 £1 3 millson}

Executive Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme for senior executives Options are exercisable at a price equal to the average guoted
market price of the Company s shares on the dealing day before the option 1s granted Opucens are forfeited if the employee leaves
the Group for any reason outsige of the scheme rules Options under the scheme are exercisable in a penod beginning no earher than
three years from the date of grant and are subject to performance conditions

Equity settled share-based payments are measured at farr value at the date of grant The fawr value determined at the date of grant i1s
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting perod based on the Group s estimate of shares that will eventually vest

Fair value 15 measured by use of a Black-Scholes model according to the relevant measures of performance The model includes
adjustments based on management s best estimate for the effects cof exercise restnctions behavioural considerations and expected
dividend payments The option life 1s denved by the models based on these assumptions and cther assumptions identified below
The total expense included within operating profit in respect of the share option scherme was ml {2009 £01 milhon})

No options have been granted during the current or previous year under the Executive Share Cptich Scheme

The movement in total cutstanding options mn respect of the share option scheme 1s provided below

Weighted
average
exarcise
Number of price
share options £
Qutstanding at 1 June 2008 5922 822 15
Lapsed (648 257) 11
Exercised (535 368) 08
Qutstanding at 31 May 2009 4741197 13
Exercisable at 31 May 2009 2532 151 10
Lapsed 51 397) 16
Exercised {2 085 330} 11
Outstanding at 31 May 2010 2,604,470 14
Exercisable at 31 May 2010 1,737,312 13
Weighted
average
exercise
Price/share price
£ £
Range of prices

31 May 2010 0717 14
31 May 2009 Q717 13
Weighted
average
Numberof centractterm
share opligns {years)

Weighted average contractual remaining life
31 May 2010 2,604,470 60
31 May 2009 4741197 63

There were no options outstanding at 31 May 2010 or 31 May 2009 that are outside of the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based payments

Performance Share Plan

The Group operates a Performance Share Plan { PSP ) for main Board Executive Directors {excluding the Charrman} and certain key
senior executives The extent to which such nghts vest will depend upon the Company s performance over the three year penod
following the award date The Company s performance 1s measured by reference to out performance of adjusted earnings per share
growth over the retall prnice Index over a single three year pericd The far value of the award 1s taken as the share price at the

date of grant

QOn 28 July 2008 the Company made 1 364 820 awards under the PSP scheme (2009 1 882 826) The number of awards outstanding
but not yet exercisable 18 3 001 116 at 31 May 2010 The total expense included in aperating profit in refation to these awards was
£1 8 mithon {2009 £0 5 milhon}
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28 Share-based payments continued

Deferred Annual Bonus Scheme

The Group has in force a Deferred Annual Share Bonus Scheme for main Board Executive Directors (excluding the Charman) and
certain key senior executives 50% of any bonus 1s paic in cash and 50% in deferred shares Deferred shares are purchased in the
market and retained in an employee trust until they are 1ssued to the Directors The shares will normally be recerved by the Directors
foliewing three years of continuing employment from the date of the award

The value of the deferred share element of the bonus relating to the current year 1s calculated using the market vaiue at 31 May 2009
of £1 705 per share Tha total expense included in operating profitin relation to the Deferred Annual Bonus Scheme was £1 G milion
{2009 £0 7 muthon)

Further detalls of the employee trust are given in note 25 of the censolidated financial siatements
29 Acquisitions

2010
Cost of acquisitions

Em
2 1% of share capital of PZ Cussons Nigenia Plc 68
Entire share capital of Body Expenence Ltd 08
76

Dunng 2010 the Group acquired additional share capital of PZ Cussons Nigena Plc increasing the Group s stake from 64 0% 10 86 1%
Detalls of the purchase consideration and non controlling interest acquired are as follows

£m
Purchase consideration
- Cash pad 66
- Direct costs relating to the acquisition 02
Total purchase consideration 68
Non controlling interest acgutred {3 3)
Goodwill 35

On 5 Novemnber 20098 the Group through its subsidiary The Sanctuary at Covent Garden Ltd acqguired the entire share capital of
Body Experience Ltd a company registered in the UK whose principal activity 1s the provision of spa services The consideration was
£0 8 million and goodwill ansing on the acguisition was £0 4 milkon

2009
Cost of acquusitions
£m
2 6% of share capital of PZ Cussons Nigena Plc 52
Burrino trademark 36
88

Dunng 2009 the Group acquired additional share capital of PZ Cussons Nigena Plc increasing the Group s stake from €1 4% to 64 0%
Detalls of the purchase censideration and non controlling mterest acquired are as follows

£m
Purchase consideration
—Cash paid b1
—Direct costs relating to the acquisition 01
Total purchase constderation 52
Non controlling interest acquired 37)
Goodwiil 15

On 30 March 2009 Minerva SA the Group s subsidiary in Greece acquired the Burnno trademark for a consideration of £3 6 mitlion

30 Related party transactions
The following related party transactions were entered into by substdiary companies dunng the year under the terms of a joint venture
agreement with Glanka Ple

At 31 May 2010 the cutstanding balance recevable from Milk Ventures (UK) Ltd was £25 9 milion (2009 £23 7 mithion)
At 31 May 2010 the Group had no ouistanding balance payable to Milk Ventures (UK} Lid {2009 il




30 Related party transactions continued

PZ Cussons Plc
Annuat Report & Accounts 2010

The Group sourced and then sold fixed assets and raw materials to Nutncima Lid to the value of £24 4 million (2009 £41 8 million)
In addition the Group receved distnbution fee income of £3 5 million (2009 £3 8 million) from Nutrnieima Ltd At 31 May 2010 the

amount outstanding from Nutricima Ltd was £3 5 milkon (2009 £6 0 million) The amount outstanding from the Group at 31 May 2010

was €1 4 milhion (2009 nil)

All trading balances will be settled in cash

There were no provisions for doubtful related party recewables at 31 May 2010 (2009 nil} and no charges to the income statement tn

respect of doubtful related party receivables (2009 nil)

31 Subsidianes, joint ventures and non-current asset investments
Details of the Company s pnncipal subsidianes at 31 May 2010 are as follows

Parert Proportion

Incorporated company § of voting

Company Operation n Interest interest
PZ Cussons Austraha Pty Ltd Manufactuning Australia "100% 100%
PZ Cussons Middle East and South AsiaFZE  Distribution Dubai 100% "100%
Charles Worthington Hair & Beauty Ltd Helding company England *100% *100%
Seven Scent Ltd {formerly FC Ltd) Manufacturing England 100% 100%
PZ Cussons (Hotdings) Lid Holding company England *100% *100%
PZ Cussons {International} Lid Provision of services to Group companies England *100% “100%
PZ Cussons {UK) Lid Manufacturing England 100% M"M00%
The Sanctuary Spa Holdings 1.td Prowvision of spa services and product distnbution  Englane "100% "100%
PZ Cussons Ghana Lid Manufacturing Ghana '90% 0%
Minerva SA Manufacturing Greece *100% *100%
PT PZ Cussans Indonesia Manufactuning Indonesia "100% "100%
PZ Cussons East Africa Ltd Manufacturing Kenya "00% 100%
HPZ Ltd' Manufacturing Nigena '50% '50%
PZ Cussons Nigena Plc Manufacturing Nigena '66% 66%
Harefield Industnal Nigena Lid Distripution Nigena "100% 1100%
PZ Cussons Polska SA Manufacturing Poland 99% 99%
PZ Cussons (Thalland) Ltd Manufacturing Thailland "100% 100%
Parent

incerporated Company s

Jantventura companies Opelannn n tnteres?
Mitk Ventures (UK} Lid Holding company England 50%
Nutrioima Ltd Manufactuning Nigera '50%
Parent

Incorporated Company s

Other investments Operanon n nterest
Norpalm Ghana Ltd Manufacturing Ghana 3%

1 HPZ Ltd 1s 74 89% owned by PZ Cussons Nigena Plc and 15 therefare consohdated
* Shares held by the Parent Company
t Shares held by a subsidiary
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Five year financial record

2010 2008 2008 2007 2008
Year to 31 May £m £m £m £m Em
Operaung profit before exceptional items 1014 9086 76 4 662 602
Net finance iIncomeflexpense} 04 {18) 01 21 34
Profit before taxaton and excepuonal nems 1018 888 765 683 636
Exceptional items - {4 4) - (G4} (24)
Profit hefore taxation 1018 84 4 76 5 679 612
Taxation (29 1) {24 Q) 212) (185) {18 B}
Profit for the year 727 B0 4 563 494 42 6
Attributable to
Equity holders of the parent 637 496 47 ¢ 424 354
Non controlling interests 20 108 83 70 72
Net assets attributable to ordinary shareholders 454 8 B899 3487 3118 2920
Net funds/{debt) 86 5 232 32 0} 603 519
Per ordinary share
Basic earnings 14 89p 11 64p 11 0dp §88p 833p
Adjusted basic earnings 1489 12 3%p 10 78p 878p 8 90p
Dividend {intenim and final declared post year-end) 590p 527p 470p 427p 388p
Times cover —after exceptional tems 25 22 23 23 21
Times cover —before exceptional tems 25 24 23 23 23

Net assets 106 08p 80 94p 81 33p 72 72p B8 10p
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of PZ Cussons Plc

We have audited the parent company financial statements of PZ Cussons Plc for the year ended 31 May 2010 which comprise
the Company Balance Sheet and the related notes The financial reporting framewaerk that has been appliedin their preparation is
apphcable taw and United Kingdom Accounting Standards {United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Staterment of Directors responsibilities on page 49 the directors are responsible for the preparation
of the parent company financial statermnents and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair vew Qur responsibility 15 to audit
the parent company financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Audiung (UK and Ireland)
Those standards require us 1o comply with the Auditing Practices Board s Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report including the opinions has been prepared for and only for the company s members as a body in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not in giving these opinions accept or assume
responsibihty for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this repert 1s shown or into whose hands it may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit Involves obtaimng evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sutficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financtal statements are free from matenal misstatement whether caused by iraud orerror This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate 1o the parent company s circumstances and have been consistently
applied and adequately disclosed the reasonableness of significant accountng estimates made by the directors and the overall
presentation of the financial statements

Opinion on financial statements

in our opimion the parent company financial statements

— give a true and farr view of the state of the company s alfairs as at 31 May 2010

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Pracuce and
— have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Compames Act 2006

In our opinion

— the part of the Report on Directors Remuneration to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 2006 and

- theinfarmation given in the Report of the Directors for the financial year for which the parent company financiat statements are
prepared 1s consistent with the parent company financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us tc report to you if in our

opinion

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company or returns adeguate far our audit have not been receved
from branches not visited by us or

- the parent company financial statements and the part of the Report on Directors Remuneration to be audited are not in agreement
with the accounting records and returns or

- certain disclosures of directors remuneration specified by law are not made or

— we have not receved all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Other matter
We have reported separately on the group financial statements of PZ Cussons Plc for the year ended 31 May 2010

Nicholas Boden

Senior Statutory Auditor

for and on beha!f of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutery Acditors
Manchester

27 July 2010
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Company balance sheet
At 31 May 2010

2010 2003
Notes Em £m
Fixed assets
Investments
Subsidiary companies 5 1221 1204
1221 1204
Current assets
Debtors falling due within one year 6 824 1141
Investments 7 03 03
Cash at bank and in hand 01 186 2
878 130 6
Creditors — amounts falling due within one year 8 {139 3) (167 4)
Net current iabihities {515) {36 8)
Total assets less current habilities 706 836
Credrtors — amounts falling due after one year 8 36 2) {51 1)
Net assets 344 325
Capital and reserves
Equity ordinary share capital 9 43 43
Capital redemption reserve 10 07 07
Profit and loss account 10 294 275
Total sharehalders’ funds 344 325

Approved by the Board of Directars and signeg

\)
\

(A Kanellis

R J Harvey
27 July 2010

/e

PZ Cussons Plc
Registered number 19457




PZ Cussons Plc
Annual Report & Accounts 2010

Notes to the company financial statements

1 Accounting policies
The pancipal accounting policies applied under UK GAAP are detailled below They have all been applied consistently throughout the
year and the preceding year

Basis of preparation

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Comparies Act 2006 and Urited Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice {UK GAAP} under the historical cost convention As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 an enuity profii and
loss account 1s notincluded as part of the published consolidated financial statemenis of PZ Cussons Plc The profit for the financial
year dealt with in the accounts of the Parent Company s £27 8 million (2009 £4 0 millhion)

No cash flow statement has been included as the cash flows of the Company are included in the conselidated hinancial statements
of PZ Cussons Plc which are publicly available The consolidated financial statements of PZ Cussans Plc have been prepared in
accerdance with International Financial Reporting Standards

Amounts paid 1o the Company s auditors in respect of the statutary audit were £6 000 {2009 £6 00Q)

Foreign currencies
Assets and abilities are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the date of the Company balance sheet Exchange gains or losses
are recognised in the profit and foss account

Taxation and deferred taxation
Current taxation mcluding UK corporation taxation 1s provided at amounts expected to be paid or recovered using the tax rates and
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred taxauon is provided in full on urming differences that resuit in an obhgation at the balance sheet date to pay more tax or
anght to pay less tax at a future date, at rates expected to apply when they crystallise based on curtentiax rates and law Timing
differences anse from the inclusion of items of income and expenditure In taxation computations in periods different from those in
which they are included tn financial statements Deferred tax 1s not provided on tming differences ansing from the revaluation of
fixed assets where there 15 no binding contract to dispose of these assets nor on unremitted earnings where there s ne binding
commitment to remit these earnings Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is regarded as more likely than not that
they will be recoverad Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are not capitalised they are recognised in profit or loss in the period m which they are incurred

Financial iInstruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the Company s balance sheet when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument

Borrowings

Interest-beaning bank loans and overdratts are recorded at the proceeds received net of directissue costs Finance charges
including premiums payahble on settlement or redemption and direct issue costs are acceunted for on an accruals basis through the
profit and loss account using the effective interest method and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent they
are not settled in the peniod In which they anse The Company has not entered into any transactions invelving derivative instruments

Financial habiities and equity
Financial habiiies and equity instruments are ciassified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
An equity instrument 15 any contract that evidences a residual interest In the assets of the Company after deducting all of its habiliues

Current asset investments

Investrnents (other than 1nterests in joint ventures} are recognised and derecognised on a trade date whena purchase or sale of
an investment 1s under a contract whose terms require dehvery of the investment within the timeframe established by the market
concerned and are imitially measured at cost including transaction costs

Own shares held by ESOT

Transactions of the Company-sponsored ESOT are treated as being those of the Company and are therefore reflected in the
Company s financral staiements In particular the trust s purchases and sales of shares in the Company are debited and credited
directly to equity

Dividend distribution
Divtdend distribution to the Company s shareholders 1s recogrised as a liabitity in the Company s financial statements in the peried in
which the dividends are approved by the Company s shareholders In respect of intenm dividends these are recognised once paid

Investments in subsidraries

Investmen:s i subsidianes are held at cost less any provision for impairment Where equity settled share-based payments are
granted to the employees of subsidiary companies the fair value of the award 1 treated as a capital contnbution Dy the Company and
the investment in subsidianes 1s adjusted to reflect this capital contnbuuion

85
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Notes to the company financial statements continued

1 Accounting policies continued

Critical accounting polictes and estimation uncertainties

None of the above accounting policies are considered to be cntical to the financial statements of the Company There are no
significant areas of estimation uncertainty

New accounting pclicies
The Company has not adepted any new United Kingdom Financial Reporting Standards in the year and there are none in 1ssue but not
yet effective that are expected to have an iImpact on the Company

2 Employee numbers and costs
The average number of persens employed by the Company during the year was

2010 2009

Number Number

Administration 6 -
The costs incurred in respect of these employees were

2010 2009

£m £m

Wages salares and fees 27 -

Social security costs 04 -

Pension costs 03 —

Share-based payments 11 -

45 -

The Company operates a defined contnbution pension scheme The pension cost ¢harge for the penod represents contnbutions
payable by the Company to the scheme and amounted to £¢ 3 million (2002 nil)

There were no outstanding or prepaid contrnibutions at either the beginning or end of the financiat year

3 Directors eroluments

2010 2009

£m £m

Aggregate amount of Directors emoluments 45 —
Emoluments of the highest paid Director 09 -

For the year ended 31 May 2070 the heghest paid Director received Company pension contnbutions of £86 000 (2009 nil)

4 Dwvidends

2010 2009
Em £m

Amounts recognised as distributions to ordinary shareholders in the year comprise
Final dividend for the year ended 31 May 2008 of 4 085p (2008 3 625p) per Crdimary Share 175 155
Intenm dividend for the year ended 31 May 2010 of 1 930p (2009 1 185p) per Ordinary Share 82 50
257 206
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 May 2010 of 3 970p (2009 4 085p) per share 17 1 175

The proposed final dwvidends for the years ended 31 May 2009 and 3t May 2010 were subject to approval by shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting and hence have not been included as liabilities in these financial statements at 31 May 2009 and 31 May
2010 respectively

At 31 May 2010 the Employee Share Option Trust held 1 874 245 Ordinary Shares (2009 1837 727 Ordinary Shares) The trust warved
any entitlement to the didends on these shares

5 Investments in subsidianes

Shares Loans Total

£m £m £m

Costat 1 June 2009 1220 30 1250

Capitat contribution 17 — 17

Cost at 31 May 2010 1237 30 126 7
Provisions at 1 June 2009 and 31 May 2010 (4 6) - 14 6)

Net book value at 31 May 2010 191 30 1221

Net bock value at 1 June 2009 1174 30 120 4
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Detaiis of the Company s direct subsichanes at 31 May 2010 are as follows
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Parent Propartion
Incorperated Companys ot vaung
Subsidiary companies Operation n interest interest
Charles Worthington Hair & Beauty Ltd Holding company England 100% 100%
PZ Cussons (Holdings) Ltd Helding company England 100% 100%
PZ Cussons (International) Lid Prowision of services to Group companies England 100% 100%
Minerva SA Manufacturing Greece 100% 100%
6 Debtors
2010 2009
Em £m
Amounts owed by Group companies 857 1139
United Kingdom corporation taxation recoverable 13 01
Overseas taxation recoverable 01 01
Deferred taxation 03 -
87 4 1141
7 Current asset investments
2010 2009
£m £m
Unlisted 03 03
8 Creditors
2010 2009
Em £m
Due withuni one year
Bank loan and overdraft 374 268
Amounts owed to Group companies 994 1374
United Kingdom corpoeration taxation payable 22 20
Other creditors - 10
Accruals and deferred income 02 02
Other taxation and social security 01 —-
1383 167 4
2010 2009
£m fm
Due after one year
Bank lpan 300 44 9
Amounts owed 1o Group companies 62 62
362 511

At 31 May 2010 the Company had undrawn overdraft facilties of £30 0 million (2009 £30 0 million) available to it and commutted

fagimties of £15 0 milhon (2008 £15 @ million)

Financial instruments and nsk management

The Company 15 exposed to financia! nsks anising from changes in interest rates Other financial risks are not considered significant

Financial Instruments utilised by the Company during the years ended 31 May 2010 and 31 May 2008 together with information
regarding the methods and assumptions used to calculate fair values can be summansed as follows

Current asset nvestments

In accordance with FRS 25 Financial instruments recognition and measurement unhsted investments are held in the Company s
balance sheet at cost because their farr value cannot be measured reliably due to the lack of quoted market prices

Current assets and habtlities

Financial nstruments included within current assets and lisbilities (excluding cash and borrowmgs) are generally short-term in nature
and accordingly their farr values approximate o their book values

Borrowings

The carrying values of cash and short-term borrowings and current asset investments approximate to ther farr values because of the

short-term maturity of these instruments

The financial instruments held by the Company do not either indwvidually or as a class create a potentially significant exposure to
market credit lquidity or cash flow interest rate nisk
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Notes to the company financial statements continued

8 Creditors continued

An interest rate swap contract was entered into to hedge the cash flow interest rate nisk inherent in lizbilities with a nouconal value
of £22 5 millien (2009 £30 0 million) This swap ensures an average effective fixed rate payable of 5 11% until June 2011 At 31 May
2010 the fair value of the interest rate swap was a liability of £0 8 million {20609 £3 8 million)

9 Share capital

2010 2009
Number Amount Numbar Amaunt
{000} £m {000} £m
Authonsed
Ordinary shares
QOrdinary shares of 1p each 570,000 57 570 000 57
Total authorised share capital 570,000 57 570 000 57
Allotted, called up and fully paid
Ordinary Shares
Ordinary Shares of 1p each 428,725 43 428 725 43
Total called up share capital 428,725 43 428 725 43
10 Reserves and movements in shareholders’ funds |
Capital
Called up redemption Profit and
share capial reserve  loss account Toral
£m £m £m £m
At 1 June 2009 43 07 275 325
Profit for the financial year - - 278 278
Acquisition of shares for ESOT - - {30} (30}
Share-based payments - - 28 28
Dividends paid — - (25 7) {257}
At 31 May 2010 43 07 294 344

11 Employee Share Option Trust

Included within retained earmings 1s the Employee Share Option Trust (ESOT) The ESOT purchases shares to fund the Deferred
Annual Share Bonus Scheme the Executive Share Option Scheme and the Performance Share Plan details of which are provided in
the Report on Directors’ Remuneration At 31 May 2010 the trust held 1 874 245 (2008 1 837 727} Ordinary Shares with a book value
of £4 0 million (2009 £2 1 milhon) The market value of these shares as at 31 May 2010 was £5 4 mifion (2009 £3 1 million) Durnng
the year the ESOT purchased 2 554 964 shares of the Company (2009 419139} The trust has waived any entittement to dividends in
respect of all the shares it holds

12 Share-based payments
The Company makes share-based payments to senicr executives under two schemes These are the Performance Share Plan and the
Deferred Annual Share Bonus Scheme The total charge in the period relating to the two schemes was £1 1 mithon (2009 nif}

Performance Share Plan

The Group operates a Performance Share Plan { PSP ) for main Board Executive Directors {excluding the Chairman} and certain key senior
executives The extent to which such rights vest will depend vpon the Company s performance over the three year penod following the
award date The Company s performance 1s measured by reference to out performance of adjusted earmings per share growth over the
retail pnice index aver a single three year period The fair value of the award Is taken as the share price at the date of grant

Cn 28 July 2009 the Company made 1 364 820 awards under the PSP scheme {2009 1682 826) The number of awards outstanding
but not yet exercisabie s 3001 118 at 31 May 2010 The total expense included in eperating profit in relation to these awards was ,
£0 7 milhon {2609 i)

Deferred Annual Bonus Scheme

The Group has in force a Deferred Annual Share Bonus Scheme for main Board Executive Directors (excluding the Chairman) and
certain key senior executives 50% of any bonus s paid in cash and 50% in deferred shares Deferred shares are purchased in the
market and retained in an employee trust until they are 1ssued to the Directors The shares will normally be received by the Directors
followang three years of continuing employment from the date of the award

The value of the deferred share element of the bonus relating to the current year s calculated using the market value at 31 May 2009 of
£1705 per share The total expense included in operating profit in relation to the Deferred Annual Bonus Scherme was £0 4 mithion (2009 mil)

Further details of the emplayee trust are given in note 11

13 Contingent habihties
The Company 1s party to cross guarantee arrangements relating 1o an overdraft faciity for certain group companies accounts at
Barclays Bank Plc The maximum exposure at 31 May 2010 was £30 million {2009 €10 million} ‘
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Further statutory and other information

Health and safety

PZ Cussons ams to maintain a safe workplace at all locations in which it operates We continue to ensure that our busingss actviues
are undertaken in a responsible manner and in accordance with the relevant statutory legislation and that employees at all levels
participate in the development promotion and mantenance of a safe and healthy working environment foremployees visitors

and the public The Company employs health and salety specialists and where appropriate provides on-site medical facilites

for employees

The Company continues to monitor and increase standards of health and safety at work through nsk assessment safety audits
formal incident investigation and traiming  Cur mvestment in plant and eguipment enables us to modernise designs and operate safer
and mare efficient processes

Employment and staff development

As an International group and particulasly bearing in mind our operations in developing countries we focus resource on the
employment and development of local staff with the intention of assistng both our operations in those countries and the local
community Employees are involved at all levels of decision-making throughout the Group with effective communication via regular
consultatton groups and briefings Training is vital to ensuring continucus improvements in performance and over the past year
employees of all grades bave recewed training through a wide range of courses

The employment policies of the Group embody the principles of equal opportunity traiming and devetopment and rewards appropriate
to local markets which are tailored to meet the needs of ts businesses and the areas in which they operate This includes procedures
to support the Group s policy that disabled persons shall be considered for appropriate employment and subsequent training and
career development The Coempany continues to share valuable expenence and best practice withun the Group through employee
secondment

Community and charnty

We support a range of chantable causes bothin the UK and overseas mainly thzough a UX based shareholding trust and addiional
centributions are made through staff time and giits in kind PZ Cussons continues to provide assistance and danations to significant
global fund-raising initratives and recognises its responsibiity to the communities 1n which it operates We are committed to
establishing and maintaining streng relationships with community groups, particularly in developing markets

Auditor
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP has sigrufied 1is willingness to continue in office and a resolution for i1ts appointment will be proposed
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

Directors’ report of PZ Cussons Plc
For the purposes of secuon 234 of the Companies Act 2006 the report of the Directors of PZ Cussons Plc for the year ended
31 May 2010 compnses this page and the informatian contained in the Report of the Directors on pages 6to 36

Regtstered office
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3500 Aviaior Way
Manchester

M225TG

Registered number
Company registered number 19457

Registrars
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